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Chairman’s Message
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Chairman’s Message

Bonjour’s New Story

In early spring of 2020, Bonjour embarked on a
transformation journey from the traditional beauty retail
industry to “technology + consumption”. Over the past three
years, amidst the pandemic, we have steadfastly developed
and established “Hong Kong Mall” (HKMall &%) - a
global cross-border eCommerce platform. HKMall facilitates
cross-border transactions with the majority of countries
and regions in the existing global eCommerce environment.
The “Bonjour story” is no longer confined to traditional
shopping areas like Mong Kok, Tsim Sha Tsui, Causeway
Bay, and Central. Post-pandemic, Bonjour has innovatively
transformed its sales business from traditional offline retail
stores to a primarily cross-border eCommerce platform.

Fortunately, HKMall became the first global cross-
border eCommerce platform established by a Hong Kong
company after the pandemic. Its main service is to invite
Hong Kong merchants and merchants from around the
world to open cross-border eCommerce stores (eShops) on
the HKMall platform. Merchants’ eShops utilize the HKMall
platform to sell products to end consumers and expand
their sales market. The platform has grown from initially
offering over 4,000 SKUs to now exceeding 300,000 SKUs.
HKMall offers products in 13 major categories, with 355
subcategories. The clear product categorization provides
a convenient cross-border trading experience for both
consumers and merchants.

HKMall has currently accumulated nearly 1.5 million
end consumers to support online merchant sales services.
HKMall has established connections with over 70 global
payment gateway companies and cross-border logistics
companies in China and Hong Kong. The cross-border
sales services cover more than 30 countries and regions,
including the UK, EU, USA, Canada, Australia, New Zealand,
Southeast Asia, Turkey, the Middle East, Central Asia, and
local and mainland China markets. Thousands of merchants
have opened eShops on the platform, resulting in a total of
over 300,000 SKUs being available for sale online.

Global Products Global Sales

Since last year, we have invested a significant amount
of resources in upgrading the HKMall platform. The main
purpose of the upgrade is to transition the platform’s
services from being primarily focused on BBC (HKMall
1.0) to being primarily focused on SPBBC. Specifically, the
HKMall platform now combines the online sales-oriented
BBC transactional business with the SPBBC trade service
that assists merchants in establishing global supply chain
operations (HKMall 2.0).

Through our practice, we believe that in the new
eCommerce environment, in addition to seeking sales
channels on various online platforms, merchants need more
efficient global cross-border trade services to access new
online sales channels. As a newcomer in the global cross-
border eCommerce trading platform in Hong Kong, HKMall
aims to support merchants in improving their global trade
service levels through digital platform operations.

Prior to the pandemic, Bonjour, as a highly renowned
brand in the Hong Kong beauty retail industry, possessed
significant advantages. Bonjour will maintain and expand
on these brand advantages in its future development. On
the HKMall platform, we have established the cross-border
duty-free sales business of “Bonjour Global Duty-Free
Outlets” and hope to meet the new shopping experiences
and demands of post-pandemic travellers.

HKMall will collaborate with ecosystems that offer
advantages in cross-border duty-free sales services, as well
as partner with key opinion leaders (KOLs), multi-channel
network (MCN) agencies, and merchant channels that offer
cross-border sales services; this will together provide a new
breed of global cross-border SPBBC sales service, both
online and offline. HKMall will soon offer a new one-stop
cross-border sales service experience to brand owners,
suppliers, and manufacturers through an innovative online
cross-border sales model.




Tell a Good Hong Kong Story

Surviving as a ftraditional brick-and-mortar retail
business in Hong Kong during the pandemic is not an easy
task, especially for beauty retail services that rely on cross-
border visitors. Finding new avenues for traditional retail
enterprises poses a new challenge. As the chairman of
Bonjour Group, | embraced this challenge without hesitation,
and now | am delighted to share this joy with everyone. Our
company, with over 30 years of history, has embarked on
a new path of development. | believe that this path has
unlimited potential for growth, and today’s starting point is
just the first step in our innovative journey.

From a web-based commerce to an eCommerce
platform, from a cross-border eCommerce platform to the
goal of “selling worldwide quality goods globally”, and to
develop a “transaction + trade” platform become the new
directions for Bonjour’s future growth. | believe this is the right
path and the correct direction for our future development
and expansion.

Here | want to express my gratitude to “Bonjour
Technology” for their contributions and efforts in establishing
HKMall and enabling HKMall and Bonjour Holdings to
embark on a new path of digital transformation. Bonjour’s
new development philosophy of “technology + consumption”
has become a great solution for HKMall to become a global
cross-border eCommerce platform. “Bonjour Technology”
has provided extensive system support to “HKMall”, enabling
lean operations and management. For example, transitioning
from a labor-intensive operational and management model
to an almost fully automated system that handles hundreds
of thousands of SKUs, “Bonjour Technology” has provided
a new digital solution for the future development of HKMall
and its platform merchants. We believe that “HKMall 2.0”
will provide merchants with innovative, fully digitalized, lean
operations and management modules, as well as diversified
and precise marketing service modules.

Innovation for change and growth for strength have
never been easy. It is a path filled with risks and challenges.
We not only need to seek new goals and develop new
projects but also improve and adapt our existing business
systems to meet new developments. | would like to express
my gratitude to all the shareholders of the Company for their
support of Bonjour’s journey towards innovative growth. |
am thankful for the full support and cooperation from the
entire Board of Directors and the Company’s advisors. |
sincerely thank and appreciate all our colleagues for their
unwavering hard work and dedication. Furthermore, | am
grateful for the support of all our partners, suppliers, and
the merchants on HKMall, which has enabled Bonjour to
embark on this path of innovation and make HKMall the first
successful global cross-border eCommerce “transaction +
trade” platform established and grown locally in Hong Kong.

| look forward to seeing HKMall become one of the
storytellers of Hong Kong’s success!

Chen Jianwen
Chairman
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Mr CHEN Jianwen
TERITES

Chairman and Executive Director
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Mr Chen has extensive experience in corporate
governance, marketing strategy, industrial integration
and value reconstruction in various fields of the
business community. In particular, he has more
than 20 years of experience in innovating digitalized
management systems for traditional enterprises.

Since 2020, Mr Chen has served as the Chairman
of the Board of Directors of Bonjour Holdings, and started
to upgrade Bonjour Group into an industrial innovation
platform of “technology + consumption”. In 2021, Mr Chen
founded “Hong Kong Industry Innovation Centre (HKIIC)”,
which is committed to putting digital transformation
and technological innovation elements into traditional
industries, customizing new business models, services
and revenue sources, promoting industry openness and
sharing, and building an industrial ecology.

Mr Chen has an insight into the problems,
pain points and difficulties of enterprises. As the
“enterprise doctor”, he has designed a series of digital
management tools to help enterprises reconstruct
their overall structure of strategic planning, operations
management, business ecology and marketing
development, and master the ability to tackle digital
challenges and the corresponding governance
framework.
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Mr WAN Yim Keung Daniel
BIEEFRANTE

Vice-Chairman and Executive Director

=

Mr Wan is a director of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company. He is a member of the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee of the
Company as well, mainly responsible for the business
development of the Company. Mr Wan obtained his
bachelor’'s degree in business administration from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and his master
degree in business administration from the University
of Wales. He is a Certified Public Accountant in
Hong Kong, a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and also a member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales.

Mr Wan has extensive experience in the financial
industry with over 26 years in senior management
position. Mr Wan was an independent non-executive
director of China Suntien Green Energy Corporation
Limited (stock code: 0956) from 11 June 2019 to 28
February 2024. He is currently the chief executive
officer of Haifu International Finance Holding Group
Ltd. Prior to joining Haifu, he was the managing
director and chief financial officer of Shui On Land Ltd.
(stock code: 00272) and the general manager and
group chief financial officer of The Bank of East Asia,
Ltd. (stock code: 0023).
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Ms CHIU Lai Kuen Susanna

PITEEREFEMHE

Executive Director and
Chief Financial Officer
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Ms Chiu has extensive experience in accounting, business management and operations.
She graduated with a bachelor's degree with first class honours in economics from the
University of Sheffield in the United Kingdom and obtained an executive master of business
administration degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Ms Chiu is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of England and Wales, a certified information systems auditor and a
member of the Chinese Institute of the Certified Public Accountants.

She was the president of the Information Systems Audit and Control Association (China
Hong Kong Chapter) from 2001 to 2006, and the president of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in 2013. Ms Chiu is currently an independent non-executive
Director of China Qilfield Services Limited (stock code: 2883), China Vocational Education
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1756) and Songz Automobile Air Conditioning Co. Ltd.,
(Shenzhen A-Share stock code: 002454 till September 2023). Ms Chiu is also an independent
non-executive director of Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited.

From 2006 to 2019, she served as a senior vice president, Group Chief Representative
(Eastern China) and consultant in various member companies of the Li & Fung Group. Ms
Chiu was awarded the Medal of Honor by the Government of the HKSAR in 2013 and a Justice
of the Peace in 2017. Ms Chiu received numerous titles including the “Outstanding Women
Professionals” Award, the “Outstanding Business Woman” in 2017 and the “Outstanding
Female Entrepreneur in the Greater Bay Area” Award in 2021. She is currently also a member
of Shanghai People’s Political Consultative Conference and Accounting Consultation Expert of
China's Ministry of Finance.
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Mr WONG lu Ming

1?&““—:‘%%2\\3*[/&;

Chief Executive Officer and

Company Secretary

BRERBTRAZEMBATZESE - RAREREBGHIATERGE - BHEIT
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Mr Wong is a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Wong is a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also currently an
executive director and deputy chief executive officer of Haifu International Finance Holding
Group Ltd., a director of Innogy Global Limited and a member of executive committee of The
Society for the Promotion of Hospice Care. Mr Wong had been a general manager of Internal
Audit of Urban Renewal Authority, and also has extensive experience in risk controls, finance
and administration, internal audit among sizable Hong Kong public bodies and multinational
conglomerates.
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Independent Non-executive Directors Profiles
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Aog Mr Kwok is the chairman of the audit committee, and a member of the remuneration
EB-‘.:F'E;EE committee and the nomination committee, of the Company. Mr Kwok is currently a certified
Fhics public accountant in Hong Kong. Mr Kwok obtained a degree of Master of Arts in Economics
with Accountancy from The University of Aberdeen in U.K. in July 1986. He has been a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 1991 and a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland since November 1989.

Mr KWOK Chi Shing

BUIFNTES
Independent Non-executive Director
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EFNNEEZITABEIRBREZINIGETEZE > B11FEEN0I4FEEEZTA
Insurance and Financial Practitioners Alliancez Bl A 55 —BE A ; B2012EE
WICFEEZTAETBBNURERNEFBZRBELALTESTEE ; BN4EE

ATFEEE L NIFEEEHEBAFRENERHEERATIEE -

Mr LEE Kwun Kwan FHRENENTFRESEATHEEREN R RREESSESSE ; 52011
FRESEAEREERINGEEE » B2014F B RESECEPATRER S
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Mr Lee is the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the audit
committee of the Company. Mr Lee is veteran in the insurance industry of Hong Kong. Mr
Lee obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in the University of Hong Kong in 1986 and Master of
Business Administration degree in Lingnan University in 2003. Mr Lee had been appointed,
from 2005 to 2006, as the President of the General Agents and Managers Association of
Hong Kong Limited, from 2007 to 2011, as the member of Insurance Training Board of
Vocational Training Council, from 2011 to 2014, as the Founder and First Convener for the
Insurance and Financial Practitioners Alliance, from 2012 to 2016, as the member for the
Insurance Advisory Committee in the Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau of the Hong
Kong Government, and from 2014 to 2019, as the Vice President of The Life Underwriters
Association of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr Lee is also the Committee Member of Insurance Management Committee of The Hong
Kong Management Association since 2007, the President of the International Asset Planner
Association since 2011, the Vice President of Asset Management Committee, CEPA Business
Opportunities Development Alliance since September 2014, and the Deputy Convener in the
Insurance Industry Regulatory & Development Concern Group since August 2019.

BRERTNBRLZEGERENBERZEGNE - Bt ERAEBNERMRE
BRAEA  TRMBREMNEBHRZETEGBA  BERRIAARST » ERERE2LE0
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Mr Yan is the chairman of the nomination committee and a member of the audit

committee of the Company. Mr Yan is currently a practicing solicitor and a Notary Public in
EE*"J%—‘?EQE . Hong Kong. He is also the Managing Partner of ONC Lawyers. Mr Yan graduated from the
Mr YAN Sherman Chuek-ning University of London with a bachelor's degree in laws and the University of Southampton with

BIIIERITES a master's degree in maritime laws.

Independent Non-executive Director
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Milestone
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Since our first launch in Jordan, and
moving to Fa Yuen Street in Mong Kok
afterwards, the Bonjour brand has
steadily gained recognition.

EEBMERZFERLS (£
HHRIE © 653) » RNELTIEEBER
R LB EENEETBER
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Bonjour was listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
(Stock Code: 653), receiving 17 times
oversubscription for its initial public
offering. It secured the foundation of
Bonjour’s leading status in the beauty
and cosmetics industry in Hong Kong.

5 1 #8 BEwww.bonjourhk.com

HBERMELLEY TS -
www.bonjourhk.com was established
to provide online shopping platform for
customers.
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EEN11E ERES BB
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In November, the Group’s headquarters
were officially moved from To Kwa Wan
to Tsuen Wan - utilising a larger floor
area and enhanced facilities in order
to centralise operations and optimise
logistics services.

HIRBHEBSETECIR RN
B MEBE IS5t » FFIRY
YA R BB R B BT
= WS (BN IS
BRNNEREEAS LREYIRIE 0 o
Bonjour participated in the “Quality E-Shop
Recognition Scheme” organised by Hong
Kong Retail Management Association
(HKRMA). Our e-shop has passed the
comprehensive and objective assessment
and was awarded for a “Quality E-Shop
Recognition Logo”, which could effectively
enhance customers’ confidence in online
shopping.

HMEVNHERBES  £EIE
Hi8iE2,0008 EBHREOSH
B EBBITRERRE T
#Sparkle Hong Kong=s 2 & Bx
EAREAEEANLEHRTZ

o

Since the outbreak of the pandemic, The
Group has supplied over 20 million face
masks at affordable prices which gained
coverage from over 17 media and was
awarded as one of the listed companies
fulfilling CSR in Hong Kong by Sparkle
Hong Kong.
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Bonjour WeChat Mall was officially
launched to develop and strengthen
its online sales — allowing customers
to shop online at the convenience of
staying at home during a pandemic.

Bl S IRKOLE # [ » Al H9
EELTFeRNER BRTS
B $E : facebook ~ YouTube
Instagram ~ Bonjour Global ~ £
IREIREE ~ SIRNEE N R~ &
L~ R o

KOL live streaming studio was
established at Bonjour Building, which
can support simulcast at 9 different
platforms, including: facebook, YouTube,
Instagram, Bonjour Global, Bonjour Quan
Qiu Gou, Bonjour Hai Tao, Tmall, Kaola
and JD.com.

ESTEE LAUDER

Al

SIRMBERIFPONRLIRKE
BlEE T —REEM 10,0002 FF R
FOSTEE ESS TR 0 BRE
HAVREYREER

Bonjour New Retail Innovation Center
established a new retail concept store “MEI
MALL” with an area of more than 10,000
square feet at Bonjour Building to create a
whole new shopping experience.

ERIGE MmN AA
& Z£Evolut Holdings Pte. Ltd. »
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The Group invested in Evolut Holdings
Pte. Ltd., a start-up company registered
in Singapore, to develop its own business
and grasp the opportunities brought by
the rapid growth of eCommerce in the
Asian market.

& B ol 7 B0 B (R 22 4848 (CEN)
EERAE 8 EEIEERER
WEPSEETEERHRH S
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The Group became one of the highest-
level members of the Cyberport
Enterprise Network (CEN). We
preliminarily signed cooperation
agreements with five of the above
companies.

BN ERESEEREFEL
EES2E-—EMX BRE
BREE) 5 BRERRE
BN BYLEESNFINEER
MR/ N EE o M EAIRIGE SR T
Efe

The live stream team of HongKong Mall
was invited by LINK to participate in
the two-day “weekend live-streaming
eCommerce” event at Lok Fu Place
where the live stream team introduced
the outdoor facilities and small
marketplace at Lok Fu Place in the live
streaming process and interacted with
audience on the site.
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The live stream team of HongKong Mall
was invited by the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council to participate in
the live-streaming of “Fashion Shopping
Exhibition” to help exhibitors expand
online opportunities.
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SEET -8R ERBEERL
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Under the Group — Bonjour Technology
Services Limited entered into a strategic
cooperation agreement with Huawei
International Co. Limited. With the
assistance of Huawei Cloud, It will
promote the development of innovative
applications of new retail technology
services and support the transformation
and sustainable development of the
retail industry.

BEEHERERERRBISE
M EERM—ERNWBE
# > IR35] T Roborn » FutureNow
RISTEMFL2REBS BRI
The live-streaming team of HongKong
Mall was invited to participate in the
live-streaming event for the startups
in Cyberport, attracting 12 technology
companies including Roborn, FutureNow
and ISTEM.

BIRERB R AT RE NTRIF
HE CEEACENRE (2
82) 1 R FRIARE—GHEZE
KEE($REE) 1 o

Bonjour Holdings Limited was granted
“The ESG Rising Star Gold Award”
and “Outstanding ESG Company
Silver Award” in Environmental,
Social Responsibility and Corporate
Governance.

EEET - 2RBERBERA
AEPEBEHEEERAT R
ESCTERMGERCFERT
& BHRUSEEEERTE
BYEF|$E R o

Under the Group — Bonjour Technology
Services Limited entered into the 5G Retall
Integrated Development Cooperation
Framework Agreement with China Mobile
Hong Kong Company Limited pursuant
to which, the cooperation between the
two parties will be based on respective
professional expertise to promote mutual
benefit and achieve win-win results.

EEBEMBESB LRSS T
CHRIERBY R SR E AT | )&
&> HE3500KREEE K
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B\ BRHEXEHUERS
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The Group sponsored cash coupons with
a total value of HKD500,000 to the event
of “Yau Tsim Mong Shopping Festival,
Revitalize the Regional Economy”. It
cooperated with 3,500 vendors in Yau
Tsim Mong to vigorously promote the
“technology + consumption” operation
model, and helped small vendors
transform from old business models into
the new ecosystem of smart retail.
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The Group sponsored the “KOL Dream -
Set Sail” event of Lion Rock Junior Chamber
to support young people in pursuing their
dreams through eCommerce without any
startup costs.

EEET-S2IRRRERARA
EIHREHEAEIEERABE
BIFIERGE » AARIEBH
RNVEHEBEREZFARE
B (BERK  BRKREERK
BEENBE -

Under the Group — Bonjour Technology
Development Limited entered into a
strategic cooperation agreement with
China Resources Capital Investment
Management Limited. The two parties
became strategic partners and
intended to promote the upgrading
and transformation of Hong Kong’s
traditional industries, and promote the
full development of technology, capital
and industries in the Greater Bay Area.

SRR HER EEESHE S

TEMKEERENTETA
A TRETERAF —RREAKX
®qoERTEETHESE L
ERAEBETERI AV o
Bonjour Technology together with
Alibaba Cloud, won the “Best Retail
Innovation — Technology Application
Prize” for retailer group granted by the
Hong Kong Retail Technology Industry
Association.

AR W 20N
s (EHEDTRAN021) HRN

AFCEEESE X SMER
ERABREZEBELHAR
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20211 o

With its well-recognized achievements in
digital transformation, Bonjour Holdings
Limited has differentiated itself from
many quality listed companies and won
the “Outstanding Listed Companies
Award 2021” granted by the Hong
Kong Institute of Financial Analysts and
Professional Commentators.

SIRB R RHEE F AT R ER
EIRHHE BT EmEER
AR AR & > 58 JE Hetnet®
W BUSEHIN 2021824
ERHAR) 2 THREBEZTES
FIRERGZ] 218 o

Bonjour Technology won the prize for
“Outstanding All-round Smart Retail
Application Solutions” of the “Smart Living
Partnership Awards 2021” sponsored by
etnet and co-sponsored by Cyberport,
benefited from its continuous industrial
innovation and focus on developing
technologies for application in the digital
new retail for “technology + consumption”.

ERIEREYXEZENE &
A 2022 0 MUTHIHEFR
E_J KERER RETEENE
BREENARARFEE > I
HFETRREEMBAEZ L

REHEARRERNEBEER
BRSRVEE o

Mr. CHEN Jianwen, Chairman of the Group,
was invited to participate and sharing in
the “Hong Kong Economy Summit 2022”
, discuss the role of development of Hong
Kong in China with Mrs Carrie Lam Cheng
Yuet-ngor, Chief Executive of the HKSAR
and guests from political and business
circles.
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Milestone

RERIRER > WITESHEERY
THREREEFNDETERSS
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RN SR

Being nominated by the Group, our
Executive Director Ms Chiu Lai Kuen
Susanna was awarded the GBA
Outstanding Women Entrepreneur Award.
This award was to honour outstanding
women entrepreneurs in the Greater
Bay Area, and to acknowledge their
contributions to the development of the
area.

@ % WrfQd AERRIRARE 4 FEIAE BAN HIC
FHEG 5 1 2 I 8 i =
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BHELFEHGHEZZER
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Under the Group — Bonjour Technology
signed a strategic cooperation
agreement with each of Bamboos
Education and Hong Kong Federation of
Education Workers.

SINEHR - BREAEEREFRAT K
KEEZARATR ST »
TEAAREIEE T BB SRR A RA(R o
Bonjour Technology, China Resources
Capital Management Limited and Loving
Home Foundation signed a cooperation
memorandum.

EEENBEAHESFE > HEHER
HEMRINWESHELHEBEIRAK
B o AFEETELCERMHARRER
B URHREL TR RRER o

The Group has reached a Very Substantial
Disposal, by selling the premises occupied
as the Group’s headquarters to a Fund
established jointly with China Resources
Capital Management. It is adamant that such
disposal can mutually benefit both the Group
and China Resources Capital Management,
and embracing new opportunities together.

BB SR AEBE R E Suisse Reborn
Aesthetics) & » B2ETREE
B8 2% MSuisse Reborn, & h& & P9
JE R E54E ©

The first brand concept store “Suisse
Reborn Aesthetics” was opened,
followed by the establishment of “Suisse
Reborn” brand-exclusive stores and
counters in various districts.

EEBZENFLUEFRESE
ZJE TKOL - SR - 1R IEHZ1(E
ERRBETEKREEKOLEA -
BREZBFEAREGEHEES
o

The Group assisted and supported the
second session of "KOL Dream Hunter”
of the Junior Chamber International
Lion Rock by providing multiple live
streaming channels and platforms and
professional KOL tutors, which once
again encouraged young people to
participate in eCommerce live streaming.



e oz

oL -
027 % M
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HongKong Mall participated in the
“Beauty and Health Expo 2022”
organized by The Hong Kong Trade
Development Council. Serving different
merchants through the online platform
and participate in the live-streaming.

BEARAH I LEFAETCSR
RNEGLFELEEEKE)

HongKong Mall’s one-stop online
platform was honored the “Award for
Corporate Social Responsibility in
Greater Bay Area”.

EEET -EBHRERATDBE
MONFEAMAMEERLE o

Under the Group - HongKong
Mall Limited won the “Outstanding
ECommerce Platform of the Year of
2022".

SRR 2 B 2 ESMART CITY
FORUM » It 4 &SN T5GIRS E
B o

Bonjour Technology was invited to
participate in the SMART CITY FORUM
and provide 5G live streaming for the
activity.

EEﬁT—ETﬁﬂﬁHE?‘EBE
NEAREBHERRBDBE
&%%%E&%%THHENOE%M
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Under the Group — Bonjour Technology
Services Limited and HongKong Mall
Limited donated 100 sets of smart
building blocks to the Tsuen Wan and
Kwai Tsing District Principals Association.

EE 2 )X F#S ICIBEFEE
PREEEBBE SR HEIg T
BEEAMBANEBITEDE
E

The Group fully supported the promotion
of "Strategic Cooperation of CIBE China
International Beauty Expo”, and held the
sharing forum on the beauty industry
innovation and transformation and
eCommerce industry on the same day.




Milestone
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Under the Group — HongKong Mall
Limited was designated the online
sales livestreaming platform for the
“International Beauty, Education,
Wellness Expo 2022" and won the
“Awesome Entrepreneur” award.

EEEEBREERBEE
20228 B ik AR 75 (352 ) R
HEEEmFALE o

The Group was granted the “2022
Quality Tourism Service Award (Bronze)
and Outstanding Quality Business
Award” by Hong Kong Tourism Board.

2023.2.25

EEEEFS-—FIEMTFLESE

g KOL - Bl HEEE
ANEHBRTEITE  URIES
The Group sponsored the “KOL Dream
Hunter” event of Lion Rock Junior
Chamber International for the third
consecutive year to encourage young
people in trying the live commerce
industry and promoting the development
of eCommerce.

EEET— %%3 ﬁﬁﬁ’&7
TERERG T EE Fé%%ﬁal@i
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Under the Group — HK Mall Limited
held the “HongKong Mall Thanksgiving
Bazaar - Japan and South Korea”, an
offline physical activity, for the first
time and conducted cooperation with
partners to achieve mutual win-win.

2023.4.30

TEBM) e TEBEXRIFTO
BB T ETCREESSRT
rﬁgﬁﬂfﬁ EH1 0 WEIESDG

FRACERSD P A ST FFHAS o

HongKong Mall and HKIIC sponsored
venue to Cultivation of Mercy Charitable
Foundation Limited for holding the “World
Peace Chinese Calligraphy Day” event

and received recognition as supporting
organisation from SDG World Records.

2023.6.27

EEET-&EBHBRER
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Under the Group — HK Mall Limited
signed a friendly cooperation agreement
with Harbin Women Entrepreneurs
Association to promote cooperation
among enterprises.
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The Group fully supports and promotes
the "Integration into the Greater Bay Area
to “Support Dual Circulation Strategy -
Integrate into the Greater Bay Area”, and
promotes the new economic cycle with
domestic and foreign markets.

[FIARRSRMFEREN  HEFRERN
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2023.9.17
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Under the Group — Bonjour Technology
Services Limited signed a friendly
cooperation agreement with Teamwork
Creative Events Limited, promote Hong
Kong'’s cultural tourism brand.

202336

EEECESTH OB Rk
MR AREE2023) o

The Group was granted the
“Extraordinary Branding Awards
2023 - Corporate Excellence” by JCI
Queenways.

2023.11.9

ERESBRED NS IRE

M ERABIFEASZ2023) ©

The Group was granted the “IFAPC
Outstanding Listed Companies Award
2023" by IFAPC.

2023.11.21

EEET -2IREREEPOR
EAFHBARIM VIVNE ) > &%
BERERATSFERERA
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Under the Group — Bonjour Health &
Wellness Medical Centre cooperate with
‘My Little Face’ by artist Don Li and a
number of companies to formally expand
the health industry.

2023.11.22

EEET - =2RRRERBREA
&) » BiBeosin Technology Limited
BERGGIF® > HEBEEE
FHERAESTE o

Under the Group — Bonjour Technology
Services Limited signed a friendly
cooperation agreement with Beosin
Technology Limited fostering cooperation
between the two enterprises.



18 =R

HongKong Mall

FIXBIRER MFEERE

Actualizing Hong Kong’s Success Stories with Global Cross Border eCommerce

ERHD/TBBFCER > RBHEER

In order to make use of digital applications, HongKong Mall serves the

P R T R S PR A S R STUCED o A 1B supply chain and brand owners to match merchants’ brands and goods.
R Reshop R ERISHE S » S M DAHK The platform assists merchants in opening e-shops and promote branded

- merchandise, so that goods can be sold cross-border from Hong Kong
St DA 7 Al o 5 C B4t =
BRBRHERERM ; B E PR to Mainland China; at the same time, HongKong Mall introduces branded

Han o SIABAAMTHRERHEEBINT  merchandise of Mainland China into the local market in Hong Kong and
o engage in cross-border sales to overseas markets.

S-B-B-C BEHFES

| S-B-B-C eCommerce Platform |

ERHTE

Business Platform

633
Supply Chain

HEER EEER
Assisting Merchants In Achieving a Win-Win Situation

EBHEET AR A& RE) > SRIH0
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Business Consumer

HongKong Mall adheres to the principle of “No Success,
No Charge” and only charges a service fee of 3% per successful
transaction to help merchants achieve the goal of cost reduction
and efficiency enhancement. HongKong Mall also provides third-
party services for merchants, including O20 marketing, B2B sales,
data analysis, multimedia production, warehouse management and
logistics. It enables merchants to explore domestic and overseas
markets and realize the global circulation of commodities, and embark
on a dual circulation framework.

HongKong Mall provides a one-stop management system for
merchants, so that they are capable of rapidly uploading a large
number of products, as well as providing real-time insights into the
status of e-shops through various types of dashboards. In addition,
HongKong Mall provides users with the function of scanning
QR codes to receive coupons, which helps merchants carry out
promotional activities in multi-channels, thus increasing the awareness
and sales volume of the branded goods of merchants. HongKong Mall
has more than 300,000 SKUs on shelves, including skincare products,
cosmetics, electronic products, food and health supplements, etc. To
date, the number of members has exceeded 1.3 million.

\\Tﬂ
A ) 1T
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HongKong Mall Provides Diversified Promotion Channels to Bring Merchants Closer to Consumers

20235 » BEEHBSMTHEEEZ L EF/ENR
B MEEARETEEE 58 ARXRET BT AL
e o ILHINBRITIEBHRHR), BREABRTE
@& > A BIBSTE R R WeshopBEl) o FEREZE T
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BERREAEHNEKBIEBETE > BRT X
At K B sReshopdh » BREEERBBEEHRTEE
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BEMNEFTLEN  E—TERBEHERERE
o

A BBHSREBEZ LR IM 12023FXEEEIFIHE)
HongKong Mall participated in the “Beauty and Health Expo 2023”
organized by The Hong Kong Trade Development Council.

A SEHBTER EEBHRAR —HBE G TED -
HongKong Mall held the first offline activity “HongKong Mall Thanksgiving
Days - Japan and South Korea”.

In 2023, HongKong Mall participated in the “Beauty and
Health Expo” organized by The Hong Kong Trade Development
Council, providing merchants with opportunities to showcase
their branded products. Customers can purchase immediately at
the merchant’s e-shops when they experience the merchandise.
Throughout the event, one merchant spent more than HK$200,000
on sales.

As a local cross-border eCommerce platform, HongKong
Mall not only supports local merchants in setting up e-shops, but
also enables merchants to digitalize their business through the
merchant management system of HongKong Mall. In this way, we
will conduct more effective digital marketing, further implement
precise sales and expand lean management of promotion
efficiency.

M LATHE FEREE

Online and Offline Linkage to Realize Long-term Potential

IRE > AReshopB EBRHEXBLURNEE TR > EHE
REEENAEE > BRAZBNEIER - ERFHFAE
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o BERBRBARFRBEEREATES L TFAHEHMEFEBK
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At present, the opening of e-shops has become an important
element of business development for merchants. In the face of the
high cost of physical stores, customer traffic is limited by factors
such as floor area, region and season, and e-shops merchants
fill and balance the shortcomings of physical stores, so that the
products can reach more potential customers more effectively
and broadly, achieving offline experience and online transactions.
Looking ahead, HongKong Mall will maintain a positive attitude to
expand the platform and actualize Hong Kong'’s success stories.

AERESBREDNERE R
BT EMABEEAL2023) ©
The Group was granted the “IFAPC
Outstanding Listed Companies
Award 2023" by IFAPC.
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Bonjour Technology Development Limited

BEXERAFEZE—RET

Digital Operation Integration Across Industries

2R EREREAS SEUEBFCERRIE Bonjour Technology Development Limited aims to lead the
Bt DIFERRNY TS |48 TR 48 ISR » integrated development of “technology + consumption” with digital

VB TR RIS LB RIS AR ey application technology development and applied technology

L - means, build a new ecology through “industry + technology +
Fi/N 4 D 42 B 5H o M F AN
B8R~ EXAIR > MURFRAIEY - SRBRREE capital”, promote the digital transformation of enterprises, industrial

REZBHFCRRLE  BRFAENERFHE innovation, and reduce costs and improve efficiency. Bonjour

& BIRGXEGFEZSHEIFEREIE o Technology provides enterprises with a variety of digital solutions,
and achieves corporate precision marketing and improves lean
management through the integration of platform capabilities and
systems.
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Empowering Enterprises For Transformation And Innovation

SRBRABFTBHIRETERMZIE > B8
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Bonjour Technology provides platform
techBonjour Technology provides platform
technical support for HongKong Mall, and provides
enterprises with 020 service system through
HongKong Mall to help enterprises achieve 020
data operation integration and mutual resource | ————— e ———
diversion.

At the same time, in order to help the digital ~ ASRHERBERATEEE
transformation of enterprises in various industries ~ XEBERRBIHMIVEER

and industrial entrepreneurship, a catering E*_"
Bonjour Technology donated 100

managemenF system has been. cohstructeq this  cois of smart building blocks to
year to provide a comprehensive integration of the Tsuen Wan and Kwai Tsing
management systems for the catering industry, District Principals Association.
covering online procurement system, cloud pricing
system, warehouse management system, ordering
system, queuing system, reservation system, etc. ASIRER  EHEAEEARAAARBEEZER
REVETEEETE ©
Bonjour Technology, China Resources Capital

Management Limited and Loving Home Foundation
signed a cooperation memorandum.
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Integration Of Diversified Systems
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In order to help enterprises reduce costs and improve
efficiency, Bonjour Technology integrates with different systems,
including the construction of enterprise management system,
dynamic operation system, five-count system (calculating
working hours, salaries, commissions, etc.), cloud name system,
cloud price system, cloud warehouse system, etc., so as to
help enterprises improve the operating efficiency and marketing
capacity of consumers, products and locations. The products have
independent output capacity and are expected to respond to the
needs of business operations.

EREHERRIE

Future Deployment Of Bonjour Technology

SRBEABHRFCRARKMAENS I
EREEZAES  ETEEMASEEREER
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Using the means of digital application
technology development, Bonjour Technology
continues to develop system integration, including
the addition of various intelligent technologies
to make system integration more streamlined
and diversified. Bonjour Technology will keep
pace with the trend and provide customers with

customized systems to help them improve their
overall operating efficiency and reduce costs and
increase efficiency.

ASHERHAMNEESEHEET ADRRHREER MK Eetnet) Fif
EREEREEN TREZERFA  HSmart Living Partnership Awards 2021
88 o RESMGEERTER SRR

Bonjour Technology and AliCloud were
awarded the “Best Retail Innovation
Prize” granted by Hong Kong Retail
Technology Industry Association.

Edb v

Bonjour Technology was awarded the
“Outstanding Intelligent Retail All-round
Application Solution” in the Smart Living
Partnership Awards 2021 held by ETNET.
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Hong Kong Industrial Innovation Centre

B Mt I S EIR I BRI S

Building Innovative Enterprises Through The”Dual Circulation” In Guangdong And Hong Kong
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AZBREFRIZEMWCE (BMNAZEH)
Guangdong Hongkong and Macau Youth Entrepreneurship
Incubator (Guangzhou Higher Education Mega Center)

b0 1

Event Review

BASFTEBRBFRIEMCR BT ER > RFBM3IBHER
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In the past five years, the “Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Youth

B89 > BIRSIBE

Since January 2019, the Group, together with the Panyu District
Government, Haifu International Finance Holding Group and Leaguer
Group, have jointly built a Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Youth Innovation
Platform — “Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Youth Entrepreneurship
Incubator”. The incubator has two key stations respectively in Guangzhou
Higher Education Mega Center and Bonjour Tower in Tsuen Wan, Hong
Kong, with a total operating floor area of more than 200,000 square feet.
In 2022, it also became an accredited accelerator under the Cyberport
Accelerator Support Program (CASP) for innovative applications of
technologies in the digital industry.

Meanwhile, the incubator has established cooperation with 36
international and Hong Kong-Macau platforms, school institutions, industrial
institutions and financial service institutions to build a complete industry-
university-research funding system; At the same time, the Incubator is
collaborating with influential Hong Kong corporate groups and authoritative
mainland media institutions to advance the construction of a “multi-platform
+ multi-base” model, committing to support the sustainable development
of innovation and entrepreneurship in the Greater Bay Area, encompassing
Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macau.

ABRBREFRIZMCRE (SBEFRIFFL)
Guangdong Hongkong and Macau Youth Entrepreneurship Incubator (Hong Kong
Industrial Innovation Centre)

MAKEE
Support Dual Circulation Strategy - Integrate
into the Greater Bay Area

B TEEIEIR)

Entrepreneurship Incubator” has steadily developed, and a total of
318 exchange activities were conducted, of which more than half were
designed for the innovation and entrepreneurship exchange between
Hong Kong and Macao, attracting more than 44 million on-site and
online participants.

ARBEFHRERTEREBTENER &
CIBEHEI I E B S BB S FE ©

Promote youth development of the beauty and
eCommerce industry, and CIBE China International
Beauty Expo strategic cooperation ceremony.
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Support Incubation Through Cohesiveness And Exchange
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Future Development
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Innovative enterprises continued to
participate in and enter HKIIC and the Guangzhou
Higher Education Mega Center. The vigorous
development of the “Dual Circulation” in the
Greater China region has provided enterprises
with increasing business opportunities local and
overseas. In addition, the power of “industry +
technology + capital” was applied to promote the
digital transformation of traditional business.

In 2020, the Group transformed an area of 50,000 square feet in the
Bonjour Tower into the “Hong Kong Industrial Innovation Center (HKIIC)”,
which serves as a demonstration base for the innovation and transformation
of traditional industries through innovation. It will promote industrial
innovation and upgrade through sharing, incubation, acceleration, financing
facilitation, and technological empowerment.

With the cooperation of the Group’s industrial innovation organizations
such as Hong Kong eCommerce Research Institute, Bonjour New Retail
Innovation Center, Hong Kong Multi-Channel Network Production Company
Limited (MCN) and Hong Kong KOL Incubator, apart from supporting
the development of the Group’s business, these setups also develop our
capability to provide services to external parties, offering diverse event
venue and technical support, fostering collaboration among various
corporate entities, and enabling comprehensive acceleration of industrial
innovation.

AN
TRANE

KOL - Z=iEffL
KOL Dream + Hunter

YEI MERII) SRhEIESD
YEI TZRAH0 brand event

BERNEEEFEXTFLAMSE
Guangdong - Hong Kong - Macao Greater Bay
Area Beauty Industry Youth Entrepreneurship

Seminar
ASEE=FXRHMFLUEERE TKOL - Hi ERREARES) > WABINEXEE - AZHIIRIE TR BRANRMSHAEENEE
fll o BB FASEEHITERERTS ° eCommerce and capital innovation interaction as ~ SEAAEEABIFELHNER ©

The Group sponsored the “KOL Dream * Hunter”
event of Lion Rock Junior Chamber for the third year to
encourage young people to try the eCommerce industry
and live streaming commerce.

to the way to help industrial transformation.

Opportunities and Challenges in the New Global
Environment Signing Ceremony of the High-end
Forum and the Greater Bay Area Youth Talent
Cultivation Program.
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Bonjour Health & Wellness Medical Centre

INaE A2 RAEZFIRIE

Strengthening the Health Industry Segment
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Leveraging its rich experience in the beauty retail
industry, the Group is creating a new brand in the health
sector. This brand integrates "regenerative beauty," "medical
healthcare," and "health check-ups," combining beauty,
wellness, intelligence, and medical expertise. The most
advanced wellness technologies and products are served
to customers at the fastest pace. The group is committed
to providing comprehensive health management services
at the Bonjour Health & Wellness Medical Centre, including
regenerative medicine, anti-aging treatments, various health
check-ups, vaccine administration, telemedicine consultations
abroad, facial rejuvenation procedures, medical aesthetics
and skincare, lifestyle beauty programs, traditional Chinese
massage therapy, and sales of health and wellness products
and consultation.

HikAddress :
HRSRE B B 2855 F B —HR24182402F
Room 2402, 24/F, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road, Causeway Bay
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Collaborating with Top International Medical Groups
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To order to provide customers with a comprehensive range
of high-quality medical services, the Group has partnered with
authoritative doctors and medical teams across various overseas
domains, thereby creating a diverse offering of medical services.
Furthermore, the Group has established collaborations with
renowned international medical groups, including BBT Bruton
Biotechnology Company Limited, the Japanese Institute of Mutual
Medicine, BBTF Mutual Life, Dexin Medical Company Limited,
United Medical Services Company Ltd., Suisse Reborn Switzerland,
and Just Care Specialist Medical Centre, among others. In 2023,
the Group collaborated with “My Little Face,” operated by Don
Li, a male Hong Kong celebrity and specialist in Japanese-style
facial contouring techniques. The inclusion of these professional
teams into Bonjour Health & Wellness Management Center will
contribute to Bonjour’s integration and expansion, as well as the
establishment of a comprehensive ecosystem of health services.
This expansion aims to reach overseas markets such as the Greater
Bay Area, Mainland China, and Southeast Asia, thereby creating a
comprehensive landscape in Bonjour’s health industry.
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Keepmg Pace With The Times And Committing To Capturing Market Demand
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Overall, both lifestyle beauty services and professional
medical aesthetic services have promising development prospects
in the market. The growing emphasis placed by consumers on
their appearance and personal image will fuel the demand for
these services. Nevertheless, market competition is anticipated to
intensify. Therefore, the group remains committed to enhancing
service quality and offering innovative solutions to meet the
evolving needs of consumers.
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The Group was proudly awarded Local and International Awards
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The Group is one of the leading eCommerce Platform and Beauty Retail Group in Hong Kong and proudly obtained local

and international awards.

4318 Awards

£ T Issuing Organizations

Fré itk om b2 1 2E K HE 2023

Extraordinary Branding Awards 2023 — Corporate Excellence

EHATFEASE2023

IFAPC Outstanding Listed Companies Award 2023

2022 B E B B IE (SR5E)

2022 Outstanding QTS Merchant Award (Bronze Award)
I5SEEREBEEP

15-year QTS-accredited

RIE-HE s CEBRTEME(ER) R
Rl K 8E — R R AR (SRER)

Special ESG Awards — The ESG Rising Star Gold Award & Special Awards
(Criteria set by Fund Managers) — Outstanding ESG Company Silver Award

REAIZER

Awesome Entrepreneur

SHAMEEKRIT022/FEERSHEF TS

Most Innovative Enterprise Award 2022/
Star-level Excellent eCommerce Platform of the Year

BEREDE T

Quality E-Shop Recognition Scheme

= BT EE 8
Trust E-shop Recognition Scheme

IEBEH CXHEREERT
“Sparkle Hong Kong” CSR in Hong Kong Award
ERRBEBELEERBGR
Hong Kong’s Most Valuable Companies Services Awards
BEHQEEBHEMR
The Hong Kong Q-Mark Service Scheme Certificate

IERRIE &% G5t &

No Fakes Pledge Scheme

BERERF &

Quality Tourism Services Scheme

BRIRE %M+ F AR

Hong Kong Top Service Brand Ten Years Achievement Award

DNesRER/NEREE

Best Listed SMEs in Asia

Ly o

==k A

23y 29%
ot o

ERRMRETR

Consumer’s Most Favorable Hong Kong Brands

BHEANE

28 vy oumsy e
T

KRB

KEEFHEg

JCI Queenways

BEREDMEMHE

The Hong Kong Institute of Financial Analysts and
Professional Commentators Ltd.

BERERBHE

Quality Tourism Services

BEHRERBHE

Quality Tourism Services

P

RIBHEREXEREE

Institute of ESG & Benchmark

By

BERER - 5 - KERBE

International Beauty-Education-Best Expo

BUSINESS INNOVATOR

BEEATECERE
Hong Kong Retail Management Association
BEATECERE

Hong Kong Retail Management Association

Fortune Insight

Mediazone Group

BEREERER

Hong Kong Q - Mark Council

M EEE

Intellectual Property Department
BERREERER

Hong Kong Tourism Board
ERAmMEERE

Hong Kong Brand Development Council

B

Forbes
RE(BINEEEERE

China Enterprise Reputation and Credibility Association
Consumer’s Most Favorable Hong Kong Brands (Overseas)

o Forbes
- —




#3%I8 Awards

KR T Issuing Organizations

BEBEHEER

Hong Kong Merchant of Integrity

BHCHERESER

Quality Cosmetics & Beauty Group

i E iR

The Excellence of Listed Enterprise Awards

BASHERF AL

Capital Weekly Services Award

R ERIEAR

Outstanding Corporate Strategy Awards

BERERE miE

The Best for Home

104 Plusig 57 R R R

10 Years Plus Caring Company

BHBFHEEKE

Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprises Parade

REEERRARE

Outstanding Corporate Image Award

DSAfEHHEEH B A8

Distinguished Salesperson Award (DSA)

Yahoo! /& 15 o i A 8%

Yahoo! Emotive Award

EAEREDmME

The Premier Brand in Hong Kong

R EE e

Business Excellence Awards

DNEEERTERE MM AL

Asian Outstanding Business Achievement Awards

TAREFEFHEIEARE

Top 10 eCommerce Website Awards

REAL

Honorable Award

FETEIMUAL

Industry Super Retailer of the Year

EREEBHAR-—RUEETE2HURAAR

Smart Living Partnership Awards — Outstanding All-round Smart Retail Application

Solution

RETERIM — R EAAR

Grand Award Use of Technology — Best Retail Innovation (Application - Retailer)

APEFHHEBREALE

100% HK Branding Award

® PRI h 3
TREDRE) 3, % .b‘
&Consumer H 2
ring 22(6-(9 3 &
'7 " @é‘ HEWRT T0 HEWRT
By GS1 Hong Kang #BEEREES IER5 GOMPRHYT

EM B
Guangzhou Daily

BEASHE

Capital Weekly

BEASHE

Capital Weekly

BEASHE

Capital Weekly

RIBT

East Week

#7E H ¥R — Take Me Home

Hong Kong Economic Times - Take Me Home

EBMERTGHE

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

BE—B
Economic Digest

TVBE T

TVB Weekly

EBEEEXHE

The Hong Kong Management Association

WRE R

Yahoo! Hong Kong

- KREEEE
GD. QQ. COM / FASHION / HK

ERABEFEXETERL
'éhetProfesswnal Validation Centre of Hong Kong Business
ector

DNEEERHE

Asian Hair & Beauty Association

BEERERREHE/ DNTERES
GS1 Hong Kong / Retail Asia Expo

HRCHEMEERE

The Cosmetic and Perfumery Association of Hong Kong

DNEERES
Retail A3|a Expo

B
etnet
EETENEBE

Hong Kong Retail Technology Industry Association

APERREEHE

Greater-China Association of Branding Industry

8 w
G &-shop
EEREERE

mAsen
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Public Welfare and Environmental Protection Activities

ERERREF 2 BIR2HEE

Enm  BRMMEEEEETES) > SRS NE

S50 0 By o SEFHERER o

In addition to developing business, the Group actively participates in charitable, environmental and socially responsible corporate
activities, endeavours to contribute to the society, to support SMEs and join hands with them to overcome difficult times.

JEE) Activities 18 Organizations
REFSEEREER NEERRHE

Amity and Benevolence Charity Night Kowloon Women'’s Organisations Federation
SR x EEEREEHT EREzg

Bonjour x Shine Tak Charity Hiking Shme Tak Foundation

PEARKEE RS BEEA+FE

Charity Sale for Disaster Relief in China

BINESHE

Charter on External Lighting

BEIVEERBATEEREZFEYHERRE
Donated 100 sets of Smart Building Blocks to The Association of Heads of Kindergardens
of Tsuen Wan, Kwai Chung & Tsing Yi District

B TERZFEE XFEBEICENRENRHE

Donated 100,000 Rapid Test Kits with Futu Securities International (HONG KONG) Limited

RETEREREESHEERBRERSTEMES

Donation to the school for the purchase of mobile learning equipment and the development
of STEM education

TTERMEL RIFHE

Industry Cares Recognition Scheme

M5 - 8171 —REBEERERNRE

“Light Up-Charity”Po Leung Kuk Flag Selling Donation Box

BEEERARS TREXESEYTROEES)
Pandemic-prevention Supplies Donated to the “Law’s Foundation Child Care Centre cum
Hostel”

MAL R Bn

Pink Revolution

BRERBLEMNFE

Plastic Resources Recycling Partnership

RIE-HE s bEEREENMESRERFFRARZIRE
The ESG Rising Star (Gold) & Special Awards (Silver)

RITEENEE

Trailwalker Fund Raising Event

NEEA=E

Walk for Millions

TERBAR@AKIH

Walk for Nature

106 Plus 7 ERAE

10 Years Plus Caring Company

2023t FRMFEEHR
2023 World Peace Chinese Calligraphy Day

Hong Kong Red Cross

RIER

Environment Bureau

EEREFEHHERRES
The Association of Heads of Kindergardens of Tsuen
Wan, Kwai Chung & Tsing Yi District

ERHELFERIAIBEFTHLO
Hong Kong Federation of Education Workers TechEd
Centre

CBEBREITENE
Y.C.H. Choi Hin To Primary School

BERIERS

Federation of Hong Kong Industries

REB

Po Leung Kuk

AR
Yan Chai Hospital

BEREEREEE

Hong Kong Cancer Fund

CEERFE

Yan Oi Tong EcoPark

RIBHEREEER

Institute of ESG & Benchmark

wmg

BRHENG

Oxfam Hong Kong

BEBNTE
The Community Chest of Hong Kong

HEREAEEEEED G

WWEF (Hong Kong)

BEELERFTHE

The Hong Kong Council for Social Service

BIIREESS
Cultivation of Mercy Charitable Foundation
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(S EEBS 1 (in HKS thousand's unless

Five-Year Financial and Operational Summary

“E-hE C—B-%F - —T--fF —E=fF

FETHE) otherwise specified) 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
(Restated)
(=& 5)
= Turnover 1,458,828 538,788 626,991 185,662 950,271
EF Gross profit 490,443 173,095 49,960 33,754 63,052
EVilE Gross profit margin 33.62% 32.13% 7.97% 18.18% 6.64%
A/ (518) Operating profit/(loss) (71,449) (217,302) (176,786) 199,113 67,992
mesd) / (5548) ¥ Operating profit/(loss) margin (4.90)% (40.33)% (28.20)% 107.24% 7.16%
FERAN/ (5B) Profit/(loss) for the year (130,621) (258,423) (216,078) 167,221 53,971
UTEFELEE Profit/(loss) for the year

wHL (BE) attributed to;

—ARBHEEAN - Owners of the Company (129,648) (255,734) (216,738) 167,221 53,971

— R ER - Non-controlling interests (973) (2,689) 660 - -
SHEMD®R /BEF,/  Return on sales/

E)ES Net profit/(loss) margin (8.95)% (47.96)% (34.47)% 90.07% 5.68%
HEES Working capital (253,121) (98,330) (55,339) (169,740) (52,994)
EEHEE Total assets 1,539,638 1,027,546 699,043 505,407 504,108
BEER Total liabilities 1,104,212 858,998 696,256 350,019 221,872
LT & AL @ Total equity attributed to: 435,426 168,548 2,787 155,388 282,236

—ARBHEEAN - Owners of the Company 436,298 172,166 2,787 155,388 282,236

— R ER - Non-controlling interests (872) (3,618) - - -
BEBERR Return on total assets (8.42)% (24.89)% (31.000% 33.09% 10.71%
MRk Return on total equity (29.72)% (148.54)%  (7,776.75)% 107.62% 19.12%
HEFEES (B) Inventory turnover on sales (days) 47 66 61 34 54
BEBEREELEIEA  Total labilities to total equity 2.54 5.10 249.8 2.25 0.79
ERTENEBY Total number of retail stores in

Hong Kong 33 22 9 8 5
BESENEBY Total number of retail stores in
Macau 3 2 2 2 1
HEARHA Total number of retail stores
(THhE)) RS E in the Mainland Area of the
DIEEE People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC” or “China’) 1 0 0 0 0

Annual Report 2023
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BONJOUR

Corporate Information

Board of Directors (“Directors”)
Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Jianwen (Chairman)

Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel (Vice-Chairman)
Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kwok Chi Shing

Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan

Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning

Audit Committee

Mr. Kwok Chi Shing (Chairman)

Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan

Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning
Remuneration Committee

Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan (Chairman)

Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel

Mr. Kwok Chi Shing

Nomination Committee

Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning (Chairman)
Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel

Mr. Kwok Chi Shing

Authorised Representatives

Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel
Mr. Wong lu Ming

Company Secretary

Mr. Wong lu Ming

Independent Auditor

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited

Certified Public Accountants and Registered Public Interest
Entity Auditor
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REEM (&) Corporate Information (continued)
EEEM Legal Adviser

IR E K REENE P Kok & Ha Solicitors

o 0 it 5 R Registered Office

Windward 3 Windward 3

Regatta Office Park Regatta Office Park

P.O. Box 1350 P.O. Box 1350

Grand Cayman, KY1-1108 Grand Cayman, KY1-1108
Cayman lIslands Cayman Islands
ERERRTESE M Head Office and Principal Place of Business
EBERE 12/F., Bonjour Tower

BB FE36-509% No. 36-50 Wang Wo Tsai Street
BIRKE+IZE Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong

EEE [ (+852) 2872-2872 Telephone: (+852) 2872-2872

BHE (+852) 2872-2873 Facsimile: (+852) 2872-2873
TEFRET Principal Bankers
BAIRITAERAS Hang Seng Bank Limited

FREET (F8) BRAE Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
FETEIRTT CEF) BB BRAR Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
LEmERTERRE Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited
BEFEBERTBERAR Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited

Annual Report 2023
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corporate@bonjourhk.com
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Suntera (Cayman) Limited

(RITB %A

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited)
Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3
Building D, P.O. Box 1586
Gardenia Court, Camana Bay
Grand Cayman, KY1-1110
Cayman lIslands
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BONJOUR

Information for Investor

Company Website

Company Information
http://corp.bonjourhk.com

Online Shopping Web
www.bonjourhk.com
www.hongkongmall.com

E-mail Address
corporate@bonjourhk.com
Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Suntera (Cayman) Limited (formerly known
as SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited)

Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3

Building D, P.O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court, Camana Bay

Grand Cayman, KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F.

Two Chinachem Exchange Square
338 King’s Road

North Point

Hong Kong

Financial Calendar

Interim Results Announcement : 30 August 2023
Financial year end : 31 December 2023
Annual Results Announcement : 28 March 2024
Annual General Meeting (the “AGM”) : 26 June 2024
Important Dates

: 19 June 2024 to

26 June 2024
(both days inclusive)

Closure of Register of Members

Stock Code

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong : 653
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

Board lot : 2,000 shares



MmN

BONJOUR
EEENRROH

EFER

e BERIERBRERAT (KAF)) KE
MBAR #EBIalR o [AER))
BE_T_=—F+-RA=+—H
FE+Z@E (TFER)) SXEAS
950,300,000 5 & & - —
#Y185,700,0008 oG MN#4J412% ©

. FEREHNHN%A54,000,000% 7T
(ZE -4 :4167,200,0008

= — —

7o) °

o MWEERIBESTYR MLEF B
EERABT% - EZEBF - BERERE
REERMNLERTENENEX
AT72% (ZB 4 :38%) &}
FEROMLBEEFNEXELZ2% (ZF
T I5%)

e BREMB/1.SBM(ZZEZC
F 1 4.8H1) -

. W _E_ZF+_RBA=+—H"
FEBREBRBPAEHKEES
(ZEZZF 1 10) BAZEEE-

— = —

TS E

BE#HstE (THRtELT) A MmN
ST F2FTEEARL070EB T
(ZE -4 :3,50087) >4
B _EZ - _FEM16.2%KkEE
BIN13.8%  REFBEEFTBRELERW
HE —ZE_ZFHNHBETER
#34,000,000 A (ZE - & :
605,000A ) "E—REFEZHRN
EARAHEGHERENBEBICERIEE
BEto

BAHBEGLORFEERE  BH
REXEENTEEME FHE2TEH
MEEEREBUREERTREHE
TEHERREAE AZHEHEEHIH
ERER-BEBARIIBERTTHEHER
e BEBTZARBAE AR
EENMESMEAFZ -FEBEERML
FIRINKRBHINRER EABE 8
KM TEHE -

Management Discussion and Analysis

Annual Results

o Bonjour Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “Bonjour” or the “Group”) turnover for the twelve
months ended 31 December 2023 (“the Year”) amounted to
approximately HK$950.3 million, representing an increase of
approximately 412% from HK$185.7 million in 2022,

° Profit for the Year was approximately HK$54.0 million (2022:
approximately HK$167.2 million).

° Overall gross profit growth was 87%, however the operating
profit margin was reported as 7%. Gross profit margin for
wholesaling and retailing of beauty, healthcare and lifestyle
products was 72% (2022: 38%) and wholesaling of technology
products was 2% (2022: 5%).

° Earnings per share was HK1.5 cents (2022: HK4.8 cents).

° As at 31 December 2023, the Group operated a total of 6
(2022: 10) retail stores in Hong Kong and Macau.

Market Overview

The full year retail sales in 2023 released by the Census and
Statistics Department (“Statistics”) was HK$407 billion (2022:
HK$350 billion), increased by 16.2% in value and 13.8% in volume
over 2022, given the relative low base in 2022. According to the
Hong Kong Tourism Board, the total number of visitors to Hong
Kong in 2023 amounted to 34 million (2022: 605,000), the rebound
was mainly driven by resurgence in tourism after re-opening between
Hong Kong and the Chinese border.

While consumer sentiment remains relatively steady, majority of
consumers were more cautious about spending due to the global
economic uncertainties, especially attributed to China’s slow
economic recovery and the underperformance of Hong Kong’s
equity and real estate markets. Hong Kong faced the challenges in
attracting visitors, including appreciation of the Hong Kong dollar
against the Renminbi, regional competition and changing spending
patterns of incoming visitors. Hong Kong residents “tripping north”
to Shenzhen and travelling overseas have also become a growing
trend that impacted local retail sales.

Annual Report 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Market Overview (continued)

Looking ahead to 2024, consumers feel some pressure and are
cautiously about the economy recovery and plan their purchases
more on essential items. However, the Group is still optimistic about
the outlook for the retail industry as the Greater Bay Area continues
to provide opportunities. Digital eCommerce is expected to continue
to grow. This is the digital future for the Group to adopt and offer
opportunities to local and international merchants by quickly pivoting
and innovating new, convenience and tactile shopping experiences.

The Group will continue its core focus of retail transformation in
the alignment with the strategic imperatives and the deployment
of a network-based global omnichannel system, which include
the coordination among customer channels, efficient operational
processes, easy of payment methods and supply chain
management, Through the customer-centric ordering portal, effective
electronic payment and efficient supply chain management, HKMall
eCommerce is able to meet the changing consumer needs on
diverse brands and more personalised shopping experience.

Business Review

The Group commenced its business transformation since early
2020 and has digitally transformed into a new business ecosystem
leverging on “Technology + Consumption”. On the product side,
the Group expanded the product range from pure cosmetics
products to ‘Beauty, Health & Lifestyle products, enhancing
consumers experience including extension to cover technology
products. In terms of operations, the Group has leveraged on
technology innovation to transform the traditional retail business
to a new ecosystem, of which the Group and all stakeholders
including consumers, merchants and suppliers will benefit. This is
achieved by (1) establishing an 020 system integrating offline with
online operations to enhance consumers’ shopping experience (2)
establishing a global eCommerce platform ‘HKMALL (F#E5) to
serve Hong Kong merchants as well as overseas brands across 34
countries over 44 market platforms. (3) establishing an ecosystem to
assist Hong Kong small and medium enterprises (SMEs) to digitally
transform their traditional business into new business models.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EHOE (&)

Business Review (continued)
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New Retail 020: HKMall (& #5#)

Consumer behaviour post-COVID has altered significantly,
Consumers have turned to online shopping instead of going
out to physical stores. International retail brands have also
switched their focus to online sales. The Group was well aware
of this trend and have made transformation plans. Since 2020
and continuing into 2023, the Group strategically optimised the
number of retail stores and underperforming stores were closed
for better cost control. As of 31 December 2023, the Group
operated 6 physical retail stores in Hong Kong and Macau. The
Group switched focus to online retail though expanding cross-
border eCommerce platform “HKMall”. The Group will continue
to leverage on technology to enhance the shopping experience
of consumers to improve sales.

The Group applied various leading new retail technologies,
including live streaming, intelligent shopping guide, smart push,
image search, voice search, and data bank, to its eCommerce
platform Bonjour HKMALL (F7#E%#) (“HKMALL”), which greatly
enhanced the online shopping experience for customers.

HKMALL is an omni-channel eCommerce platform that not
only sells products and branded merchandises with exclusive
distributorship rights, but also assists small and medium
enterprises (SMEs) in expanding their sales network via
HKMALL efficiently and effectively to markets in the Greater
Bay Area and overseas countries. The Group sells authentic
goods, and offers SMEs an easy way of payment settlement,
logistics support and data services, providing a fast track to
SMEs to digitally transform their businesses. HKMALL covered
34 countries including the UK, the US, Canada, Australia,
France and Singapore, across 44 market platforms in mainland
China and overseas, including Tmall Global, Kaola, JD.com,
Facebook and WeChat Mall etc.

Annual Report 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

E#HOE (&)

Business Review (continued)
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New Retail 020: HKMall (F#35#) (continued)

With the fast rise of the KOL economy, the Group has its own
direct broadcasting studio with an area of over 10,000 sq.
ft. for KOLs to conduct sales on social media. As a result,
the Group is able to enhance the interaction of consumer
experience and customer loyalty, while accumulating online
subscriptions and “Likes” to boost its turnover. The group
also collaborated with various association to launch open
competitions to nurture external KOLs. The gross merchandise
value (GMV) of completed orders on 020 platform (including
beauty products and technology products) amounted to
approximately HK$1.7 billion for the Year.

Currently, the Group offers over 300,000 SKUs, and distributes
over 100 well-known brands, including, exclusive distribution
of Suisse Reborn, Dr. Bauer, Yumei, WOWWOW, Dr. Schafter
and |.Skin Focus. Apart from skincare, fragrance, cosmetics,
haircare and body-care, the Group also sourced healthcare
and life style products all over the world. A variety of quality
products are offered at competitive prices. The Group
continuously pays close attention to the market trends and
consumer behavior, and research on latest hot items to satisfy
the ever-changing customers’ needs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Business Review (continued)

Industry Innovation: HKIIC

Apart from its own development, the Group is also committed
to providing SMEs with the best eCommerce services and
all-rounded intelligent retail solutions, helping businesses
to transform to digital and traditional industries to innovate.
The Group not only supports businesses to streamline costs
and improve efficiency, but also empowers customers to
achieve operational excellence through the flexible use of the
capabilities of the Bonjour Technology platform.

To enable traditional business to transform to new business
models, the Group has established the “Hong Kong Industry
Innovation Centre” (HKIIC), which aims to support the
digital transformation of business by combining “industry +
technology + capital”. The HKIIC also serves as the Hong
Kong site of the “Guangdong Hongkong and Macau Youth
Entrepreneurship Incubator”, offering one-stop services for
office sharing, start-up incubation and acceleration, financing
facilitation and ecosystem development. Both the Guangdong
Hongkong and Macau Youth Entrepreneurship Incubator
and the Hong Kong site were approved for inclusion into the
Cyberport Accelerator Support Programme (CASP) as an
accelerator recognised by Cyberport.

HKIIC has entered cooperation agreements with many strong
strategic partners including China Resources, HK Federation
of Education Workers, HK Science and Technology Youth
Federation, Harbin Women Entrepreneurs Association, and
in Panyu with Guangdong, Hongkong and Macau Youth
Entrepreneurship Incubator to establish a “GBA Incubation
Base for Beauty Industry” in collaboration with China
International Beauty Expo (CIBE).

Annual Report 2023
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BONJOUR

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Business Review (continued)

Beauty: Exploring “Comprehensive Health” Business

During the Year, the Group expanded beauty services to
cover health services led by experienced experts in the sector
through the brand-new “Bonjour Health & Wellness Medical
Centre” which will offer one-stop new experience of healthy
lifestyle and beauty to customers. The Group actively explored
the possibility of expanding into the “Comprehensive Health”
business under the development approach of “Beauty, Health
& Beautiful Life”. Bonjour Health Limited (“Bonjour Health”),
an associate of the Group, commenced strategic business
discussion with leading health and aesthetic medical experts
in Hong Kong to develop “Comprehensive Health” services.
The Group expects to capture enormous opportunities in
markets across the Greater Bay Area and even Asia with quality
“Comprehensive Health” services.

Bonjour Technology

Based on the new concept of “Beauty, Health & Beautiful
Life”, the Group has been actively promoting “technology +
consumption” since 2020 leading the new 5G digital economy.
The Group has upgraded from a traditional beauty industry
retailer to a global eCommerce company, and is committed
to provide consumers with international general merchandise
products and professional services, as well as to provide the
best quality of eCommerce services for Hong Kong’s small and
medium-sized enterprises.

Bonjour Technology, a subsidiary of the Company supported
by the industrial digital innovation platform, has developed
major businesses such as big data integration, industrial
innovation incubation service, and science and technology
investment, providing Hong Kong’s incubation of science and
technology with platform support through the accumulation
of various innovative resources, which in turn help realise the
industrialization of scientific and technological achievements,
and the strategic policy of Hong Kong industry going global.
Bonjour Technology has entered cooperation agreements with
many leading technology players including Beosin Technology
Limited on cyber governance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Business Review (continued)

3C Product Business

Bloomberg 2023 smartphone survey reported that 79% Gen Z
smartphone users prefer iphone over other competitive models.
Market research showed that Apple captures over 50% of
market share with a penetration rate of almost 97% in Hong
Kong and iPhone sales is expected to grow at 7% per year
with modest price increases.

Since 2021, Bonjour Group made a strategic move to capture
the growth potentials of 3C product through expanding
our market reach in trading technology products. The 3C
product business uses a cost-plus pricing strategy for B2B
business model. The robust revenue growth in 2023 strives
Bonjour Group’s confidence on continuous exploration of
new business model in the sustainable growth of selling new
products, hence ensuring a stable profit for the Group. In 2024,
economists have lowered their assessments of recession risk
on technology markets segment. The Group remains very
optimistic on the technology products to achieve modest
growth.

In the 3C product business, the Group acted as a “Principal”
bearing transaction risks. As a reputable brand owner and
value-added partner, the Group operates as a strategic and
value-added party to the 3C product business. The Group’s
reputation not only ensures a wider customer base for
consumer products but also provides assurance to relevant
suppliers and customers when securing orders.

Annual Report 2023
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BONJOUR

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Outlook

S&P Global Ratings expects that retail sales in China will experience
a modest growth of 4.2% in 2024. In contrast, Hong Kong is
projected to see a 5% year-on-year growth, primarily driven by sub-
categories such as department stores, medicines and cosmetics,
and luxury goods. Despite the potential impact of global economic
challenges on consumer spending for non-essential goods, tourism
remains a crucial driver for retail business growth in Hong Kong. The
government is actively launching campaigns and initiatives to attract
visitors to the city. To facilitate comfortable and confident shopping
experiences for tourists, the Group has obtained relevant licenses
and transformed over 15,000 sq ft of its premises—Bonjour Tower—
into product display showrooms. The company has also collaborated
with tour groups and agencies to provide tourists with a peace of
mind while shopping.

ECommerce has transitioned from being a growth opportunity
to an essential aspect, emphasising the importance of building
strong consumer engagement and delivering exceptional customer
experiences. Bonjour Group will continue to prioritise investments
in its eCommerce platform, HKMall, which goes beyond being
a simple online shop. HKMall has established an omnichannel
shopping ecosystem that integrates sales management and supply
chain networks. This allows merchants to set up their own e-shops
and upload product catalogs to sell merchandise online. HKMall
offers SMEs a valuable opportunity to adopt a consumer-centric
strategy and operate their own e-shops, providing consumers with
one-stop services that combine innovative product offerings with
digital innovation. It serves as a pathway for SMEs in Hong Kong
to rapidly transform their traditional businesses into new digital
models. By leveraging omnichannel data and analytics, merchants
become partners of the Group and gain the ability to sell high-value
merchandise to 34 countries across 44 global market platforms.

Digital transformation applies not only to front-line operations but
also extends to internal transaction processing. By leveraging
technology, internal processes and structures can be streamlined,
resulting in increased efficiency. This helps control overall costs
and generates higher value per employee. Additionally, embracing
digital and paperless transactions contributes to the organization’s
environmental sustainability efforts by reducing the consumption
of physical resources. The Group will continue to invest in and
collaborate with technology partners to provide an enhanced
shopping experience for customers on both physical and online
platforms.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Outlook (continued)

On the product front, the Group will continue its transformation from
a traditional retailer of beauty products to a new business ecosystem
that offers a full range of products in “Beauty, Health & Lifestyle,”
including technology products. This diversification of products aims
to cater to evolving consumer needs and create a better life for
all. The Group will also continue nurturing sole agency brands and
private labels. This diversification strategy helps to mitigate risks and
enhance profitability in the revenue portfolio.

With the support of the HKMall global eCommerce platform and a
wide spectrum of products, the Group plans to expand its reach
into the Greater Bay Area (GBA) and other parts of Asia, enabling
the sale of quality products in the GBA and facilitating the export
of Mainland merchandise to overseas markets through the HKMall
platform.

In conclusion, Bonjour is well-positioned to seize timely opportunities
for economic recovery and collaborate with strategic partners in
global eCommerce development, leveraging the combination of
“Technology + Consumption + Capital” to provide increased returns
to its shareholders.

Given the improved profit prospects of the Group and the
objective of returning value to shareholders, the board of directors
(the “Board”) has decided to implement a dividend policy that
includes the distribution of bonus shares or cash dividends,
subject to specific conditions. This approach aims to maximise the
enhancement of shareholders’ equity.
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BONJOUR

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review
Overview

The pandemic upended lives and livelihoods across the globe,
significantly reshaping consumer landscape and spending behaviors.
Mckinsey latest insights reported that technology has conditioned
consumers to get whatever they want and over 50% of consumers
reporting a desire to spend mainly on traveling, entertainment
and health-related products. Greatly influenced by social media,
eCommerce accelerates the online digital marketplace to connect with
consumers through delivering personalised services and solutions.

The Group turnover achieved approximately HK$950.3 million,
representing 412% growth (2022: approximately HK$185.7 million).
Despite the shop sales declined by 20%, the sales of technology
products increased by 7 times than 2022 and eCommerce business
increased by 2%. The Group’s cross border eCommerce platform
HKMall was well placed to capture this ‘New Normal’. Overall gross
profit growth was 87%, however the operating profit margin was
reported as 7%. Gross profit margin for wholesaling and retailing
of beauty, healthcare and lifestyle products was 72% (2022: 38%)
and wholesaling of technology products was 2% (2022: 5%). The
Group’s profit for the Year was approximately HK$54.0 million
(2022: approximately HK$167.2 million), comprising a gain on
deconsolidation of a subsidiary of approximately HK$103.0 million
(2022: gain on disposal of subsidiaries of approximately HK$350.0
million).

Bank and cash balance as at 31 December 2023 amounted to
approximately HK$16.1 million (31 December 2022: approximately
HK$17.9 million). Net current liabilities decreased from approximately
HK$169.7 million as at 31 December 2022 to approximately HK$53.0
million as at 31 December 2023. The current ratio of the Group
was also increased from approximately 0.36 as of 31 December
2022 to approximately 0.64 as at 31 December 2023 as a result of
repayments of former related parties and certain litigations and claims
were deemed to be settled upon the completion of deconsolidation of
a subsidiary. Management of the Group has active plans to improve
the financial results leveraging on digital transformation to achieve
ultimate profitability as well as long term sustainable growth for the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review (continued)
Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s cash and bank deposits
amounted to approximately HK$16.1 million (31 December 2022:
approximately HK$17.9 million). The Group’s bank and other
borrowings and lease liabilities as at 31 December 2023 were
approximately HK$116.5 million (31 December 2022: approximately
HK$138.3 million), out of which, approximately HK$43.2 million (31
December 2022: approximately HK$53.4 million) were repayable
within next 12 months. As at 31 December 2023, among the current
liabilities of approximately HK$147.4 million (31 December 2022:
approximately HK$264.1 million), approximately HK$27.9 million was
related to lease liabilities (31 December 2022: HK$31.3 million) and
approximately HK$15.3 million (31 December 2022: approximately
HK$22.1 million) was related to bank and other borrowings.

The Group’s net debt ratio as at 31 December 2023 was greatly
improved at approximately 0.4 (31 December 2022: approximately
0.9), and was calculated based on the Group’s bank and other
borrowings and lease liabilities divided by total equity of approximately
HK$282.2 million (31 December 2022: approximately HK$155.4
million). Total liabilities to total equity ratio as at 31 December 2023
was approximately 0.8 (31 December 2022: approximately 2.3). The
current ratio as at 31 December 2023 was approximately 0.64 (31
December 2022: approximately 0.36). The Group services its debt
primarily through the cash earned from its business operations.
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BONJOUR

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review (continued)
Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)

Net cash outflow from operating activities for the Year was
approximately HK$59.0 million (2022: approximately HK$113.3
million). The profit before tax was approximately HK$54.6 million
(2022: approximately HK$164.5 million). The total amount of non-
cash items amounting to approximately HK$105.9 million (2022:
approximately HK$280.2 million) mainly comprise of depreciation
expense, gain on deconsolidation of a subsidiary and gain on
disposal of subsidiaries which resulted a net increase in working
capital of approximately HK$3.1 million (2022: approximately
HK$34.6 million).

Net cash inflow from investing activities for the Year was
approximately HK$6.7 million (2022: approximately HK$447.3
million), which mainly represented proceeds from disposal of a
subsidiary, proceeds from disposal of the financial assets at FVTOCI
and advances to associates and related companies.

Net cash inflow from financing activities for the Year was
approximately HK$50.4 million (2022: Net cash outflow of
approximately HK$358.0 million), which mainly represented proceeds
and repayment of bank and other borrowings and shareholder’s
loans.

Dilution Impact of the Conversion of Warrants

Set out below is the dilution effect on equity interest of the

HHANTREEEPNRENEE  shareholding structure of the Company upon the fully conversion of
o the outstanding warrants.
RZBZ=%+"RA=+—H
BYBHRIAREER
Upon full conversion of
WZE&-=%+"H=+—H warrants as at
As at 31 December 2023 31 December 2023
Substantial 1 EZTRG 1 EZTRY%
FERR shareholders R17 &5 BE49% Ri7&H BE49%
Approximately Approximately
Number of % of issued Number of % of issued
Shares Shares Shares Shares
BREES STt Mr. Chen Jianwen 3,485,945,868 73.32  3,485,945,868 67.17
HEREBENSEZE Dilution Impact on Earnings Per Share

BHEC 7__5&_7__fﬁ+ A

St+-—HBLEFEBEEBRRAEERE
BB

“ECFFR

The effects of potential ordinary shares are anti-dilutive for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2023.

17



MmN

BONJOUR
EEEHRRAN ()

Bt #5 OB ()
HARERE

B (TEFsk)) METREEE S 5=
BCCGR-B-=G+-A=+—
A AEB T EETEANALME-

35 82

MoE-—ER-E-Z£+-8
—t+t—B AEBREV—ZRIETE
THEBEFAARE-BEEBEENE
SHEE-BIMNA-FEREA-HEY
AR EERREMEBAUNELEEE
BEHE BSKHENDFEMRB NN E
FHEo

SNERFERRREREE

EEE’:‘$?E@?(%B%:§§\H&%’X&N%’X
ENUBTETBEMTMARE
/\D%’/l\EJ’/\E.&E’Xﬂ:nD% BN
/Rj@jﬂﬁ BIR- ﬁ%.Hﬁﬁ:uﬁmg
Eﬁl\lﬁﬂﬁli‘i&ﬁ?%ﬁﬂkﬂ’ﬁiﬁ\ﬁ
ERITUERBRIESNH FINE
J—LEWC’E\&_V__EEZ_v_ T
+ZB=+—H8 > AEBRTRHEAM
BRI IE UM 5B -

KRB _ZHF+ZRBR=+—H XK

EEERTREMER EENA
47,500,000 T (ZE_-__F+_H~
=+—H:%441,800,000%T) ° %

FIRTREMERTEHTHHNE >
BEMRZFGHHRELESFR -

BEEE

MRARFE > AABIRE W &R &
BITHRMZEER %%ﬁ#ﬁéﬁ¢1te
Bg&1,241,750,00082 & 15
RZEZ=fF+ZH=+—H>B%
ThEBRRMEEHA4,754,315,999
B (ZE_-_4%:3,512,565,999
B&) o

18

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review (continued)
Contingent Liabilities

Save as disclosed under the heading “Litigation”, the Group had no
significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and 2023.

Litigation

As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, the Group has been involved in
numerous ongoing legal proceedings and claims. The management
has made full provision for the accrued rentals, staff costs, costs
of inventories, leasehold improvement charges and other business
disputes and has been pursuing favorable settlement solutions with
the plaintiffs.

Foreign Exchange and Interest Rate Exposures and
Management

The Group has limited exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations
given that most of its assets, receipts and payments are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars, Macau
Pataca and Renminbi with a few denominated in Japanese Yen
and Euro. The Group will continue to monitor its foreign exchange
receipts and payments and the gearing levels on an on-going basis
and, if necessary, will hedge the foreign exchange exposure by
forward foreign exchange contracts. As at 31 December 2022 and
2023, the Group’s bank and other borrowings were not dominated in
foreign currency.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had bank and other borrowings
amounting to approximately HK$47.5 million (31 December 2022:
approximately HK$41.8 million). The bank and other borrowings
were arranged at both fixed interest rate and floating interest rate
basis at market interest rates.

Capital Structure
During the Year, the Company had allotted 1,241,750,000 shares
under the connected transaction loan capitalisation involving issue of

new shares under specific mandate.

The total number of issued and fully paid shares as at 31 December
2023 was 4,754,315,999 shares (2022: 3,512,565,999 shares).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review (continued)
Charges on Group Assets

As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, none of the assets of the Group
was pledged to secure any facilities granted to the Group.

Connected Transaction Loan Capitalisation involving Issue of
New Shares under Specific Mandate

On 31 August 20283, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) with Mr. Chen Jianwen
as the executive director and the controlling shareholder (the
“Subscriber”), pursuant to which the Subscriber has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for and the Company has conditionally
agreed to allot and issue 1,241,750,000 subscription shares (the
“Subscription Shares”) at a Subscription Price of HK$0.062 per
Subscription Share to the Subscriber, which shall be satisfied by way
of offsetting the outstanding principal amount and accrued interest
under the shareholder’s loan (the “Shareholder’s Loan”) (payable by
the Company to the Subscriber) which amounted to approximately
HK$76,988,531 (the “Loan Capitalisation”). Upon completion, the
Shareholder’s Loan shall be deemed to have been fully repaid, and
any remaining balance of the Shareholder’s Loan (including any
interest accrued under the Shareholder’s Loan from the date of the
Subscription Agreement to the Completion Date i.e. 6 November
2023) has been waived by the Subscriber.

The Subscription Shares represent approximately 35.35% of the
existing number of issued shares immediately before Completion and
approximately 26.12% of the enlarged number of issued shares of
4,754,315,999 shares immediately following Completion.

As the Subscriber is the chairman of the Board, an executive
Director and the controlling shareholder of the Company, and hence
a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, the Subscription Agreement, the Loan Capitalisation,
the allotment and issue of the Subscription Shares and the
transactions contemplated thereunder constitute a connected
transaction of the Company and is subject to the reporting,
announcement, circular and Independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review (continued)

Connected Transaction Loan Capitalisation involving Issue of
New Shares under Specific Mandate (continued)

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief
having made all reasonable enquiries, save for the Subscriber who
is deemed to be interested in the Subscription Agreement, none
of the Directors has any interest in the resolution(s) of the Board
to consider and approve the Subscription Agreement, the Loan
Capitalisation, the allotment and issue of the Subscription Shares
and the transactions contemplated thereunder or is otherwise
required to abstain from voting on the relevant resolution(s) of the
Board.

The Extraordinary General Meeting has been convened and held on
3 November 2023 for the purpose of considering and, as thought fit,
approving the Subscription Agreement, the Loan Capitalisation, the
allotment and issue of the Subscription Shares and the transactions
contemplated thereunder and the grant of the Specific Mandate for
the allotment and issue of the Subscription Shares.

In accordance with Rule 14A.36 of the Listing Rules, the Subscriber
has been required to abstain from voting on the resolution(s) to
approve the Subscription Agreement, the Loan Capitalisation, the
allotment and issue of the Subscription Shares and the transactions
contemplated thereunder at the Extraordinary General Meeting.
Save as disclosed above, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
information and belief having made all reasonable enquiries, other
than the Subscriber, no other shareholder has a material interest in
the transactions contemplated under the Subscription Agreement
and has been required to abstain from voting on the resolution(s) to
approve the Subscription Agreement, the Loan Capitalisation, the
allotment and issue of the Subscription Shares and the transactions
contemplated thereunder at the Extraordinary General Meeting held
on 3 November 2023.

Completion of the Loan Capitalisation took place on 6 November
2023 and the Subscription Shares were allotted and issued to the
Subscriber under the Specific Mandate obtained at the Extraordinary
General Meeting held on 3 November 2023.

Details of the connected transactions have been published on the
Company’s announcement dated 31 August 2023, the Company’s
circular dated 17 October 2023 and the Company’s poll results
announcement dated 3 November 2023.
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BONJOUR

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review (continued)

Material Acquisitions or Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates
and Joint Ventures

Save as disclosed herein, for the year ended 31 December 2023,
there were no material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures by the Group (2022: very substantial
disposal in relation to the disposal of the entire issued share capital
of Apex Centric Investment Limited; Major transaction in relation to
investment in a fund; Issue of warrants under specific mandate; and
Discloseable transaction in relation to the tenancy agreement).

Winding up of Hop Fung Lung Limited (“HFL”) (formerly known
as Bonjour Cosmetic Wholesale Center Limited)

On 9 January 2023, a winding-up order was made by the High Court
against HFL, a subsidiary of the Company, at the hearing of the
Petition pursuant to the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous
Provisions) Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
The Official Receiver of Hong Kong has been appointed as the
provisional liquidator of HFL. For further details of the winding-up,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 9 January
2023 and 17 January 2023.

Disposals of listed securities

During the period from 22 April 2022 to 14 February 2023, the
Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, made a series of
disposals (the “Disposals”) of an aggregate of 135,156,000 ordinary
shares issued by Town Health International Medical Group Limited
(“Town Health Shares”).

For further details of the Disposals, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 14 February 2023.

On 23 February 2023 and 7 March 2023, the Company, through its
wholly-owned subsidiary, made further disposals of an aggregate of
26,345,586 Town Health Shares (the “Further Disposals”).

For further details of the Further Disposals, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 23 February 2023 and 7
March 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review (continued)
Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital Assets

The Board will consider plans for investments and capital assets
which can improve the Company’s profitability and liquidity.

Human Resources

The Group adheres to a strong belief that one of the most valuable
assets of a corporation is its employees. As at 31 December 2023,
the Group had approximately 158 (2022: approximately 194) full-time
and part-time employees in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland. Staff
costs including Directors’ emoluments for the Year were significantly
streamlined at approximately HK$59.1 million (2022: approximately
HK$68.1 million).

The Group values its human resources and recognises the
importance of attracting and retaining qualified staff for its continuing
success. Remuneration packages are generally structured by
reference to market terms and individual qualifications. In addition,
share options and discretionary bonuses may also be granted to
eligible employees based on individual’s performance. The Group
also provides mandatory provident fund schemes, medical insurance
schemes, staff purchases discounts and training programs for our
employees.

Event After the Reporting Period

On 12 January 2024, the Town Planning Board granted the approval
of the property held by the Fund on the proposed comprehensive
residential development with minor relaxation of maximum plot ratio
and building height restrictions where the property is situated.
Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities

Save as disclosed herein, there was no purchase, sale or redemption

by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of any listed securities of
the Company during the Year (2022: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review (continued)
Final Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the Year (2022: Nil).

Change of auditor

RSM Hong Kong (“RSM”) resigned as the auditor of the Company
with effect from 10 June 2022. On the same day, the Board, with the
recommendation of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”), appointed Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as
the new auditor of the Company to fill the casual vacancy following
the resignation of RSM and to hold office until the conclusion of the
annual general meeting of the Company. For further details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 10 June 2022
and 20 June 2022.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other changes in auditor of
the Company in any of the preceding three years.

Placing of Bonds

On 2 August 2021 (after trading hours), the Company entered into
a placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) with Venture Smart
Asia Limited, the placing agent (the “Placing Agent”), pursuant
to which the Placing Agent conditionally agreed to act as placing
agent, on a best effort basis, for the purposes of procuring placees
to subscribe in cash for the two-year 9% bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$50,000,000 during the period
commencing from the date of the Placing Agreement and terminating
on the date falling on the expiration of six (6) months from the date
of the Placing Agreement. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 2 August 2021 for details. The Placing Agreement
was extended to 31 July 2024.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review (continued)
Redemption of Convertible Bonds and issue of Warrants

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 1 April
2021 and 9 April 2021, the Target Company issued the convertible
bonds in the principal amount of HK$129,500,000 (the “Convertible
Bonds”) to Karfond Limited (the “Subscriber”) on 9 April 2021. On
the same day, the Company, the Target Company, Apex Frame, Mr.
Chen Jianwen and the Subscriber entered into a deed of undertaking
(the “Deed of Undertaking”) whereby the Subscriber was granted a
right of first refusal for the sale of the Property and/or the shares of
the Target Company and Apex Frame, and a co-development right in
respect of the Property, further details of which are disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 1 April 2021.

Pursuant to the terms of the Convertible Bonds, the Disposal
constituted an event which confers a right on the Subscriber to, at
its option, require early redemption of the Convertible Bonds before
its maturity date, which is 9 April 2026 (“‘Early Redemption”). On
the other hand, pursuant to the terms of the Convertible Bonds,
unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled,
the earliest date on which the Target Company may, at its option,
redeem the outstanding Convertible Bonds is 9 April 2024.

The Directors considered that the issue of Warrants to the
Subscriber at nil consideration would serve as a necessary and
suitable incentive for the Subscriber to (i) consent to the Disposal,
and (i) waive all its rights and claims under the Deed of Undertaking
upon Early Redemption, both of which are conditions precedent to
the Disposal.

Therefore, upon the Fund paying the Subscriber the outstanding
principal amount of HK$110,500,000 together with accrued interest
on behalf of the Target Company to redeem the Convertible Bonds in
full pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the outstanding
Convertible Bonds were redeemed in full and the Subscriber’s
consent to the Disposal became unconditional and effective, and
on 29 June 2022, the Company has issued 581,578,947 unlisted
warrants conferring rights to subscribe for 581,578,947 shares
of the Company (the “Warrants”) upon full redemption of the
Convertible Bonds.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review (continued)

Redemption of Convertible Bonds and issue of Warrants
(continued)

The issue price of the Warrants is nil. The exercise price (subject to
adjustment events set out in and in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Warrants) of the Warrants is HK$0.19 per Warrant
Share, which represents: (1) approximately 38.686% premium to
the closing price of HK$0.1370 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the date of the announcement of the issue of the
Warrants; and (2) approximately 37.681% premium to the average
closing price of HK$0.1380 per share for the last five consecutive
trading days immediately preceding the date of the announcement of
the issue of the Warrants.

For details of the issue of the Warrants, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 28 March 2022, 21 April
2022, 6 May 2022, 20 May 2022, 30 May 2022, 27 June 2022 and
29 June 2022 and the circular of the Company dated 7 June 2022.

The subscription rights attached to the Warrants are exercised in
full, the number of issued shares of the Company will be increased
by 581,578,947 (the “Warrants Shares”), representing approximately
12.23% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31
December 2023 (i.e. 4,754,315,999 shares) and approximately
10.90% of the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by
the allotment and issue of the Warrants Shares (i.e. 5,335,894,946
shares).

25



MmN

BONJOUR
EEREREEAGHN

HITES

BREXEE (THRE%EL) 615 EE
BEE(TEF)) RPTESE-BREL
RZIE—XRF—BZ+HEZTA
HITEF - FRARATDZHEKB R
BArZESE BRELEALA—REZERE
BHEBEERENBA TEESE
ARNBEHERER - HBERETEEH
BReRmIZERERBERLAS (IEE)
FRONIPEAMBELEARARKE
BiEEREME BRERRHEE
BoRETASTEBERITHRE (TEEH
B ATF#HET - EEREELZES
HE - AEXHZEAETE ARKEWH
HEELETHEEREAN EBEDB
HE+g%E 2K Nan Tien Institute
(Australia) 2 B ERE R PEE KT
B2 (F8) InEXR2ga g
g

FIEMAE (TREEY) 655 HE
FEERERATEST - BIEABER
BFMEEGRIEREEGEREER
2B -WMINAERANBZRWE LT
PERE - RALETEASANANE
BRE-FAENR_E—XRE=RHt
HEZTARTES FELEFES
BhNARETIHEEERLSNLET
FAREIBEEBRIEMN FLES
EARANESHARBHFAIRG MR
BEFREE  NARRBEREERE
e gg 8 - RAEAERESHY
BABEEELR THESHKEER
il EEH@m28FE - BE-_E—HLENA
+—HE_E-_WE_B=-+NH>
FEEATRGEERRODBRER
BAORMVEBEBREPBIMERLT (K
MACEE 1 0056) 2B IEHITESE
HIRFETEENITHER - NMAE
ERCBZZEZAFENBZ+EHE
_ZEZ—REtA=+—BH EAKZ
EHMEBRAD > RMHBRENEFA
FHRET (RO 272) 1T
EE EEHLERURBEERFD
BT ERAINEBLRERERNK
WE -ZMBEABHN BT £k L
o

26

Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Executive Directors

Mr. CHEN, Jianwen (“Mr. Chen”), aged 61, is the chairman of
the Board (the “Chairman”) and an executive director. Mr. Chen was
appointed as an executive Director on 20 January 2016. He is also
a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chen is a
seasoned merchant in various businesses and is mainly responsible
for the business development of the Company. He is currently the
chairman of Haifu International Finance Holding Group Ltd (“Haifu”)
and has diverse investments in Mainland China including commercial
real estate, natural resources and manufacturing businesses. He is
also a justice of the peace of the Special Administrative Region of
Hong Kong (the “HKSAR”), a member of the Election Committee of
the HKSAR, a convenor of Inner Mongolia Autonomous Regional
Committee (Hong Kong Region) of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, the honorary president of Hong Kong
Shine Tak Foundation, the honorary manager of Nan Tien Institute
(Australia) and the founding vice-chairman of Chinese Academy of
Governance (HK) Industrial and Commercial Professionals Alumni
Association.

Mr. WAN, Yim Keung, Daniel (“Mr. Wan”), aged 65, is the vice-
chairman of the Board and an executive director. He is also a
member of each of the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. He is also a director of a number
of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wan is mainly responsible
for the business development of the Company. Mr. Wan was
appointed as an executive Director on 7 March 2016. Mr. Wan
obtained his bachelor degree in business administration from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and his master degree in
business administration from the University of Wales. Mr. Wan is a
Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong, a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and also a member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr.
Wan has extensive experience in the financial industry with over 28
years in senior management position. Mr. Wan was an independent
non-executive director of China Suntien Green Energy Corporation
Limited GiT X4 & BETR IR 17 B FRA F)) (currently its shares are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0956))
from 11 June 2019 to 28 February 2024. He is currently the chief
executive officer of Haifu. Prior to joining Haifu, he was the executive
director, managing director and chief financial officer of Shui On
Land Ltd. GEZ EMEBRAT) (currently its shares are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) (stock code: 272) from
27 August 2009 to 31 July 2015 and the general manager and group
chief financial officer of The Bank of East Asia, Ltd. Both companies
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. CHIU, Lai Kuen, Susanna (“Ms. Chiu”), aged 63, is an
executive director. Ms. Chiu was appointed as an executive director
on 31 December 2020. Ms. Chiu has extensive experience in
accounting, business management and operations. She is currently
the Chief Operating Officer of the Company. Ms. Chiu graduated
with a bachelor’s degree with first class honours in economics from
the University of Sheffield in the United Kingdom and obtained
an executive master of business administration degree from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. She is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales, a
certified information systems auditor and a member of the Chinese
Institute of the Certified Public Accountants. She was the president
of the Information Systems Audit and Control Association (China
Hong Kong Chapter) from 2001 to 2006, and the president of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 2013.
Ms. Chiu is currently an independent non-executive director for a
number of Hong Kong listed companies on the Main Board, namely,
China Vocational Education Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Huali University Group Limited) (FEIB =B ZERBR B FIiEE
T AREBEREARAE) (stock code: 1756) and China Oilfield Services
Limited (FR7& M AR5 A 15 A BR‘A B)) (stock code: 2883). Ms. Chiu
is an independent non-executive director of Nanyang Commercial
Bank Limited (/¥ @ %£iR1THBRAQE). She was an independent
non-executive director of Songz Automobile Air Conditioning Co.
Ltd. (EBMSMZAEBEZERBRMBRAT), which is listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002454) from April 2020 to
September 2023. She was an independent non-executive director
of Huiding Holdings Company Limited (BB 3= ERAF)) currently
its shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 9968) from 11 December 2019 to 6 July 2023. She was also
an independent non-executive director of Kato (Hong Kong) Holdings
Limited (3278 (&) £ B EAF) currently its shares are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2189) from 20
May 2019 to 8 August 2022. From 2006 to 2019, she served as a
senior vice president, Group Chief Representative (Eastern China)
and consultant in various member companies of the Li & Fung
Group, which principally engages in trading, distribution, logistics
and retailing businesses.

Ms. Chiu is currently a member of the Chinese People’s political
Consultative Conference of Shanghai, China Ministry of Finance
Hong Kong Accounting Expert Consultant and formerly the treasurer
of the Education University of Hong Kong, and a member of the
Women’s Commission. She was also a member of the Equal
Opportunities Commission from 2009 to 2017, and a member of the
Energy Advisory Committee from 2014 to 2018.

In 2017 and 2018 respectively, Ms. Chiu was appointed as a Justice
of the Peace and a New Territories Justice of the Peace by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the
“Hong Kong Government”). Ms. Chiu was also awarded the Medal
of Honor by the Hong Kong Government in 2013. Further, Ms. Chiu
was awarded the Outstanding Women Business Leader Award by
the Hong Kong Commercial Daily in 2017, the Outstanding Women
Professionals Award by the Hong Kong Women Professionals
& Entrepreneurs Association in 2014 and the Professor Robert
Boucher Distinguished Alumni Award by the University of Sheffield
in 2014. Ms. Chiu was also awarded the “GBA Outstanding Women
Entrepreneur Awards” in 2021.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. KWOK, Chi Shing (“Mr. Kwok”), aged 61, is an independent
non-executive director. He is also the chairman of the audit
committee and a member of each of the remuneration committee
and the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Kwok was
appointed as an independent non-executive director on 21
September 2020 of the Company. Mr. Kwok is currently a certified
public accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Kwok obtained a degree of
Master of Arts in Economics with Accountancy from The University of
Aberdeen in U.K. in July 1986. He has been a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January
1991 and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Scotland since November 1989.

Mr. Kwok is currently an independent non-executive director for a
number of Hong Kong listed companies on the Main Board, namely
DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings Company Limited (XEFE T
MR B IZIRBRATE) (stock code: 620) and Fantasia Holdings
Group Co., Limited (TEFEZEREBBRAR) (stock code: 1777)
and was appointed as an independent non-executive director for a
number of Hong Kong listed companies on the Main Board and the
GEM Board, namely of DeTeam Company Ltd (37385 R ‘A ) (stock
code: 8112, delisted on 20 June 2009) from 27 January 2006 to
22 June 2009, Grand Ocean Advanced Resources Company Limited
GhEEHERARAT) (stock code: 0065) from 27 January 2006
to 18 September 2020, Huakang Biomedical Holdings Company
Limited FERAMEZ2ERBR A F) (stock code: 8622) from
26 November 2018 to 1 September 2020, EPS Creative Health
Technology Group Limited (EPSEIEREE AR A R) (stock
code: 3860) from 23 January 2017 to 30 June 2021, Speed Apparel
Holding Limited (325 B %R B R A 7)) (stock code: 8183, delisted
on 12 December 2019) from 23 January 2017 to 12 December 2019
and Hang Chi Holdings (8% £ % & BR 2 B]) (stock code: 8405) from
21 June 2017 to 15 August 2022.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. LEE, Kwun Kwan (“Mr. Lee”), aged 61, is an independent
non-executive director. He is also the chairman of the remuneration
committee and a member of the audit committee of the Company.
Mr. Lee was appointed as an independent non-executive director
on 31 August 2020. Mr. Lee obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree
in the University of Hong Kong in 1986 and Master of Business
Administration degree in Lingnan University in 2003. Mr. Lee is a
veteran in the insurance industry of Hong Kong. Mr. Lee had been
appointed, from 2005 to 2006, as the President of the General
Agents and Managers Association of Hong Kong Limited, from 2007
to 2011, as the member of Insurance Training Board of Vocational
Training Council, from 2011 to 2014, as the Founder and First
Convener for the Insurance and Financial Practitioners Alliance, from
2012 to 2016, as the member for the Insurance Advisory Committee
in the Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau of the Hong Kong
Government, and from 2014 to 2019, as the Vice President of The
Life Underwriters Association of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lee is also
the Committee Member of Insurance Management Committee of
The Hong Kong Management Association since 2007, the President
of the International Asset Planner Association since 2011, the
Vice President of Asset Management Committee, CEPA Business
Opportunities Development Alliance since September 2014, and
the Deputy Convener in the Insurance Industry Regulatory &
Development Concern Group since August 2019.

Mr. YAN, Sherman Chuek-ning (“Mr. Yan”), aged 61, is an
independent non-executive director. He is also the chairman of the
nomination committee and a member of the audit committee of the
Company. Mr. Yan was appointed as an independent non-executive
director on 15 September 2020. Mr. Yan is currently a practicing
solicitor and a Notary Public in Hong Kong. He is also the Managing
Partner of ONC Lawyers. Mr. Yan was also admitted as a solicitor in
England and Wales. Mr. Yan graduated from the University of London
with a bachelor’s degree in laws and the University of Southampton
with a master’s degree in maritime laws.

Senior Management

Mr. WONG, lu Ming (“Mr. Wong”), aged 68, is the chief executive
officer (the “Chief Executive Officer”) and the company secretary of
the Company. Mr. Wong was appointed as chief executive officer of
the Company on 10 July 2020 and was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 9 July 2021. He is also a director
of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wong is a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He had been a general manager of Internal Audit of Urban Renewal
Authority. Mr. Wong is currently a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. He is also currently an executive director and
deputy chief executive officer of Haifu, a director of Global Leather
Intelligence (HK) Limited, China Leather Intelligence Limited, Innogy
Global Limited, Haifu China Petrochemical Group Limited and a
member of executive committee of The Society for the Promotion
of Hospice Care. Mr. Wong also has extensive experience in risk
controls, finance and administration, internal audit of sizable Hong
Kong public bodies and multinational conglomerates.
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Corporate Governance Report

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate
governance practices and procedures. Throughout the Year, the
Company has complied with the code provisions prescribed in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in the
Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix C3
to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all
Directors have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the Year.

Board of Directors
Composition of the Board of Directors

As at the date of the annual report, the Board comprises six
Directors, of whom three are executive directors, namely Mr. Chen
Jianwen, Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel and Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen,
Susanna and three are independent non-executive directors, namely
Mr. Kwok Chi Shing, Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan and Mr. Yan Sherman
Chuek-ning. Each of the Directors’ biographical details are set out in
the “Directors and Senior Management Profiles” of the annual report.

Annual Report 2023
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)
Composition of the Board of Directors (continued)

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each director
having sound knowledge, experience and/or expertise relevant to the
business of the Group. To the best knowledge of the Company, there
is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship
among members of the Board. All executive directors and
independent non-executive directors bring a variety of experience
and expertise to the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

According to the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. During the Year,
Mr. Chen Jianwen, an executive director, and Mr. Wong Ilu Ming,
respectively continue to be the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer. During the Year, the roles and duties of the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer have been separately undertaken by different
officers.

Mr. Chen Jianwen, the Chairman, is responsible for the leadership
of the Board, assignment of responsibilities among members of
the Board, and maintaining the proper conduct and proceedings of
meetings of the Board and the shareholders, and overseeing the
Group’s overall direction and strategic planning. In addition, the
chairman of the Company also plays a key role in encouraging all the
Directors to actively contribute to the Board affairs and establishing
good corporate governance practices and procedures.

Mr. Wong Iu Ming, the Chief Executive Officer, is responsible for
managing the business and affairs of the Company, recommending
and implementing strategic, business and operating plans,
directing and overseeing the activities of the Group, developing and
implementing operational policies under the strategic directions
adopted by the Board, developing and recommending organizational
structure, and ensuring that the Board has the required information
to fulfill its duties.

31



MmN

BONJOUR

EEXERRS (&)

Exg (&)
EFTIMEE

AATDHEFETRE MEFTES
EEREEARADEB - EFTAM
FAEBZEREORREE  UEAR
RZEREEERER RAHFHEZ
RhEZEm o

EFXFEgTEAEREREEARF B
EXAEBZEBAIGEEIER X
RBoltih EFETEEINETERZ
EERBRER MEBRRLHZER
rEBZEERYBRR -

EXERBRATESRERAEEE
BEXAEBZHEEE B EER
BEERTEEB X WL ME
TERARBERRZEIEZFHARR
EFXFeHE-EFERHEEERTHR
BERETEEER HENEEE
ZRENDELBHET LEREEE
RERAADBFERERMRRKET ILER
AERMADESFEFHRERERS
SRt EZ B o

BIFATESE

AET EHHRNEI.10(1)%3.10A
B AEBBE=_SRBILIENTESE
ELMHEEFEN D2 —Z =48
UEBTEEF > BERELERE L
MBI E3 10 2)KFFBETHE BTt
RERVEEESE B EEESE
*%0

FAABDCERESBIULFATESTRE
EHRAEIAEERMEBFIIEZHE
BE-RBEZERE AT RRB
SHRAEE - FTHEEAERBANELE
RBIANL

32

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)
Functions of the Board of Directors

The Company is governed by the Board which is responsible for
directing and supervising its affairs. The Board is accountable to
shareholders for the development of the Group with the goal of
maximising long-term shareholders’ value, while balancing broader
stakeholders’ interests.

The Board is also responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, overseeing the Group’s businesses and evaluating the
performance of the Group. Besides, the Board also focuses on
overall strategic development of the Group and its policies with
particular attention paid to the growth and financial performance of
the Group.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to
executive directors and management of the Company with
department heads responsible for different aspects of the business/
functions, while reserving certain key matters in making strategic
decision for its approval. When the Board delegates aspects of
its management and administration functions to management, it
has given clear directions as to the powers of management, in
particular, with respect to the circumstances where management
shall report back and obtain prior approval from the Board before
making decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of the
Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
there are three independent non-executive directors representing
at least one-third of the Board. Among the three independent non-
executive directors, Mr. Kwok Chi Shing has appropriate professional
qualifications in accounting or related financial management
expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors the written confirmation of their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company, based on
such confirmation, considers that Mr. Kwok Chi Shing, Mr. Lee Kwun
Kwan and Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning are independent.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)
Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal

Mr. Kwok Chi Shing, Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan and Mr. Yan Sherman
Chuek-ning, as the independent non-executive directors, each has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term of one
year commencing from 31 August 2020, 15 September 2020 and 21
September 2020, and will be renewed unless and until terminated by
either party serving not less than 30 days’ written notice.

In accordance with article 108 of the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles of Association”), Mr. Chen Jianwen and Mr.
Wan Yim Keung Daniel will retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM
of the Company. All the retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM of the Company.

Directors’ Training

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors.

During the Year, all Directors received regular briefings and updates
on the Group’s business, operations, risk management and
corporate governance matters. Materials on new or changes to the
legal and regulatory environments applicable to the Group were
provided to the Directors.

Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

The company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’
Liability Insurance for the Directors and officers covering the costs,
losses, expenses and liabilities that may arise from the performance
of their duties. The insurance policy covers legal action against
the Directors and Officers to comply with the requirement of the
CG code. During the CG period, no claim was made against the
Directors and Officers.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)
Directors’ Training (continued)

A summary of training received by the Directors for the Year
according to the records provided by the Directors is as follows:

Reading
Training materials
organised by updating on
professional new rules and
organizations regulations
RESFR
EEKRBEN SERORFRN
EENH4A Name of Directors Byt | B+ 8
BITES Executive Directors
FRfEE et Mr. Chen Jianwen v N4
FIEREE Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel v v
HElEZ L Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna v v
BIERITES Independent Non-executive Directors
EFREERE Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan v v
PEMLE Mr. Kwok Chi Shing v v
I ELE Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning v v
EEgERREETETER Board Meetings and Board Practices

EFgABFRETRIORER &
FETRRAEAMBAEZEUNREESFE
FHRRZBRATRTERZ -EFFR
REEFEEZRTHRERSTRZ
ZRFEFB BEMBEESHERSE
R mEEAARE A RBZAH
MEEBERBLEEXEELRTIREAAT
MAEAREEHINEZTEERIME
EhEEFTTZBEN BREAFR
XU HBREFFUBFEX BME
B TEUREEFEEZ LM
SmEFREFLUANBRE - 2REFH
AERSRAMEZERKRS mMA
ANEEERRNEFTREREERR
EFHZEMEM RANETESR
BREFEETRREFFINET LA
EXCeRHEEMETEFTEEERRER
FHZER-
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The Board meets at least four times a year regularly, and the Board
will also meet on other occasions when a board-level decision
on a particular matter is required. The Directors receive details of
agenda items for decision in advance of each Board meeting and all
Directors are given the opportunity to include matters for discussion
in the agenda. The company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) is responsible for distributing the notice and
agenda of Board meeting and detailed documents to the Directors
prior to the Board meetings in accordance with the CG Code and the
Articles of Association of the Company to ensure that the Directors
are able to make informed decisions regarding the matters discussed
in the Board meetings so that they may receive accurate, timely
and clear information. All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary who regularly updates the Board
on governance and regulatory matters. The Company Secretary is
also responsible for ensuring the procedures of the Board meetings
are observed and providing opinions to the Board on matters
in relation to the compliance with the procedures of the Board
meetings.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Meetings and Board Practices (continued)
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Any Director wishing to do so in the furtherance of his or her
duties, he or she may take independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense. The Directors are encouraged to update their
skills, knowledge and familiarity with the Group through their initial
induction, ongoing participation in Board and committee meetings,
and through meeting with key members of the management.

During the Year, four regular Board meetings were held. The
attendance records for the Directors’ meetings are set out below:

Directors’
Attendance
BEEHERY
BITES Executive Directors
BRI E Mr. Chen Jianwen 4/4
FlEsiTE Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel 4/4
HMREEL T Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna 4/4
BIERITES Independent Non-executive Directors
WERFTE Mr. Kwok Chi Shing 4/4
THEEEE Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan 4/4
BOERE Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning 4/4
BRERERXE General Meeting

REAFE ARBABHEA=ZXTAKREKX
goR _BE_=6E8=+—8%
FTZ2ZEZ—"FRZZEZ”ZFEmMME
FEZMERRBEBFRAGURRZE
T=FE+—BZHETZRESI KX
GoHFEABREINOT :

During the Year, the Company held three general meetings, being
two AGMs for the year 2021 and 2022 respectively, both held on
31 May 2023 and an Extraordinary General Meeting held on 3
November 2023. The attendance record is set out below:

Directors’
Attendance
EEHERY
BITES Executive Directors

RRfE SR Mr. Chen Jianwen 3/3
FlERITE Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel 3/3
st Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna 3/3

BiERITES Independent Non-executive Directors
WEMITE Mr. Kwok Chi Shing 3/3
TEBRE Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan 3/3
;TR E Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning 3/3

“ECFFR
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board Committees

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 17 June 2003
with written terms of reference no less exacting terms than the CG
Code. At present, members of the Audit Committee comprise three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Kwok Chi Shing,
Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan and Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning. Mr. Kwok Chi
Shing is the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
has reviewed the effectiveness of both external audit and risk
management and internal control systems. The audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year have been reviewed by
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee acts as an important link between the Board
and the Company’s auditor in matters within the scope of the
Group’s audit. The duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
discuss on the effectiveness of external audit, risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, the Company’s interim reports
and annual reports and to provide advice and comments to the
Board. The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year. The Audit Committee
meets regularly with the management and the external auditor to
discuss the risk management and internal control systems, financial
reporting system, the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group. During the Year, four meetings were held to review,
among others, the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the unaudited
condensed consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
six months ended 30 June 2023 with the recommendations to the
Board for approval; and has reviewed the accounting principles and
policies adopted by the Group and its systems of risk management
and internal control. The attendance records for the Audit Committee
meetings are set out below:

EoHBREHIWMT

Members’
Attendance
HEZHEER

BERZEEHE Members of the Audit Committee
PEMLE Mr. Kwok Chi Shing 4/4
FEBESE Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan 4/4
I ELE Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning 4/4
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 16 September 2005 with written
terms of reference no less exacting terms than the CG Code.
The Remuneration Committee has the delegated responsibility to
determine the remuneration packages of executive directors and
senior management and makes recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of non-executive directors. No member of
Remuneration Committee should be involved in deciding his own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee will consider factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-based
remuneration and review and/or approve matters relating to share
schemes under chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, including
two independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Lee Kwun
Kwan, Mr. Kwok Chi Shing, and the vice-chairman of the Board and
the executive director, Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel. Mr. Lee Kwun
Kwan is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. During the
Year, one meeting was held to review the remuneration packages
of all the Directors and the senior management. The attendance
records for the Remuneration Committee meetings are set out
below:

Members’
Attendance
REZHER

HFMNEEERE Members of the Remuneration Committee
FEBERE Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan 1/1
FIEREE Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel 1/1
PEMLE Mr. Kwok Chi Shing 1/1

EEFMO2EREINEALINHE
REAUKRERNTRIEE - BEZ-T
=+ ZRB=+—HLEEZESE
HB BN ARG BRERNE4

“ECFFR

The remuneration of Directors is determined with reference to their
duties and responsibilities in the Company as well as the prevailing
market conditions. Details of emoluments of Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) on 16 September 2005 with written terms of reference
no less exacting terms than the CG Code. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for nominating potential candidates for
directorship based on the candidates’ qualifications, business
experience and suitability to the Company, reviewing the nomination
of the Directors, making recommendations to the Board on such
appointments and assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee adopted the board diversity policy on 22
August 2013. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted the nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) on 14 December 2018 which sets out the nomination
criteria and procedures for the Company to select candidate(s)
for possible inclusion in the Board. The Nomination Policy could
assist the Company to achieve board diversity in the Company and
enhance the effectiveness of the Board and its corporate governance
standard.

When assessing the suitability of a candidate, factors such as the
qualifications, skills, integrity and experience will be taken into
consideration as a whole. In the case of independent non-executive
Directors, they must further satisfy the independence criteria set
out within Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Since the selection of
candidates should ensure that diversity remains a central feature of
the Board, a range of diverse perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, or professional
experience would be considered.

The process to identify potential candidates for the Board would be
as follows:

(1) identifying potential candidates, including recommendations

from the Board members, professional search firms and the
shareholders of the Company;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)
Nomination Policy (continued)

(2) evaluating the candidates based on the approved selection
criteria through methods such as reviewing the resume and
conducting the background checks;

(3) reviewing the profiles of the shortlisted candidates and
interview them; and

(4) making recommendations to the Board on the selected
candidates.

The Nomination Policy also includes the Board succession plan
to assess whether vacancies on the Board would be created
or expected due to the Directors’ resignation, retirement, death
and other circumstances and to identify candidates in advance
if necessary. The Nomination Policy will be reviewed on a regular
basis.

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, including
two independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Yan Sherman
Chuek-ning, Mr. Kwok Chi Shing and the vice-chairman of the
Board and the executive director, namely Mr. Wan Yim Keung,
Daniel. Mr. Yan Sherman Cheuk-ning is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. During the Year, one meeting was held to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors, and make
recommendations to the Board relating to the renewal services of

EoHERBREIOT independent non-executive directors. The attendance records for the
Nomination Committee meetings are set out below:
Members’
Attendance
REZHER
REZEEHRE Members of the Nomination Committee

BIELE Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning 1/1
FiEsmiE Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel 11
PELE Mr. Kwok Chi Shing 1/1

EEEBBEE

EFgRN_E—_—_F="BA"-+N\B&
MECEESARECHEEE RIEH
EERESE Exgaa U ThE

EARAE -

(a) FIETREBHEABDNEXEERR
RRER MREEZ

“ECFFR

Corporate Governance Functions

The terms of reference on corporate governance functions was
adopted by the Board on 28 March 2012. The Board is responsible
for performing the following corporate governance duties with its
written terms of reference:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Corporate Governance Functions (continued)

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the “Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report” as set
out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board performed the above mentioned duties
accordingly.

Accountability and Audit

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements and
Financial Reporting

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the Year have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Directors acknowledge
their responsibility for preparing the accounts and presenting a
balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects. Save as disclosed in note 2
to the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are aware of
certain events or conditions that indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. The Directors, after making due
inquiries and considering the basis of cash flow forecasts and taking
into account the measures, conclude the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to meet in full of its working capital requirements
and financial obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, these consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis.

Auditor’s Remuneration

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited was engaged as the auditor of
the Company during the Year. The remunerations paid or payable
to Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited for the audit and non-audit
services (i.e. agreed upon procedures) amounted to HK$2,200,000
and HK$180,000 respectively.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Accountability and Audit (continued)
Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board
process, as well as communications among Board members, with
shareholders and management. According to rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules, the Company Secretary, Mr. Wong lu Ming has taken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the Year.

Board Diversity Policy

In respect of the gender diversity of the Board, as at the date of the
annual report, 5 Directors are male and 1 Director is female. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance, and sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. It is expected that the ratio of female Directors will
reach more than 15% in the following years. The Company will
achieve this goal through active nomination of suitable candidates
with no gender limitation to be newly appointed Directors in the next
few years.

As of 31 December 2023, there were a total of 156 full-time
employees and 2 part-time employees. Female employees was
118, representing 72% in the workforce (including management)
versus 65% in 2022. The Company has a diverse workforce and
will continue focusing on ensuring gender diversity. We will provide
resources and training to enhance employees’ competency and
productivity. We will build a diverse talent pool to serve the evolving
needs. Further, men and women may have different cognitive
abilities, such as men’s proficiency in mathematics and women’s
proficiency in verbal and interpersonal skills. Therefore, a mix of
cognitive abilities in a gender diverse team may enhance the team'’s
overall creativity and innovation as proved by research. Moreover,
a gender diverse team produces high quality decisions. Although
there may be some mitigating circumstances where gender diversity
can be very hard to achieve (for instance, male workers are more
commonly seen regarding physical labour and female workers are
more often seen during psychological consultation), the Company
will keep focusing on the workforce gender diversity to maintain its
current strength as well as to further improve its competitiveness in
the future.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Accountability and Audit (continued)

Mechanisms to Ensure Independent Views

The Company makes certain that the Board has access to
independent views and input through the mechanisms listed below:

1.

The Nomination Committee should review the Board
composition and the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors annually, in particular the portion of the
independent non-executive directors and the independence
of the independent non-executive director who has served for
more than nine years.

A written confirmation was received by the Company under
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent
non-executive Directors in relation to his/her independence to
the Company. The Company considers all its independent non-
executive directors to be independent.

In view of good corporate governance practices and to avoid
conflict of interests, the Directors who are also Directors and/or
senior management of the Company’s controlling shareholders
and/or certain subsidiaries of the controlling shareholders,
would abstain from voting in the relevant Board resolutions on
the transactions with the controlling shareholders and/or its
associates.

The chairman of the Board shall meet with independent non-
executive directors at least once annually.

All members of the Board can seek independent professional
advice when necessary to perform their responsibilities in
accordance with the Company’s policy. The mechanisms to
ensure independent views are reviewed by the Nomination
Committee for ensuring independent views and input are
available to the Board on an annual basis, whether in terms
of proportion, recruitment and independence of independent
non-executive directors, and their contribution and access to
external independent professional advice.

Annual Report 2023
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Accountability and Audit (continued)
Shareholders’ right
Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary
of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting enquiries to the Board

To ensure effective communication between the Board and
the shareholders, the Company has adopted a shareholders’
communication policy (the “Policy”) on 28 March 2012. Under the
Policy, the Company’s information shall be communicated to the
shareholders mainly through the Company’s general meetings,
including AGMs, financial reports (interim reports and annual
reports), and its corporate communications and other corporate
publications on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website.

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available. Any
such questions shall be first directed to the Company Secretary at
the Company’s head office and principal place of business in Hong
Kong or the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office, Union Registrars Limited, at Suites 3301-04, 33/F.,
Two Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King’s Road, North Point,
Hong Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Accountability and Audit (continued)
Shareholders’ right (continued)
Putting forward proposals at shareholders’ meeting

The number of shareholders necessary for a requisition for putting
forward a proposal at a shareholders’ meeting shall be any number
of shareholders representing not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings at the date of the requisition.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall be
deposited, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in giving notice of the proposed resolution(s) or circulating
any necessary statement, at the Company’s head office and principal
place of business in Hong Kong in the case of:

(i) a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six
weeks before the meeting; and

(i) any other requisition, not less than one week before the
meeting.

Shareholders may put forward proposals at general meetings by
sending the written requisition to the Company’s head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong. The Company will verify
the requisition and upon confirming that the requisition is proper and
in order, the Board will proceed with necessary procedures.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Investor and Shareholder Relations
Constitutional Documents

The Board has proposed to make certain amendments to the
existing amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of
Association to conform to the core standards for shareholder
protections (a uniform set of 14 core standards for shareholder
protections set out in Appendix A1 to the Listing Rules) and to
incorporate certain housekeeping amendments (collectively, the
“Amendments”).

In view of the Amendments, the Board proposed to adopt an
amended Memorandum and Articles of Association (the “New
Constitutional Documents”). The New Constitutional Documents
were adopted by the shareholders of the Company at the AGM of
the Company held on 31 May 2023.

For details, please refer to the announcement and the circular of the
Company dated 28 April 2023. Save as disclosed herein, there were
no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy
Purpose

The Company recognises the importance of providing current
and relevant information to the shareholders. This shareholders’
communication policy (the “Shareholders’ Communication Policy”)
aims to set out the provisions with the objective to ensure that the
shareholders and potential investors are provided with equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information about
the Company, in order to enable shareholders to exercise their rights
in an informed manner, and to allow shareholders and potential
investors to engage actively with the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Investor and Shareholder Relations (continued)
Shareholders’ Communication Policy (continued)
General Policy

The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders
and will regularly review the Shareholders’ Communication Policy to
ensure its effectiveness.

Information is communicated to the shareholders as well as the
stakeholders through periodic disclosure through the Company’s
financial reports (interim reports and annual reports), AGMs and
other general meetings that may be convened, as well as by making
available all the disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange and
other corporate publications on the website of the Stock Exchange
and corporate communications, on the website of the Stock
Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk and the Company’s website at
http://corp.bonjourhk.com.

Effective and timely dissemination of information to shareholders
shall be ensured at all times. Any questions, requests and comments
can be addressed to the Company by mail to 12/F., Bonjour Tower,
No. 36-50 Wang Wo Tsai Street, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong or through
the Company’s share registrar.

The Company believes that communication with shareholders
by electronic means, particularly through its website, is an
efficient way to distribute information in a timely and convenient
manner. Shareholders are encouraged to access to the corporate
communications posted on the Company’s website to help reduce
the quantity of printed copies and hence reduce the impact on the
environment.

The Company’s website will be updated with material posted to
the website of the Stock Exchange immediately thereafter. Such
material includes but not limited to financial statements, results
announcements, circulars and notices of general meetings and
associated explanatory documents.

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available.

Shareholders shall be provided with designated contacts, email

addresses and enquiry lines of the Company in order to enable them
to make any query in respect of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Investor and Shareholder Relations (continued)
Shareholders’ Communication Policy (continued)
General Policy (continued)

The Company has reviewed the Shareholders’” Communication Policy
conducted for the year ended 31 December 2021 and considered
that the Shareholders’ Communication Policy has been well
implemented and effective.

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear, timely
and effective communication with shareholders and investors.
Accordingly, the Board and the Group’s senior management
maintains close communications with investors, analysts, fund
managers and the media by various channels including roadshows,
individual interviews and meetings. The Group specifically assigns
Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna, an executive Director and the chief
financial officer of the Company, being the contact person of investor
relations to respond the requests for information and queries from
the investors.

The Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on matters
affecting the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’
meetings to communicate with the Board or management of the
Company directly.

During the Year, there were no other changes in the Articles of
Association.

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted the dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
on 14 December 2018 which sets out the appropriate procedure on
declaring and recommending the dividend payment of the Company.
The Company takes priority to distributing dividends in cash and
shares its profits with the shareholders. The dividend distribution
decision of the Company will depend on, among others, the financial
results, the current and future operations, liquidity and capital
requirements, financial condition and other factors as the Board may
deem relevant. The Board may also declare special dividends from
time to time. The Dividend Policy will be reviewed on a regular basis.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems for the
Group. The systems are designed to manage the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatements or loss.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

The Board has overseen the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems has been conducted annually and the systems
are considered to be effective and adequate. The Company has
engaged external professional firm to carry out the analysis and
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the systems, and has procedures in place to keep information
confidential and manage actual or potential conflicts of interest.
Stringent internal structures have been designed to prevent the
misuse of inside information and avoid conflicts of interest.

During the Year, the Board complied with the code provisions on risk
management and internal control as set out in the CG Code.

During the Year, the Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted
a review on both design and implementation effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, covering
all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions are
adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee communicates any
material issues to the Board.

During the Year, the Group appointed Grant Thornton Advisory
Services Limited (“GTASL”) to:

° assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of workshops and interviews; and

° independently perform internal control review and assess
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were reported
to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover, improvements in
internal control and risk management measures as recommended
by GTASL to enhance the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and mitigate risks of the Group were adopted
by the Board. Based on the findings and recommendations of
GTASL as well as the comments of the Audit Committee, the Board
considered the internal control and risk management systems
effective and adequate.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group has established its enterprise risk management
framework in 2016. While the Board has the overall responsibility
to ensure that sound and effective internal controls are maintained,
management is responsible for designing and implementing an
internal control system to manage all kinds of risks faced by the
Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritised and allocated treatments. Our
risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise Risk
Management — Integrated Framework, which allows the Board and
management to manage the risks of the Group effectively. The Board
receives regular reports through the Audit Committee that oversights
risk management and internal audit functions.

Principal Risks

During the Year, the following principal risks faced by the Group
were identified and classified into strategic risks, operational risks,
financial risks and compliance risks.

Strategic Risks

Change in political and economic landscape, competitor landscape;
corporate strategy misalignment, reputation risk and risk of failure to
meet consumer’s expectation

Operational Risks

Risk of product liabilities, risk of poor customer services, risk of
technological breakdown, risk of purchasing/selling counterfeit
products and shoplifting risk and insufficient insurance for employee
compensation

Financial Risks

Liquidity risk, interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and inflation
risk

Compliance Risks
Risk of breach of labelling requirement, licensing requirement and

risk of change of rules and regulations in Hong Kong, Macau & the
Mainland China
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Our Risk Control Mechanism

Management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial risk controls for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, for maintaining proper accounting
records, and for ensuring the reliability of financial information to
achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the
occurrence of fraud and errors.

The Group maintains a risk register to keep track of all identified
major risks of the Group. The risk register provides the Board, the
Audit Committee, and management with a profile of its major risks
and records of management’s action taken to mitigate the relevant
risks. Each risk is evaluated at least annually based on its likelihood
of occurrence and potential impact upon the Group. The risk register
is updated by management as the risk owners with addition of new
risks and/or removal of existing risks, if applicable, at least annually,
after the annual risk evaluation has been performed. This review
process can ensure that the Group proactively manages the risks
faced by it in the sense that all risk owners have access to the risk
register and are aware of and alert to those risks in their area of
responsibility so that they can take follow-up action in an efficient
manner.

Our risk management activities are performed by management on
an ongoing process. The effectiveness of our risk management
framework will be evaluated at least annually, and periodic
management meeting is held to update the progress of risk
monitoring efforts. Management is committed to ensure that risk
management forms part of the daily business operation processes in
order to align risk management with corporate goals in an effective
manner.

The Group will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group’s system of internal controls and
risk management annually and further enhance the Group’s internal
control and risk management systems as appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group. The
Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit function and
are of the view that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the
business of the Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint
external independent professionals to perform internal audit function
for the Group in order to meet its needs. Nevertheless, the Directors
will continue to review at least annually the need for an internal audit
function.

Annual Report 2023
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Directors’ Report

The Board presents the annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in the
sections of Five-Year Financial and Operational Summary, Chairman’s
Message, Management Discussion and Analysis, Sustainability
Report and the paragraphs below.

A separate Sustainability Report will be available on the Group’s
website under the “Investor Relations” section and the website of the
Stock Exchange.

The Group complies with the requirements under the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”) for the disclosure of information
and corporate governance. The Group also complies with the
requirements of Employment Ordinance and ordinances relating to
occupational safety for the interest of employees of the Group. No
important event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of
the Financial Year.

Key Risk Factors

The following lists out the key risks and uncertainties the Group is
facing.

Global Economic Conditions

The global economic condition has been weaker than expected.
Downside risks have been increased since there is slowing growth
in emerging markets. The continuing adverse economic conditions
may affect the results of operations and financial performance of the
Group adversely.

To address economic uncertainties, the Group pursues steady
earnings growth by strengthening product portfolio, enhancing in-
store promotion, adopting careful cautious network diversification
plan on points of sales, intensifying cost controlling measures and
exploring business diversification opportunities.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Key Risk Factors (continued)
Impact of Local and International Regulations

The business operation of the Group is also subject to government
policy, relevant regulations and guidelines established by the
regulatory authorities. Failure to comply with the rules and
requirements may lead to penalties, amendments or suspension of
business operation by the authorities. The Group closely monitors
changes in government policies, regulations and markets as well as
conducting studies to assess the impact of such changes.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers
Employees

The Group recognises the accomplishment of our employees by
providing comprehensive benefit package, career development
opportunities and internal training appropriate to individual needs.
The Group provides a healthy and safe workplace for all employees.
No strikes and cases of fatality due to workplace accidents are found
in the Year.

More than a half of our employees have been serving our Group
for more than three years. As an employee-oriented corporate,
various benefits are given to our employees to boost their morale.
Employees are entitled to annual leave, sick leave, maternity leave,
paternity leave and statutory holidays. Salaries of employees are
maintained at competitive levels while bonuses are granted on a
discretionary basis. Other employee benefits include mandatory
provident fund, statutory and medical insurance and sales
commission. The total employee benefit expenses of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$59.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: approximately HK$68.1 million).

The Group commits to managing its business without undue
influence and has regarded honesty, integrity and fairness as its
core values. All directors and employees are strictly prohibited from
exercising authority, making influenced decisions and actions or
gaining access to the Group’s assets and information through their
employment in the Group to achieve private and personal gain.
Disciplinary action would be taken if an employee has committed an
act of serious misconduct. Directors and officers liability insurance is
in place to protect the Group’s interest in case of any wrongful acts
of employees.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Key Risk Factors (continued)

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers
(continued)

Employees (continued)

Employees’ performance review and appraisal are conducted
annually. Remuneration and promotion decisions are made according
to employees’ performance appraisal results, so as to reward and
encourage positive behaviour of employees. A structured training
and development approach has been established to ensure that
employees receive consistent training to suit business needs and
help improve their knowledge and skill, as well as building their
career in our Group.

Customers

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers
through various means and channels, including usage of business
intelligence to understand customer trends and needs and
regular analyse on customer feedback. The Group also conducts
comprehensive tests and checks to ensure that only quality products
are offered to the customers.

Most of our customers are retail customers which represented
approximately 6.82% of our total turnover during the Year. As
wholesale customers usually make purchases in bulk, they are given
a discount to the retail price offered at the retail stores. We do
not enter into any long-term sales agreements with our wholesale
customers. During the Year, the five largest customers accounted for
approximately 86% of our total turnover. We have maintained long-
term well-established business relationships with our customers,
amongst which three of them have more than ten years of business
relationships with us as at the date of the annual report. All of our
five largest customers during the Year are independent third parties.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Key Risk Factors (continued)

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers
(continued)

Customers (continued)

All of our retail sales at our retail stores are settled in cash, by
smart card, credit card or mobile digital payment. Our wholesale
customers usually settle their purchases in cash upon delivery.
However, as determined by the management on a case by case
basis, open credit terms with a maximum limit of HK$1.0 million of
30 days to 120 days may be granted to established customers with
satisfactory payment records and creditworthiness. During the Year,
credit sales accounted for approximately approximately 70% of our
total turnover. Our Directors consider that the credit policy adopted
by us is prudent. During the Year, the approximate percentage of
total turnover settled by cash payments and non-cash payments
are approximately 30% and approximately 70% respectively. Details
of the trade receivables of the Group as at 31 December 2023 are
set out in note 24 to the financial statements. Up to the date of the
report, none of the trade receivables from the major customers has
been settled.

During the Year, we did not encounter any material sales returns from
our customers. It is our policy that returned goods can be refunded
or exchanged for other products after purchase at our retail stores
and upon receipt from online purchase subject to certain conditions
were within 30 days and 7 days respectively.

Suppliers

The Group encompasses working relationships with suppliers to
meet our customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner.
The departments work closely to make sure the tendering and
procurement process is conducted in an open, fair and just manner.

We source our products from our selected local and overseas
distributors, manufacturers and traders of which more than half of
our products are sourced from local suppliers and the rest are from
overseas including Japan, Korea, Switzerland, France, Thailand
and the Mainland China etc. We purchase our products mainly
from authorised distributors, directly from manufacturers and some
supplied by independent traders. We have never placed excessive
reliance on any one of our suppliers and our Directors anticipate
that there will not be any supply problem in the foreseeable future.
Our five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 97% of our
total purchase during the Year. All five of them are independent third
parties and have more than 2 years of business relationships with us
as at the date of the annual report.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Key Risk Factors (continued)

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers
(continued)

Suppliers (continued)

QOur yearly product research and development plan will be reviewed
and modified seasonally to catch up with the fast-moving trend and
market situation if necessary. In order for us to cooperate with good
reputation partners, we have adopted supplier selection policy. We
only procure our products from our list of selected suppliers. In
selecting our suppliers, we assess on, and take into account, factors
in various aspects, including quality of their products, price rate,
popularity of their cosmetic and related products, lead time, trading
terms, advertising and promotion support and credibility of the
supplier.

Given the great variety of our products sold, we have not relied on
any single brand or any particular supplier for the provision of the
Group’s products. Our Directors consider any failure of our Group
to purchase from a particular supplier would not have any material
impact on our business.

Our overseas suppliers generally request us to pay 30% to 50%
deposit of the order sum before delivery of our products and settle
the remaining balance before or after the product arrival depending
on the sales terms. For our local suppliers, the credit period may
vary from 30 to 120 days. We generally make our payments within
the credit terms by means of telegraphic transfer, letter of credit
or cheque. Details of the trade payables of the Group as at 31
December 2023 are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.
Up to the date of the annual report, none of the trade payables to
the major suppliers as at 31 December 2023 has been settled.

During the Year, the Group did not have any significant disputes with
our major suppliers.

Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income on pages 90 to 91.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any interim and final
dividends for the Year (2022: Nil).
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 19 June 2024 to Wednesday, 26 June 2024, both days
inclusive, during the period no transfer of shares will be registered.
The holders of shares whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Wednesday, 26 June 2024 will be
entitled to attend and vote at the AGM of the Company. In order
to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company, all transfer of shares, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and transfer forms, must be lodged with
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Union Registrars Limited, at Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two Chinachem
Exchange Square, 338 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 18 June 2024.

Five-Year Financial and Operational Summary

A summary of the financial results, assets, liabilities and operational
data of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
2. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements
on page 180.

Share Capital

The Company’s total issued share capital as at 31 December 2023
was 4,754,316,000 shares of par value of HK$0.01 per share.
Details of movements of the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the Year are set out in notes 38 and 39 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 211 to 215 and in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 94 respectively.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, share
premium, share-based payment reserve and retained profits of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders. As at 31 December
2022 and 2023, none of the Company’s reserves were available for
distribution to the shareholders.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Segment Information

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by reportable
segments is set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 165 to 168.

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee, and approved by the Board, as authorised
by the shareholders in the AGM of the Company, having regard
to their time commitment and responsibilities, the salaries paid by
comparable companies, employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration. No
Directors are involved in deciding their own remuneration.

The Group offers comparative remuneration package, including
medical and retirement benefits, to eligible employees. Apart from
basic salary, executive directors and employees are eligible to
receive a discretionary bonus taking into account of the factors
such as market conditions as well as corporate and individual’s
performance during the Year.

The Company has also adopted share option schemes as an
incentive to the Directors, eligible employees and consultants, details
of the schemes are set out in this “Directors’ Report” under the
heading “Share Option”.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those Hong Kong employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme, which contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and the employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension scheme
(the “Central Pension Scheme”, together with the MPF Scheme, the
“Defined Contribution Schemes”) operated by the local municipal
government, which these subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage, which was pre-determined by the local municipal
government, of the sum of basic salary and allowance of employees to
the Central Pension Scheme. The contributions by the Group for the
Defined Contribution Schemes are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the relevant rules
of the respective schemes.

The Group’s contributions to the Defined Contribution Schemes
vest fully and immediately with the employees. Accordingly, (i) for
each of the two years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2023, there was no forfeiture of contributions under the Defined
Contribution Schemes; and (ii) there were no forfeited contributions
available for the Group to reduce its existing level of contributions to
the Defined Contribution Schemes as at 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2023.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Emolument Policy (continued)

For each of the two years ended 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2023, the Group did not have any defined benefit plan.

Emoluments of Directors, Five Highest Paid Individuals and
Senior Management

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, the five highest paid
individuals and the senior management of the Group are set out in
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 173 to
178.

Equity-linked agreement

Details of the equity-linked agreement entered into during the Year or
subsisting at the end of the Year are set out below:

Convertible Bonds

On 29 June 2022, all the outstanding Convertible Bonds were
redeemed in full. For further details, please refer to the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Financial Review —
Redemption of Convertible Bonds and Issue of Warrants” above in
the annual report.

Share Option
I 2003 Scheme

Share options are granted to the Directors, executives and
employees of the Company under the share option scheme
approved by a resolution in writing passed by the sole
shareholder on 17 June 2003 and was terminated by the
shareholders on 27 May 2009 (the “2003 Scheme”).

Il. 2009 Scheme

On 27 May 2009, the Company has passed a resolution in a
shareholders’ meeting for the adoption of a new share option
scheme which was terminated by the shareholders on 24 May
2019 (the “2009 Scheme”).
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Share Option (continued)

2019 Scheme

On 24 May 2019, the Company has passed a resolution in a
shareholders’ meeting for the adoption of a new share option

scheme (the “2019 Scheme”).

Outstanding share options

granted under the 2019 Scheme prior to such termination
shall continue to be valid and, subject to the vesting schedule,
exercisable in accordance with the 2019 Scheme. The vesting
period for options shall not be less than 12 months.

(1)

2

Purpose

The purpose of the 2019 Scheme is to enable the Group
to grant options to selected participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group. The Directors
consider the 2019 Scheme, with its broadened basis
of participation, will enable the Group to reward the
employees, the Directors and other selected participants
for their contributions to the Group.

Who May Join

The Directors may, at its absolute discretion, invite any
person belonging to any of the following classes of
participants, to take up options to subscribe for shares:

(@) any eligible employee or any of our subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity;

(b) any directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, any of our subsidiaries or
any associated companies;
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Share Option (continued)

2019 Scheme (continued)

(2) Who May Join (continued)

(©

any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
and

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and

For the avoidance of doubt, the grant of any options by the
Company for the subscription of shares or other securities of the
Group to any person who fall within any of the above classes of
participants shall not, by itself, unless the Directors otherwise
determined, be construed as a grant of option under the 2019
Scheme.

The eligibility of any of the above class of eligible participants to the

grant of any option shall be determined by the Directors from time to

time on the basis of the Directors’ opinion as to his/her contribution

or potential contribution to the development and growth of the
Group.
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Share Option (continued)

lll. 2019 Scheme (continued)
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BONJOUR

(3) Maximum Number of Shares Subject to the 2019

Scheme

(@ The initial total number of shares which may be
allotted and issued upon exercise of all options
(excluding, for this purpose, options which have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the 2019
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group) to be granted under the 2019 Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue
at the day on which the 2019 Scheme is approved

(the “General Scheme Limit”").
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Share Option (continued)

2019 Scheme (continued)

(3) Maximum Number of Shares Subject to the 2019
Scheme (continued)

(b)

The Company may issue a circular to the
shareholders and seek approval of the shareholders
in general meeting to refresh the General Scheme
Limit provided that the total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the 2019 Scheme and any
other share options scheme of the Group must
not exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the
date of approval of the refreshed limit and for the
purpose of calculating the refreshed limit, options
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or
exercised in accordance with the 2019 Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Group)
previously granted under the 2019 Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Group will not be
counted. The circular sent by the Company to the
shareholders shall contain, among other information,
the information required under Rule 17.02(2)(d) of
the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Share Option (continued)

lll. 2019 Scheme (continued)

(3) Maximum Number of Shares Subject to the 2019
Scheme (continued)

©

The Company may seek separate shareholders’
approval in general meeting to grant options beyond
the General Scheme Limit or, if applicable, the
refreshed limit referred to in (c) above to participants
specifically identified by the Company before such
approval is sought. In such event, the Company
must send a circular to the shareholders containing
a general description of the specified participants,
the number and terms of options to be granted,
the purpose of granting options to the specified
participants with an explanation as to how the terms
of the options serve such purpose, the information
required under Rule 17.02(2)(d) of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Share Option (continued)

2019 Scheme (continued)

4)

(5)

Maximum Entitlement of Each Participant

The total number of shares issued and which may fall
to be allotted and issued upon exercise of the options
granted under the 2019 Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised
or outstanding options) to each eligible participant in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued
shares for the time being (the “Individual Limit”). Any
further grant of options in excess of the Individual Limit in
any 12-month period up to and including the date of such
further grant shall be subject to the issue of a circular
to the shareholders and the shareholders’ approval in
general meeting of the Company with such participant
and his/her associates abstaining from voting. The
number and terms (including the exercise price) of options
to be granted to such participant must be fixed before the
shareholders’ approval and the date of Board meeting for
proposing such further grant should be taken as the date
of grant for the purpose of calculating the exercise price
under note (1) to Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing Rules.

Subscription Price for Shares and Consideration for
the Option

The subscription price for shares under the 2019 Scheme
will be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not
be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of the offer of grant, which must be a Business
Day; (i) the average closing price of shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant;
and (i) the nominal value of the shares.

A nominal consideration of HK$1
acceptance of the grant of an option.

is payable on

Annual Report 2023
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Share Option (continued)
lll. 2019 Scheme (continued)
(6) Time of Acceptance and Exercise of Option

An offer of the grant of an option may be accepted by
a participant within 21 days from the date of the offer of
grant of the option.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the 2019 Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence on the date upon which the
offer for the grant of options is made but shall end in any
event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the option subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof.

(7) Minimum Period

The vesting Period for options shall not be less than 12
months.

(8) Period of the 2019 Scheme

The 2019 Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years commencing on the date on which the 2019
Scheme is adopted and the remaining life of the 2019
Scheme is 6 years.

The total number of shares available for issue under
share option scheme is 341,256,599 shares, representing
approximately 7.18% of the issued share of the Company
as at the date of the annual report.

No share option has been granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled
under the 2019 Scheme up to the date of the annual report.

The number of share option available for grant under the scheme
mandate of the share option scheme as at 31 December 2022 and
2023 is 341,256,599.

The number of shares that may be issued in respect of options
granted under the share option scheme of the Company during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023 is nil, representing 0% of
the weighted average number of shares of the relevant class in issue
of the Company for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
the annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Jianwen (Chairman)

Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel (Vice-Chairman)
Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kwok Chi Shing

Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan

Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning

In accordance with article 108 of the Articles of Association, Mr.
Chen Jianwen and Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming AGM of the Company. All the retiring Directors,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM of the
Company.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group as at the date of the annual report are set out on pages 26 to
29.

Directors’ Service Contracts

All Directors have entered into a service agreement with the
Company. Each of Mr. Chen Jianwen and Mr. Wan Yim Keung,
Daniel has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for an initial term of two years commencing from April 2020 will
continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less
than 30 days’ notice in writing. Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term of 3
years commencing from 31 December 2020 to 30 December 2023
and will continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving
not less than 30 days’ notice in writing. Mr. Kwok Chi Shing has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term of 1
year commencing from 21 September 2020 to 20 September 2021
and will continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving
not less than 30 days’ notice in writing. Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term of 1
year commencing from 31 August 2020 to 30 August 2021 and will
continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less
than 30 days’ notice in writing. Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term of 1
year commencing from 15 September 2020 to 14 September 2021
and will continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving not
less than 30 days’ notice in writing.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Directors’ Service Contracts (continued)

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the AGM of the
Company has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation.

Directors’ Material interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts that are significant in relation to the Group’s
business

Save as disclosed in the annual report, no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its parent company, its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries were a party and in which a director of the
company or his/her connected entities had a material interest, where
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.

Indemnity of Directors

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for
the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force
throughout the Year.

Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company or Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2023, save as disclosed under the heading
“Share Option”, the interests of the Directors and Chief Executive
Officer in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV

) 2R MERRMD REEE TSR of the SFO) disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules were as
ZREERUWT follows:
MEXBKRMG ZEES Interest in the shares of the Company
giEkRn#E HEBITRERL
EENUS SO kMEE (Ht5t4) “HEt B
Approximate
Number of percentage of
ordinary shares issued share
Name of Directors Capacity and nature (Note 4) Total capital
PR et BEamEEA 3,485,945,868 3,485,945,868 73.32%
Mr. Chen Jianwen Beneficial owner
FlEBRELE BEamEEA 7,300,000 7,300,000 0.15%
Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel ~ Beneficial owner
HEREZLT ERBEBEA 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.02%
Ms. Chiu Lai Kuan Susanna Beneficial owner
o= Note:
(1) PEEXHEEDHE1,577,287,000088 (1)  Mr. Chen Jianwen has charged 1,577,287,000 shares, representing
h(EAAB 23T ALI3.18%) approximately 33.18% of the issued share capital of the Company, as
B > EAXKERARE—IBEDRG security for a loan in the amount of HK$10,000,000 provided by the
= Tj% gf; —;ﬁ +%7%410,000,000% 7T Chargee under a loan agreement.
grtﬁ}\ JIER ©

“ECFFR
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company or Associated Corporation (continued)

Interest in the shares of the Company (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors or the Chief Executive Officer had, pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, nor were they taken to or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO, any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) or any interests which are required to be entered into
the register of interests kept by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO or any interests which are required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
set out in the Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules, was interested in or
had any short position.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debt Securities

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the Year was the
Company, its parent company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt
securities including debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate; and none of the Directors, chief executive officer of the
Company or their spouse or children under the age of 18, had any
right to subscribe for securities of the Company or had exercised any
such rights during the Year.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business
During the Year, none of the Directors or management shareholders
of the Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) had an interest in a

business which compete or may co-operate with the business of the
Group.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

CEPNCEELTEETTE

n

BONJOUR

REMNEE Long Positions in the Shares
HERTRG
BAERL
(Htat1)
Number of Number of Approximate
ordinary underlying PRI & E percentage of
MRS, BiE B/ EaltE shares shares Number of issued shares
Name of shareholders Capacity/Nature of interests EERMHE  HARGCHE shares held (Note 1)
JL INVESTMENTS CAPITAL EmBEBEA 1,577,287,000 - 1,577,287,000 33.18%
LIMITED Beneficial Owner (hizt2)
(Note 2)
v REEEER 1,577,287,000 - 1,577,287,000 33.18%
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen Joseph Interest of controlled corporations
REBRAT BEmBEEA 83,110,000 581,578,947 664,688,947 13.98%
Karfond Limited Beneficial Owner (H529) (Wiz#3%9)
(Note 9) (Notes 3 and 9)
BRREREBRAA SELERES 83,110,000 581,578,947 664,688,947 13.98%
Far East Consortium Limited Interest of controlled corporations (H7229) (Hti#4%9)
(Note 9) (Notes 4 and 9)
Far East Consortium (B.V.I.) Limited S AE &R 83,110,000 581,578,947 664,688,947 13.98%
Interest of controlled corporations (H7:29) (Hr:25%9)
(Note 9) (Notes 5 and 9)
HEERRAT REEEETD 83,110,000 581,578,947 664,688,947 13.98%
Ample Bonus Limited Interest of controlled corporations (hzt9) (Hiz6%9)
(Note 9) (Notes 6 and 9)
Far East Consortium International R £E#E R 83,110,000 581,578,947 664,688,947 13.98%
Limited Interest of controlled corporations (H7229) (Hr:27k9)
(Note 9) (Notes 7 and 9)
Sumptuous Assets Limited REEEER 83,110,000 581,578,047 664,688,947 13.98%
Interest of controlled corporations (H7:29) (Hr:27k9)
(Note 9) (Notes 7 and 9)
Far East Organization (International) S#ExE#R 83,110,000 581,578,947 664,688,947 13.98%
Limited Interest of controlled corporations (H7329) (Hr:27k9)
(Note 9) (Notes 7 and 9)
BEELE REEEELG 83,110,000 581,578,947 664,688,947 13.98%
Mr. Chiu David Interests in a controlled corporation (H7229)
(Note 9)
BREFLL FofEm 83,110,000 581,578,947 664,688,947 13.98%
Ms. Chiu Ng Nancy Interest of spouse GEX) (W57 879)
(Note 9)  (Notes 7~8 and 9)
“ET-FFR

Substantial Shareholders’ Interest and Short Positions in the

As at 31 December 2023, the following persons (not being a Director
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares which fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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(5)  Far East Consortium (B.V.l.) Limited
NEAEHEERLAB2EHB A
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TERAR D PR o

6) HEBEERLRBMWERAHFar East
Consortium International Limited%®
Z¥EH o AL > Far East Consortium
International Limited# 1R &1 145 5 R
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HFEE#ER -
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interest and Short Positions in the
Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company (continued)

Long Positions in the Shares (continued)

Notes:

(1) These percentages have been compiled based on the total number of
issued shares as at 31 December 2023 (i.e. 4,754,315,999 shares).

(2)  The share capital of JL INVESTMENTS CAPITAL LIMITED was wholly
owned by Mr. Lau Chi Yuen Joseph. Accordingly, Mr. Lau Chi Yuen
Joseph is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by JL
INVESTMENTS CAPITAL LIMITED.

(83)  The share capital of Karfond Limited was wholly owned by Far East
Consortium Limited. Accordingly, Far East Consortium Limited is
deemed to be interested in all the underlying shares held by Karfond
Limited.

(4)  The share capital of Far East Consortium Limited was wholly owned by
Far East Consortium (B.V.l.) Limited. Accordingly, Far East Consortium
(B.V.I.) Limited is deemed to be interested in all the underlying shares
held by Far East Consortium Limited.

(5)  The share capital of Far East Consortium (B.V.l.) Limited was wholly
owned by Ample Bonus Limited. Accordingly, Ample Bonus Limited is
deemed to be interested in all the underlying shares held by Far East
Consortium (B.V.l.) Limited.

(6)  The share capital of Ample Bonus Limited was wholly owned by
Far East Consortium International Limited. Accordingly, Far East
Consortium International Limited is deemed to be interested in all the
underlying shares held by Ample Bonus Limited.

(7)  The share capital of Far East Consortium International Limited was
substantially owned by Sumptuous Assets Limited with 48.6% of its
share capital and Mr. Chiu David with 0.96% of its share capital. And
the share capital of Sumptuous Assets Limited was wholly owned by
Far East Organization (International) Limited. Furthermore, the share
capital of Far East Organization (International) Limited was wholly
owned by Mr. Chiu David. Accordingly, Sumptuous Assets Limited,
Far East Organization (International) Limited and Mr. Chiu David are
deemed to be interested in all the underlying shares held by Far East
Consortium International Limited.

(8)  These underlying shares are held by Mr. Chiu David, as Mrs. Chiu Ng
Nancy is the spouse of Mr. Chiu David, Mrs. Chiu Ng Nancy is deemed
to be interested in all the shares held by Mr. Chiu David by virtue of the
SFO.

(9)  These underlying shares are unlisted warrants issued by the Company
to Karford Limited on 29 June 2023 upon full redemption of the
Convertible Bonds. These interests in shares comprise of (i) a total of
83,110,000 shares held by Karfond Limited; and (ii) the 581,578,947
underlying shares that may be subscribed for pursuant to the
581,578,947 unlisted warrants issued by the Company to Karfond
Limited on 29 June 2022.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities

Save as disclosed herein, there was no purchase, sale or redemption
by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of any listed securities of
the Company during the Year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Year, the Group’s largest and five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 39% and approximately 97% of
the Group’s purchases respectively, and the Group’s largest and
five largest customers accounted for approximately 42% and
approximately 86% of the Group’s turnover respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates, or any shareholder,
which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital has any interest in any of the
Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.

Investments in Subsidiaries

The principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements on pages
226 to 227.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company or its
subsidiaries were entered into or existed during the Year.

Event after the reporting period

Particulars of events after the reporting period are set out in note 47
to the consolidated financial statements.

Corporate Governance
The Company is committed to adopting corporate governance

practices. The Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 30 to 50.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Related Party Transactions

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded
as “related parties” under the applicable accounting standards.
Details of these transactions are disclosed in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements. In the opinion of the Directors,
the transactions disclosed as related party transactions in note 45
to the consolidated financial statements do not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined under
the Listing Rules in force at the time of the entering into of the
relevant transactions, which is either a de minimis transaction or
under exemption, both are exempt from the announcement, the
circular and the independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Market Overview

The full year retail sales in 2023 released by the Census and
Statistics Department (“Statistics”) was HK$407 billion (2022:
HK$350 billion), increased by 16.2% in value and 13.8% in volume
over 2022, given the relative low base in 2022. According to the
Hong Kong Tourism Board, the total number of visitors to Hong
Kong in 2023 amounted to 34 million (2022: 605,000), the rebound
was mainly driven by resurgence in tourism after re-opening between
Hong Kong and the Chinese border.

While consumer sentiment remains relatively steady, majority of
consumers were more cautious about spending due to the global
economic uncertainties, especially attributed to China’s slow
economic recovery and the underperformance of Hong Kong’s
equity and real estate markets. Hong Kong faced the challenges in
attracting visitors, including appreciation of the Hong Kong dollar
against the Renminbi, regional competition and changing spending
patterns of incoming visitors. Hong Kong residents “tripping north”
to Shenzhen and travelling overseas have also become a growing
trend that impacted local retail sales.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Market Overview (continued)

Looking ahead to 2024, consumers feel some pressure and are
cautiously about the economy recovery and plan their purchases
more on essential items. However, the Group is still optimistic about
the outlook for the retail industry as the Greater Bay Area continues
to provide opportunities. Digital eCommerce is expected to continue
to grow. This is the digital future for the Group to adopt and offer
opportunities to local and international merchants by quickly pivoting
and innovating new, convenience and tactile shopping experiences.

The Group will continue its core focus of retail transformation in
the alignment with the strategic imperatives and the deployment
of a network-based global omnichannel system, which include
the coordination among customer channels, efficient operational
processes, easy of payment methods and supply chain
management, Through the customer-centric ordering portal, effective
electronic payment and efficient supply chain management, HKMall
eCommerce is able to meet the changing consumer needs on
diverse brands and more personalised shopping experience.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Business Review

The Group commenced its business transformation since early
2020 and has digitally transformed into a new business ecosystem
leveraging on “Technology + Consumption”. On the product side,
the Group expanded the product range from pure cosmetics
products to ‘Beauty, Health & Lifestyle products, enhancing
consumers experience including extension to cover technology
products. In terms of operations, the Group has leveraged on
technology innovation to transform the traditional retail business
to a new ecosystem, of which the Group and all stakeholders
including consumers, merchants and suppliers will benefit. This is
achieved by (1) establishing an 020 system integrating offline with
online operations to enhance consumers’ shopping experience (2)
establishing a global eCommerce platform ‘HKMALL (F#E3) to
serve Hong Kong merchants as well as overseas brands across 34
countries over 44 market platforms. (3) establishing an ecosystem to
assist Hong Kong small and medium enterprises (SMEs) to digitally
transform their traditional business into new business models.

. New Retail 020: HKMall

Consumer behavior post-COVID has altered significantly.
Consumers have turned to online shopping instead of going
out to physical stores. International retail brands have also
switched their focus to online sales. The Group was well aware
of this trend and have made transformation plans. Since 2020
and continuing into 2023, the Group strategically optimised the
number of retail stores and underperforming stores are closed
for better cost control. As of 31 December 2023, the Group
operated 6 physical retail stores in Hong Kong and Macau.
The Group switched focus to online retail through expanding
cross-border eCommerce platform “HKMALL”. The Group will
continue to leverage on technology to enhance the shopping
experience of consumers to improve sales.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Business Review (continued)

New Retail 020: HKMall (continued)

The Group applied various leading new retail technologies,
including live streaming, intelligent shopping guide, smart push,
image search, voice search, and data bank, to its eCommerce
platform Bonjour HKMALL (F#E%) (“HKMALL”), which greatly
enhanced the online shopping experience for customers.

HKMALL is an omni-channel eCommerce platform that not
only sells products and branded merchandises with exclusive
distributorship rights, but also assists small and medium
enterprises (SMEs) in expanding their sales network via
HKMALL efficiently and effectively to markets in the Greater
Bay Area and overseas countries. The Group sells authentic
goods, and offers SMEs an easy way of payment settlement,
logistics support and data services, providing a fast track to
SMEs to digitally transform their businesses. HKMALL covered
34 countries including the UK, the US, Canada, Australia,
France and Singapore, across 44 market platforms in mainland
China and overseas, including Tmall Global, Kaola, JD.com,
Facebook and WeChat Mall etc.

With the fast rise of the KOL economy, the Group has its own
direct broadcasting studio with an area of over 10,000 sq.
ft. for KOLs to conduct sales on social media. As a result,
the Group is able to enhance the interaction of consumer
experience and customer loyalty, while accumulating online
subscriptions and “Likes” to boost its turnover. The Group
also collaborated with various association to launch open
competitions to nurture external KOLs. The gross merchandise
value (GMV) of completed orders on 020 platform (including
beauty products and technology products) amounted to
approximately HK$1.7 billion for the Year.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Business Review (continued)

New Retail 020: HKMall (continued)

Currently, the Group offers over 300,000 SKUs, and distributes
over 100 well-known brands, including, exclusive distribution
of Suisse Reborn, Dr. Bauer, Yumei, WOWWOW, Dr. Schafter
and 1.Skin Focus. Apart from skincare, fragrance, cosmetics,
haircare and body-care, the Group also sourced healthcare
and lifestyle products all over the world. Recently, a variety of
quality products are offered at competitive prices. The Group
continuously pays close attention to the market trends and
consumer behavior, and research on latest hot items to satisfy
the ever-changing customers’ needs.

Industry Innovation: HKIIC

Apart from its own development, the Group is also committed
to providing SMEs with the best eCommerce services and
all-rounded intelligent retail solutions, helping businesses
to transform to digital and traditional industries to innovate.
The Group not only supports businesses to streamline costs
and improve efficiency, but also empowers customers to
achieve operational excellence through the flexible use of the
capabilities of the Bonjour Technology platform.

To enable traditional business to transform to new business
models, the Group has established the “Hong Kong Industry
Innovation Centre” (HKIIC), which aims to support the
digital transformation of business by combining “industry +
technology + capital”. The HKIIC also serves as the Hong
Kong site of the “Guangdong Hongkong and Macau Youth
Entrepreneurship Incubator”, offering one-stop services for
office sharing, start-up incubation and acceleration, financing
facilitation and ecosystem development. Both the Guangdong
Hongkong and Macau Youth Entrepreneurship Incubator
and the Hong Kong site were approved for inclusion into the
Cyberport Accelerator Support Programme (CASP) as an
accelerator recognised by Cyberport.

HKIIC has entered cooperation agreements with many strong
strategic partners including China Resources, HK Federation
of Education Workers, HK Science and Technology Youth
Federation, Harbin Women Entrepreneurs Association, and
in Panyu with Guangdong, Hongkong and Macau Youth
Entrepreneurship Incubator to establish a “GBA Incubation
Base for Beauty Industry” in collaboration with China
International Beauty Expo (CIBE).
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Business Review (continued)

Beauty: Exploring “Comprehensive Health” Business

During the Year, the Group expanded beauty services to
cover health services led by experienced experts in the sector
through the brand-new “Bonjour Health & Wellness Medical
Centre” which will offer one-stop new experience of healthy
lifestyle and beauty to customers. The Group actively explored
the possibility of expanding into “Comprehensive Health”
business under the development approach of “Beauty, Health
& Beautiful Life”. Bonjour Health Limited (“Bonjour Health”),
an associate of the Group, commenced strategic business
discussion with leading aesthetic medical experts in Hong
Kong to develop “Comprehensive Health” series. The Group
expects to capture enormous opportunities in markets across
the Greater Bay Area and even Asia with quality.

Bonjour Technology

Based on the new concept of “Beauty, Health & Beautiful
Life”, the Group has been actively promoting “technology +
consumption” since 2020 leading the new 5G digital economy.
The Group has upgraded from a traditional beauty industry
retailer to a global eCommerce company, and is committed
to provide consumers with international general merchandise
products and professional services, as well as to provide the
best quality of eCommerce services for Hong Kong’s small and
medium-sized enterprises.

Bonjour Technology, a subsidiary of the Company supported
by the industrial digital innovation platform, has developed
major businesses such as big data integration, industrial
innovation incubation service, and science and technology
investment, providing Hong Kong’s incubation of science and
technology with platform support through the accumulation
of various innovative resources, which in turn help realise the
industrialization of scientific and technological achievements,
and the strategic policy of Hong Kong industry going global.
Bonjour Technology has entered cooperation agreements with
many leading technology players including Beosin Technology
Limited on cyber governance, and in previous years with China
Mobile Hong Kong and Huawei Cloud.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Business Review (continued)

3C Product Business

Bloomberg 2023 smartphone survey reported that 79% Gen Z
smartphone users prefer iphone over other competitive models.
Market research showed that Apple captures over 50% of
market share with a penetration rate of almost 97% in Hong
Kong and iphone sales is expected to grow at 7% per year with
modest price increases.

Since 2021, Bonjour Group made a strategic move to capture
the growth potentials of 3C product through expanding
our market reach in trading technology products. The 3C
product business uses a cost-plus pricing strategy for B2B
business model. The robust revenue growth in 2023 strives
Bonjour Group’s confidence on continuous exploration of
new business model in the sustainable growth of selling new
products, hence ensuring a stable profit for the Group. In 2024,
economists have lowered their assessments of recession risk
on technology markets segment. The Group remains very
optimistic on the technology products to achieve modest
growth.

In the 3C product business, the Group acted as a “Principal”
bearing transaction risks. As a reputable brand owner and
value-added partner, the Group operates as a strategic and
valueadded party to the 3C product business. The Group’s
reputation not only ensures a wider customer base for
consumer products but also provides assurance to relevant
suppliers and customers when securing orders.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Outlook

S&P Global Ratings expects that retail sales in China will experience
a modest growth of 4.2% in 2024. In contrast, Hong Kong is
projected to see a 5% year-on-year growth, primarily driven by sub-
categories such as department stores, medicines and cosmetics,
and luxury goods. Despite the potential impact of global economic
challenges on consumer spending for non-essential goods, tourism
remains a crucial driver for retail business growth in Hong Kong. The
government is actively launching campaigns and initiatives to attract
visitors to the city. To facilitate comfortable and confident shopping
experiences for tourists, the Group has obtained relevant licenses
and transformed over 15,000 sq ft of its premises — Bonjour Tower —
into product display showrooms. The company has also collaborated
with tour groups and agencies to provide tourists with a peace of
mind while shopping.

ECommerce has transitioned from being a growth opportunity
to an essential aspect, emphasising the importance of building
strong consumer engagement and delivering exceptional customer
experiences. Bonjour Group will continue to prioritise investments
in its eCommerce platform, HKMall, which goes beyond being
a simple online shop. HKMall has established an omnichannel
shopping ecosystem that integrates sales management and supply
chain networks. This allows merchants to set up their own e-shops
and upload product catalogs to sell merchandise online. HKMall
offers SMEs a valuable opportunity to adopt a consumer-centric
strategy and operate their own e-shops, providing consumers with
onestop services that combine innovative product offerings with
digital innovation. It serves as a pathway for SMEs in Hong Kong
to rapidly transform their traditional businesses into new digital
models. By leveraging omnichannel data and analytics, merchants
become partners of the Group and gain the ability to sell high-value
merchandise to 34 countries across 44 global market platforms.

Digital transformation applies not only to front-line operations but
also extends to internal transaction processing. By leveraging
technology, internal processes and structures can be streamlined,
resulting in increased efficiency. This helps control overall costs
and generates higher value per employee. Additionally, embracing
digital and paperless transactions contributes to the organization’s
environmental sustainability efforts by reducing the consumption
of physical resources. The Group will continue to invest in and
collaborate with technology partners to provide an enhanced
shopping experience for customers on both physical and online
platforms.

On the product front, the Group will continue its transformation from
a traditional retailer of beauty products to a new business ecosystem
that offers a full range of products in “Beauty, Health & Lifestyle,”
including technology products. This diversification of products aims
to cater to evolving consumer needs and create a better life for
all. The Group will also continue nurturing sole agency brands and
private labels. This diversification strategy helps to mitigate risks and
enhance profitability in the revenue portfolio.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Outlook (continued)

With the support of the HKMall global eCommerce platform and a
wide spectrum of products, the Group plans to expand its reach
into the Greater Bay Area (GBA) and other parts of Asia, enabling
the sale of quality products in the GBA and facilitating the export
of Mainland merchandise to overseas markets through the HKMall
platform.

In conclusion, Bonjour is well-positioned to seize timely opportunities
for economic recovery and collaborate with strategic partners in
global eCommerce development, leveraging the combination of
“Technology + Consumption + Capital” to provide increased returns
to its shareholders.

Given the improved profit prospects of the Group and the objective
of returning value to shareholders, the Board has decided to
implement a dividend policy that includes the distribution of bonus
shares or cash dividends, subject to specific conditions. This
approach aims to maximise the enhancement of shareholders’
equity.

Conclusion

According to an omnichannel landscape research named “Trends
Shaping Retail in 2024”, the forecast trend is still positive especially
for those business that can create seamless and immersive
experiences integrating online and offline channels. While slowing
global growth and tighter financing as headwinds for the economy,
Hong Kong retail is projected to see a 5% year-on-year growth.

In 2024, Bonjour anticipates the robust rise of Generation Z
as a dominant consumer group in demanding for authenticity,
transparency, quality and green brands. In order to fuel their
preference for seamless omnichannel shopping experiences and
enable them to easily search, compare and purchase products, the
Group will continue its transformation from a traditional retailer of
beauty products to a new business ecosystem that offers a full range
of products in “Beauty, Health & Lifestyle,” including technology
products. The Group eCommerce HKMall platform will also continue
nurturing sole agency brands and private labels and will also execute
plans to expand its reach into the Greater Bay Area (GBA) and other
parts of Asia, enabling the sale of quality products in the GBA and
facilitating the export of Mainland merchandise to overseas markets.

To summarise, Bonjour will continue to seize timely opportunities
for economic recovery and collaborate with strategic partners in
global eCommerce development, leveraging the combination of
“Technology + Consumption + Capital” to provide increased returns
to its shareholders.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float of at least 25%
throughout the Year.

Charitable Donations

During the Year, the Group made charitable donations amounted to
approximately HK$626,000 (2022: approximately HK$890,000).

Independent Auditor

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited was appointed as the auditor of
the Company on 10 June 2022 to fill the casual vacancy following
the resignation of RSM Hong Kong on 10 June 2022. Details of the
change of auditor were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 10 June 2022.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other changes in auditor of
the Company in any of the preceding three years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the Year
have been audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited, who will
retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company. A resolution will be proposed at
the forthcoming AGM of the Company to re-appoint Grant Thornton
Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Chen Jianwen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report

° Grant Thornton
2 [=]

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BONJOUR HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bonjour
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 90 to 228, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Annual Report 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
which describes the principal conditions that raise doubt about
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. These events
or conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Inventory valuation and allowance

EENETNRIERREEIE
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

2RGE MR FES.2(v) /23 ¢

Refer to notes 5.2(iv) and 23 to the consolidated

financial statements.

RZTE-_=%F+"HA=+—8H"

EEENAET
B4 88#%023,725,0008 T Rk i F A Rt B H N
14,068,000/ 7T © 5 A 4x & M B ¥R I aE4. 7R B0 B 5t

EEEMEEMEREENSSREFEE !
Our audit procedures in relation to inventory valuation
and allowance included:

HETHFEBRMEHN KT EBRKRERFS
identifying and assessing aged and obsolete
inventories when attending inventory counts;

BURFIsABRE  F R M AL SR ENEE AR

As at 31 December 2023, the Group held gross e
inventories of approximately HK$23,725,000 and
accumulated allowance for slow-moving inventories

RHR BN A IR S E BT G AR EITEER ;
comparing the subsequent net realisable value to
the cost of inventories;

of approximately HK$14,068,000. As described in the

accounting policies in note 4.7 to the consolidated e
financial statements, inventories are stated at the lower

of cost and net realisable value.

EEERBEFEBBXRY HEXE BERMRNEFE

R SH It st i SR o

Management estimates the allowance for slow-moving
inventories with reference to inventory turnover days,
sales performance, expiry period and marketability of

inventories.

T KT E
BAYER ; &
understanding and evaluating the Group’s
inventory provision policy and the key
assumptions and judgement; and

BEEENFERBBRIERRR

HERNTIRNGHETFERE L IOREREETEMR
B

performing a recalculation, on a sample basis,
of the allowance for slow-moving inventories
recognised during the year.

EERINZEBE REZET AR HRE SRR
FENEERGHATEEEEIFHEARAE-

We focused on this area because of the significant
judgement for management to determine the
appropriate amount of allowance to be recognised for

aged or obsolete inventories.

“ECFFR
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Impairment of right-of-use assets

EENBENARERARESEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

2RGEMBERERMES.2()%18°
Refer to notes 5.2(i) and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RoZ G4 _F=+—H> SEEEFIESR
FREEENREREEMENEEIXABFRE
& 5#937,562,0008 7T

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had leased
industrial building where headquarters and warehouse
located and retail stores classified as right-of-use
assets of approximately HK$37,562,000.

ERmEBBHMGENWLDERER EAEEENK
[EREVERE == I El

The carrying amount of the right-of-use assets will
be written down to its recoverable amount when the
carrying amount exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount.

5T maT

Management determines each retail store is a cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) and monitors their financial
performance to identify the existence of impairment
indicators. Management performed impairment
assessments for all retail stores in Hong Kong and
Macau SARs market with reference to the valuation
performed by the independent professional valuer
based on value in use calculations using future
cash flow projections, with key inputs applied in the
projections such as discount rates, growth rates,
forecasted sales and gross profit margins.

%I@ BHIXABFRTEEET 7T RENT G B
== -Ft_F-t-ALEERITHES
i%%*ﬁ %9162,000/8 71 ° % ZF & E R 0] W [Cl S 2ETH AL
*"ZEFE%&/&E@%E A RARRRERBRAZERE
B ETFUETE -

Management carried out impairment assessments
for the industrial building and retail stores which
result a provision of impairment loss of approximately
HK$162,000 recognised for the year ended
31 December 2023. The recoverable amounts of such
assets are determined by value in use calculations
using discounted cash flow projections based on the
forecasts approved by management.

ESEINLrEm RAREERRBELRBADAH

@f

BERANBEARABT RGN EETHRELE
BEFREEHENBEENRESEZTEEERFLY

A 552 1) i o

We focused on this area because of the significant
judgement for management to select the appropriate
key inputs applied in the future cash flow projections
and determine the appropriate recoverable amounts of
the relevant industrial building and retail stores for the
impairment assessments.
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EESREAEEERENSEFEFEE !
Our audit procedures in relation to impairment of right-
of-use assets included:

e  THREEEHNBENRNIERT
understanding management’s process for
identifying impairment indicators;

o HREBIEETHMBEINREPELAE;
challenging the judgements made by
management in identifying impairment indicators;

o  THEHBUEXEMGEMNBEEN EARER;
evaluating the competency, capabilities and
objectivities of the independent professional
valuer;

. ;1& Tr&fi,zﬁ’zﬁﬁﬁéfﬁﬁrﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁxﬂx
i )
assessing the valuation methodology and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions used to
estimate the value in use;

s EHREFHFMEFRITENTHRERBRER
NEEM% ;
challenging the reasonableness of the key
assumptions based on our knowledge of the
business and industry;

e WESEEREERNNRESNEI TRERSEL
BARIRESmME ﬁU@JFﬁh%E’JIﬂE&E“&*ﬁ%%E
AT ERNEMERENY ;
obtaining the cash flow forecasts prepared
by management, understanding the major
assumptions adopted in the cash flow forecasts
for each CGU and checking arithmetic accuracy
of the forecast calculation;

o REFEER/EF WMBEXRFHAHE REHNXK) KE
SRR LB bR AR i AR FE AR B 7 9 0 153 5K
MEHEESEN &
comparing the major assumptions such as
growth rates, forecasted sales and gross profit
margins to historical results and evaluating their
reasonableness in light of current and expected
future market conditions; and

. %%EEEJ'E\??é\ﬂﬂ%ﬁ%%&ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ@%%ﬁ%ﬁ
evaluating the sufficiency of disclosure of the

impairment assessment made by management in
the consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Revenue recognition

EENENTREMRENER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

LR EERRMIEE4.16 5.1(iii) K8
Refer to notes 4.16, 5.1(iii) and 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EEETEREES BR - EENEERENERE
mifE - BME_T_=_F+"_A=+—HLEFE> &
EEEEWEFEL950,271,0008 T (MEBS BEX
AENHERHEEUARRMNERBE D ESL WA
64,824,000 7T 52885,447,00078 7T) ©

The Group is principally engaged in the sales
of beauty, healthcare, lifestyle and technology
products. The Group generated revenue of
approximately HK$950,271,000 (HK$64,824,000 and
HK$885,447,000 for the sales of beauty, healthcare
and lifestyle products and the sales of technology
products respectively) for the year ended 31 December
2023.

EEEINEAE DHEtRXSZNUERETEEKR
Nk EE£BE7ENE SEEERFAZEATKE
B PIT 1 U B B 8 1 B R s 1t 22 e R 2 FE SR RO PSS R o
We focused on this area because of the significant
volume and amounts of transactions and the level
of significant judgement made by management in
assessing whether the Group acts as a principal or
an agent and the timing of revenue recognition of
technology products.

“ECFFR

E5EH EEENaRIZEBSEFEE:
Our audit procedures in relation to revenue recognition
included:

o  THERITE BEEENKEBRIABHERRE S
EEEBHEZTARREAN (CERBEREME
miHE) BT ;
understanding and assessing the Group’s
revenue recognition policy and process, including
management’s assessment of principal versus
agent, particularly for the sales of technology
products;

e HISEEREAMWNmESINREEANIRIERNRS
&Eﬁm b
obtaining an understanding of design and
implementation of management’s key internal
controls in relation to revenue recognition;

s HMKRBERMBERSAN USEZRITEHEAN
FRTE Rl e 5T 4 A R & a1 I B AU IR R R 1R
%
inspecting key customers’ contracts, on
a sample basis, to identify and assess the
commercial terms and conditions relating to
transfer of control of goods with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

e BREEN-MAXGRERHEMBEMNIER
HIELERFANMERNHEER S T EREIR
B EEENWGEIBRBEESI NG &
comparing sales transactions recognised during
the year, on a sample basis, with contracts,
logistic documents and customers’ acceptance
of goods and assessing whether revenue was
recognised properly in accordance with the
Group’s revenue recognition policy; and

e HIToMBEFUHNEMNTERHKGEERES -
performing analytical procedures to identify any
unusual patterns of revenue.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the 2023 annual report
of the Company, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagements and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs wiill
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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BONJOUR

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

11th Floor

Lee Garden Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong SAR

28 March 2024

Lam Kam Fung
Practising Certificate No.: P07822
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FEEER Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
BE_E_ZFf_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

—E-= g F
2023 2022
i3 FAET FAET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
=6 Turnover 8 950,271 185,662
BEEERMAAE Cost of goods sold (887,219) (151,908)
E7 Gross profit 63,052 33,754
HMUA Other income 9 9,628 7,345
HENRBASIZWE 24  Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net 40 - 350,031
— BB AR A& I Gain on deconsolidation of a
FEARZ MR subsidiary 41 102,996 -
PAR=IIN Distribution costs (15,166) (16,369)
THHEX Administrative expenses (116,059) (154,641)
HMEEMZ Other operating expenses - (125)
DME—EEEREZEE  Share of result of a joint venture 22 24,775 (7,787)
e RKEZESHERE  Imparment loss on rental and
utility deposits - (7,621)
B 5 R EMERIR Impairment loss on trade and
BEEE other receivables (1,072) (3,625)
FREEENERSE Impairment loss on right-of-use
assets 18 (162) (1,849)
REEBHF Profit from operations 67,992 199,113
MEME Finance costs 11 (13,381) (34,624)
PR AR A iz Profit before tax 54,611 164,489
Frief (%) /% Income tax (expense)/credit 12 (640) 2,732
FEEET Profit for the year 13 53,971 167,221
SREH Earnings per share: 1.5l 4 8%
BEARK#E#E Basic and diluted 16 HK1.5 cents HK4.8 cents

FO0E228EHMMFAILE LG The notes on pages 99 to 228 are an integral part of these

BEN—MBD - FRBGTREZNR
EBFRBENGEETHBHRERMEIS
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financial statements.

consolidated financial statements. Details of dividend payable and
proposed for the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
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FEeETREMEEBKER Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
BE_ZE_=F+_H=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023
—E-= BT F
2023 2022
bzt FET FAET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
wEEEF Profit for the year 53,971 167,221
rEEHMEM Other comprehensive income/
W (B%) (#1E8) . (expense) for the year,
net of tax:
BETEENTHEE Items that will not be
EmEH subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss:
EHRFsaEEHtE Remeasurement gains on long
Al & service payment liabilities 36 98 164
BATFESFAEMEBME  Fair value changes of financial
Wz (MR AFEEFTA assets at fair value through
Hittz2mWz) 2 other comprehensive income
THEEZAFEZS  (‘FVTOCI) 20 (4,734) (13,275)
(4,636) (13,111)
B BGEEF D F #8575 Item that may be reclassified
ZIEH subsequently to profit or l0ss:
REMBBINERE 2 Exchange differences arising on
EFERER translation of foreign operations 2 (118)
rEEHEME2ERSE Other comprehensive expense
for the year (4,638) (13,229)
rEEEEUNGELEEE Total comprehensive income
for the year 49,333 153,992

FEIOE228EMM T AILFHE S The notes on pages 99 to 228 are an integral part of these

R —BE o

“ECFFR

consolidated financial statements.
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R_E_=ZfFg+_H=+—H

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
At 31 December 2023

92

—E-= —_=E_
2023 2022
baF FET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
Mz BB NKRE Property, plant and equipment 17 820 1,440
FREEE Right-of-use assets 18 37,562 53,323
BEEE Intangible assets 19 - -
HERKkEZE Rental and utility deposits 1,991 7,401
WA ESFAEMEE  Financial assets at FVTOCI
Wz EMEE 20 409 349
RBERBZKE Investments in associates 21 551 -
R—EEEtE2%E  Investment in a joint venture 22 368,400 343,625
H e W R =R Other receivables 25 - 4,900
409,733 411,038
REIEE Current assets
78 Inventories 23 9,657 7,127
FEUN & 5 iR =R Trade receivables 24 1,160 777
HERKkEZE Rental and utility deposits 6,826 4,238
BRRIE s R EAM Prepayments, deposits and
P& WL BR =R other receivables 25 60,623 40,277
WA ESFAEMEE  Financial assets at FVTOCI
Wz EMEE 20 - 24,021
IRITRIREE R Bank and cash balances 28 16,109 17,929
94,375 94,369
mEaE Current liabilities
FET B 2 IR Trade payables 29 4,811 17,365
HEM IR BEUETE  Other payables, deposits received
K EstE B and accrued charges 30 58,817 127,716
aHNaE Contract liabilities 31 8,355 -
& {5 i f8) Bt 75 =R 1B Amounts due to former related parties 26 - 35,490
FEAT YR IR R =R IE Amount due to the controlling
shareholder 27 32,142 30,118
IR1T R E A &K Bank and other borrowings 32 15,334 22,097
HEaE Lease liabilities 33 27,910 31,323
147,369 264,109
mENBERE Net current liabilities (52,994) (169,740)
MEERRBERE Total assets less current liabilities 356,739 241,298
Annual Report 2023
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REMBRRAR (B) Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
R_E_=ZFg+_H=+—H At 31 December 2023
—E-= B
2023 2022
Jiogza FET FET
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
EREBEE Non-current liabilities
HER Other borrowings 32 32,179 19,666
HEaE Lease liabilities 33 41,085 65,205
REREEEE Long service payment liabilities 36 1,239 1,039
74,503 85,910
BEEFE NET ASSETS 282,236 155,388
BRK#E Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 37 47,543 35,126
M Reserves 39 234,693 120,262
RS TOTAL EQUITY 282,236 155,388

RNZE_WNE=B_+/\HE &7

7N
BESMAERREEIT LAHLUT  Company on 28 March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

AETRBEE

Chen Jianwen Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna
PR {2 XX R
Director Director
EFE EE

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the

FOOE228EmMM I A LLE 44587  The notes on pages 99 to 228 are an integral part of these

BERH—B Do

“ECFFR

consolidated financial statements.
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FEHRERER Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BE_EFE_ZHF_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023
—E-= B _F
2023 2022
Htat FET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(&)
(Represented)
RETHFRESX 2IRERE  CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
BRAR A A Profit before tax 54,611 164,489
HAUTEBEEHRAE ! Adjustments for:
RE WA Finance costs 11 13,381 34,624
RITERF] B WA Interest income on bank deposits (28) (10)
HEREWHEENEWA Imputed interest income on rental
deposits (743) (1,004)
RITREMMETNEZFE  Imputed interest on bank and other
borrowings (3,330) -
RIRBSBE Provision for long service payments 36 260 373
ME--BEMREITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 247 884
FREBENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 23,396 26,731
HEYE - BERZBEZWE Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment - (4,602)
HEMBAB Z W F58 Gain on disposal of subsidiaries,
net 40 - (350,031)
—RERBARKRILES Gain on deconsolidation of a
AR Z e subsidiary 41 (102,996) -
NME—EeEhEZEE Share of result of a joint venture (24,775) 7,787
e KkERESRERE Impairment loss on rental and utility
deposits - 7,621
B 5 R EMEWERFURERE  Impairment loss on trade and
other receivables 1,072 3,625
FHEEERERE Impairment loss on
right-of-use assets 18 162 1,849
THIETE SR S 2 (o) Reversal of allowance for
slow-moving inventories (12,560) (8,000)
“EBC=FFR 95
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HERERER (B Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
BE_E_ZFf_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

—F— = = — —

2023 2022
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
C<==270))
(Represented)
EEELEPA 2 KERIE  Operating loss before working
capital changes (51,303) (115,664)
w5HD Decrease in inventories 10,030 27,246
FEUs B 5 BR AL 0 Increase in trade receivables (1,107) (545)
FEMRIE 5] & REMABEUW  Increase in prepayments, deposits
BRFIE N and other receivables (13,757) (3,161)
FERTE ZERF (B’L) /N  (Decrease)/increase in trade payables (816) 1,345
HEMERZ BUET2 K Increase in other payables, deposits
FEST & FRIEN received and accrued charges 421 10,229
BHEEEM Increase in contract liabilities 8,355 -
RORBEBERD Decrease in long service payment
liabilities - (466)
REEBMAZRE Cash used in operations (48,177) (81,016)
HEAGZEMNHME Interest paid on lease liabilities (6,796) (6,116)
BITREMERZEMFE  Interest paid on bank and other
borrowings (3,314) (26,138)
FE 1B R B VB 2 B4 FI Blinterest paid on amount due to the
controlling shareholder (24) -
BIFTIEIR Income taxes paid (640) -
R EBMAREFE Net cash used in operating activities (58,951) (113,270)

96 Annual Report 2023
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HERERER (&) Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
BE_EFE_ZHF_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023
2= =
2023 2022
bzt FET FAET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
C<==70))
(Represented)
RERHFRELZHERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
BUH 2 Interest received 28 10
BAYE- BEKRERE Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (17) (4,966)
HEVE - BERREZ Proceeds from disposal of property,
FrigaIE plant and equipment - 90
EEMEMKERE Repayment of rental and utility
deposits 1,717 250
HEENEIE Capital contributions to associates 21 (551) -
HEEABEM Advances to associates (12,234) (12,737)
HEIH R BB Advances to related companies (1,006) -
HERATESF AEMEE Proceeds from disposal of financial
WamzEMEEZFISMIE  assets at FVTOCI 19,227 33,527
HE M B A Z g RUIEF88Proceeds from disposal of
(OBFIHERS) a subsidiary, net of
cash disposed of 40 - 431,077
—REBARA LGS AR  Deconsolidation of
NBKEEEAEZ a subsidiary, net of
&) cash deconsolidated 41 (431) -
REZHFMELEZIREFEE  Net cash from investing activities 6,733 447,251
“EBC=FFR 97
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

BE_E_ZFf_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

—E-= =
2023 2022
k=3 FET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
==y
(Represented)
REEFHRELEZIREME CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES 42.1
RITERZFABMIE Proceeds from bank borrowings - 4,296
HERITER Repayment of bank borrowings (505) (357,599)
HMERZ FriEmIE Proceeds from other borrowings 30,050 9,240
HEEMMER Repayment of other borrowings (22,050) (9,000)
REERREZAESHIE  Proceeds from the controlling
shareholder 85,115 30,000
B R B R R Repayment to the controlling
shareholder (7,200) -
HENRNEZE 2 Principal element of lease payments (35,010) (34,936)
WEEEFREL, (FTA)  Net cash from/(used in)
REF50 financing activities 50,400 (357,999)
RERBLLEYRE/VBE NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,818) (24,018)
N—B—HZHEKEE  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
%£EY AT 1 JANUARY 17,929 41,947
EXEH FE Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes (2) -
BK+-B=+—HZ¥EK CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RELEY AT 31 DECEMBER 16,109 17,929

FO0E 228 BT AU E LS F  The notes on pages 99 to 228 are an integral part of these

BERH—B Do
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consolidated financial statements.
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BONJOUR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

GENERAL INFORMATION

Bonjour Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability. The address of
its registered office is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, P.O.
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands and its
principal place of business is 12/F., Bonjour Tower, No. 36-50
Wang Wo Tsai Street, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 46.

On 9 January 2023, the Group has lost control over Hop
Fung Lung Limited, formerly known as Bonjour Cosmetic
Wholesale Center Limited, which was principally engaged in
wholesaling and retailing of beauty, healthcare and lifestyle
products in Hong Kong, subject to a winding-up order was
made by the High Court to appoint an official receiver as a
provisional liquidator to liquidate the company. Further details
are described in note 41.

As at 31 December 2023, the Board of Directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) consider ultimate controlling party of
the Company to be Mr. Chen Jianwen.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”") and the accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The material
accounting policies adopted by the Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) that have been used in
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 4. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and amended HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial assets
stated at their fair value as explained in the accounting policy in
note 4.9.

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates and
assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the
judgements about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The areas where critical judgements in applying accounting
policies that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
are disclosed in note 5. These estimates and assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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BONJOUR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Going concern assessment

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group incurred
net cash outflows from operating activities of HK$58,951,000
and, as of that date, the Group had net current liabilities of
HK$52,994,000. The Group’s business operations are mainly
financed by bank and other borrowings, loans from the
controlling shareholder and internal source of financing. As
at 31 December 2023, the Group’s bank and cash balances
amounted to HK$16,109,000. In view of these circumstances,
the Directors have been continuously implementing measures
to improve and maintain the Group’s liquidity which include:

(@) Mr. Chen Jianwen, the ultimate controlling shareholder,
has agreed and committed to continue to support
financially the operations of the Group to meet all third-
party obligations for at least twelve-month period after 31
December 2023;

(b) The Group has taken various cost control measures to
tighten the costs of operations;

(c)  The Group is actively negotiating with external parties and
banks to obtain new sources of financing to finance the
Group’s working capital and improve the Group’s liquidity
position; and

(d)  The Group will continue to maintain its relationship with
the parties providing facilities to the Group and comply
with any covenant requirements.

In assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
the Directors have prepared a cash flow forecast which covers
a period of not less than twelve months from 31 December
2023. The Directors’ cash flow forecast made certain key
assumptions with regard to the anticipated cash flows from the
Group’s business operations and the availability of financing
facilities from external parties and the controlling shareholder.
As at the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the Group has unutilised financing facilities from
Mr. Chen and external parties amounting to HK$72,000,000
and HK$36,000,000, respectively.

101



MmN

BONJOUR

MBRRWE (B)
BE -+ _"_HA=+—HIFE

102

RNEE (B

AEEBRRETNER MBI
BRREEEETHRNERAR
FMENDRZERENFTED A
MAERNE®ER (B LH(b)E
(d)) - FFHHARREBEFAE
ERFTHEEM FJESHEAER
TREENENEEERNER
> ZAEBRIEEEZEEER
HRRTEREERFHEAGR-

BENL EFTKBEEARE
BREMBVANEEL Z B
FHRERESEHONER D &
BRERHNMBER £ &
ERARRREHR T2 REHRE
BESBERERYHEB AL
EEGEEMBRRDEFELE
HEERH-

HAEREELIEEFERFTEKE
WX AEFHARE BEE
WEREEEL S HETWEEEE
RETEEENEANE-—F &
EoURIERBEERERED A
DESRBEEREBR WLEFEE
FHRBNEELRRRELFLER
BUBHRES -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The Group’s ability to achieve the cash flow forecast depends
on management’s ability to successfully implement the
improvement measures (from (b) to (d) described above) on the
profitability and the continuous availability of those financing
facilities. These events or conditions indicate the existence of
a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, therefore, it may
be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.

Notwithstanding the above, the Directors after making due
inquiries and considering the basis of cash flow forecast and
taking into account the above measures, conclude the Group
will have sufficient financial resources to meet in full of its
working capital requirements and financial obligations as and
when they fall due in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, these
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have been made to restate the carrying
amounts of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide
any further liabilities which might arise and to classify
non-current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities
respectively. The effects of these potential adjustments have
not been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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BONJOUR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs

3.1

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for
annual periods beginning on 1 January 2023

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the
first time, which are relevant to the Group’s operations
and effective for the annual periods beginning on 1
January 2023 in the preparation of these consolidated

financial statements:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 12

Insurance Contracts and
related amendments
Disclosure of Accounting

Policies

Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules

Except for those mentioned below, the adoption of the
new and amended HKFRSs had no material impact on
how the results and financial position for the current and
prior periods have been prepared and presented.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”

The amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose
material accounting policy information instead of
significant accounting policies in its financial statements.
Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in

an entity’s financial statements,

it can reasonably be

expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements. The amendments
also provide some guidance on how material policy
information are being identified and provide some
examples of when accounting policy information is likely

to be material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs (continued)

3.1

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective
for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2023
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”
(continued)

In March 2021, the HKICPA issued HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 “Making Materiality Judgements” to provide
entities with non-mandatory guidance on how to make
materiality judgements when preparing their general
purpose financial statements in accordance with HKFRS.
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 was subsequently revised
to provide guidance and examples on how to apply the
concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are applied by the Group on
1 January 2023 and are applied prospectively. The Group
revisited the accounting policy information it has been
disclosing in note 4 and considered it is consistent with
the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 8 “Definition of Accounting
Estimates”

The amendments clarify how entities should distinguish
changes in accounting policies from changes in
accounting estimates by introducing a definition for
accounting estimates, which is now defined as “monetary
amounts in the financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”.

Besides, the amendments also clarify the relationship
between accounting policies and accounting estimates by
specifying that an entity develops an accounting estimate
to achieve the objective set out by an accounting
policy. Accounting estimates typically involve the use of
judgements or assumptions based on latest available
reliable information. A change in accounting estimate that
results from new information or new development is not
correction of an error. Therefore, the effects of a change
in an input or a measurement technique used to develop
an accounting estimate are changes in accounting
estimates if they do not result from the correction of prior
period errors. In addition, two illustrative examples are
added to illustrate how to apply the new definition of
accounting estimates.

The amendments are applied by the Group on 1 January
2023 but no material changes on the disclosures set out

in note 5.
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BONJOUR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs (continued)

3.1

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for
annual periods beginning on 1 January 2023
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction”

The amendments clarify that the initial recognition
exemption of deferred tax in HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”
does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences, such
as lease contracts that give rise to the recognition
of a lease liability and the corresponding right-of-use
assets and contracts that give rise to the recognition of
decommissioning obligations and corresponding amounts
recognised as assets. Instead, entities are required to
recognise the related deferred tax asset and liability on
initial recognition, with the recognition of any deferred
tax asset being subject to the recoverability criteria in
HKAS 12.

The Group adopted the amendments from 1 January
2023 and are required to recognise the associated
deferred tax assets and liabilities from leases that
occurred on or after 1 January 2022, with any cumulative
effect recognised as an adjustment to accumulated
losses at that date.

Prior to the application of the amendments, the Group
is required to recognise the deferred tax assets and
liabilities arising from leases on a net basis. Following the
requirements of the amendments, the Group is required
to recognise a separate deferred tax asset in relation to
its lease liabilities and a deferred tax liability in relation
to its right-of-use assets as at 1 January 2022. As the
Group did not have any material temporary differences in
relation to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities as at 1
January 2022, there is no material impact on the opening
accumulated losses as at 1 January 2022 as a result of
the amendments.
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B smRmE (B) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BE_E_ZFf_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

3.

106

RMFTREEIEEMFEHRSES 3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs (continued)

#£8) (18

3.2 EEMEMHKRERNEE 3.2 Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs
MRS AR
RItEGEETHFRERBHE At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
HE > AEBTEERTW financial statements, the Group has not applied any
EEHBER T =ZF— amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
B—HBREGBGNY BT EE effective for the financial year beginning on 1 January
FEVHNRETEARB 2023. These amended HKFRSs include the following
RMEERA - ZELKEITINE which may be relevant to the Group.

AU BHRSENGEAE
BEAREEBABAIUTEE

RUTHEBEZE
R FEERRRER
Effective for annual

periods beginning

on or after
EAVBREENEI10RE B G ENE28R B —REEHAAHEQE
REErEZBANEEHERRA RIE
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets Not yet determined
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
ERUBREENFIR 2B - ERBERZHNHEEER —ZE-E—F—H
Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024

EAGHENE IS B SR EEST BRI TIERHEENERER 2 2NF—F—H
)

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2024
and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5

A ERE IR B -WEZENIERBHEaE —ZE-E—F—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 — Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
SR ERETRREEUBREENET R BT —HETRELH —ZE-E—F—H
Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 — Supplier Finance Arrangements 1 January 2024
EA G ER SIS - AT A RIS TERE—HF—H
Amendments to HKAS 21 — Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025
EELEAETHZFELEL The Directors are in the process of making assessments
NEBUHFRXENTFEHS of what the impact of these amended HKFRSs that are
BREBHEEMBHEHZE expected to be in the period of initial application on
BXRERAEEEENEE- or after the effective date of the pronouncement. The
EERH BXERILLEE Directors consider that the initial application of these
B RN KA BEH AR & B 5 standards is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
WREEBEATE- consolidated financial statements.
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BONJOUR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power over the entity, only
substantive rights relating to the entity (held by the Group
and others) are considered.

The Group includes the financial statements of
subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements from
the date it gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiaries.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised profits
(except for foreign currency transaction gains or losses)
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated.
Unrealised losses arising from intra-group transactions
are also eliminated unless there is any transaction that
provides an evidence of impairment. Accounting policies
of the subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary
to ensure consistency with the accounting policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having contractual obligations in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of financial liabilities.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.1

Consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity,
separately from the equity attributable to the owners of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the owners
of the Company even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having deficit balances.

Changes in the Company’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in
their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts of both
controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount of the
non-controlling interests adjusted and the fair value of the
considerations paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Company loses control of its subsidiaries, the
gain or loss on disposal of subsidiaries is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate fair value
of the considerations received and the fair value of
any retained interests in those subsidiaries, and (i) the
previous carrying amounts of the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiaries and any
non-controlling interests and other components of equity.
Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and any interests retained in those former subsidiaries is
measured at fair value when the control is lost.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment loss, unless it is classified as held for sale or
included in a disposal group classified as held for sale.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable at the end of the reporting period. All dividends
whether received out of the investees’ pre or post-
acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s profit
or loss.

Annual Report 2023
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BONJOUR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
4.2 Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence, which. is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the entity
but is not control or joint control of those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions relating
about relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

Investments in associates or a joint venture of the
Group are initially recognised at cost and subsequently
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method. Identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the associates or joint venture
arising from acquisition are measured at their fair values
at the date of acquisition. Any excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for
impairment as part of the investment. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost
of acquisition is recognised in profit or loss in which the
investment is acquired.

Under the equity method, the Group’s investments in
associates or a joint venture are carried at cost and
adjusted for the shares of the associates’ or joint
venture's post-acquisition profits or losses and other
comprehensive income for the year included in the
Group’s profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year, until the date on which significant influence
or joint control ceases.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
investments in the associates or joint venture including
any long-term investment that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investments in the associates or joint
venture, after applying the expected credit loss (“ECL”)
model to such investment, where applicable, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associates or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2

4.3

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

Unrealised profits arising from transactions between
the Group and its associates and a joint venture are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in
the associates or joint venture. Unrealised losses arising
from those transactions are also eliminated unless there is
any transaction that provides an evidence of impairment.
Accounting policies of the associates and joint venture
have been adjusted where necessary to ensure
consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the
Group.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
determines whether there is any objective evidence
that the investments in associates or a joint venture is
impaired. If such indications are identified, the entire
carrying amount of the investments (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (i.e. higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) against its carrying amount.
In determining the value in use of the investments, it is
the share of the present value of the estimated future
cash flows expected to be generated by the associates
or joint venture, including cash flows arising from their
operations and the proceeds on ultimate disposal of
the investments. Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset (including goodwill) that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investments. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture
becomes an investment in an associate, the Group
continues to apply the equity method and does not
remeasure the retained interest.

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) which is also the functional
and presentation currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the respective functional currencies of the group
entities at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions.

Annual Report 2023



BB R ()

BE_T_=—F1+"F=+—HULFE

4. FTEEHHEK (B)
4.3 SMNBME (&
u?Hﬁﬁ%\

il
i
W
+ﬂ+
<d
rr]]H:
EF
s oA R

I i
b o kA 2
3 S
b} 3
B o 00
B

ﬁgm
o & My
)

MF
sh B
%1

T
3 F B+
0 = Bt
& M

~—

S5 mh

>

H

AT ey
m 3% oy & R 2

FF
B+ = Z§ MWy o T Dy KB

+H

IS
AT

fl &

\
bl

Bt R & Bl 3% H4 I 3 4%
A 3 o 8 08 W 5 om
e
V=

o D o S

,me%%m*iﬁ
Ty
k!
o

=

H

D
S
=

\I]]]R D

T
4\§.|
M
= T
\
g M

A

° BBk &Y o
A

=103
[

w2 &
2 m
e 37

%
A

S 30 10 i R
bl ey o
Nelie

may DS poDb
M P

N &

i

s

/\w

|
W=
it B
2
7w O
M@Wm
m Mg
5
i

m
[eay

%
T
=
#
3
Sl Iy

B OF e

S

T g
B Wy 2
i P 2 e
=0 R e
Eilg=-a ]
B4

==
[Cay
o
i
iy
B
o

“ECFFR

*

BN
R F R
5= Ot ot R 4

BX Rt 23 B
KA XA F S5 kA

R RE S R R 2

A
m

)
h=g
ap
T
\Hﬂ?r
B

o

N
T
3 I
R
P g = G =4

Bk = 0

(e
i
==y
uJ
s
HH
_

i=]

]

%iﬁ%

S
\
/

@

fe=n

Jmo
m

=

w
I
>er
H
@
g
IID

o &
%
Ay
=
s
W

it
+H

ARB
=R il TR
- S B3R

A
m

i
]
—
[eay
Ho
=

\
/

HH
53d

.. IR

S

=t

ﬁ

4
53d

B gy
mm
HOHE

op <t

IHE SO

/|

&

=1
|

%i\ilé
- B
(I

i
.o

4 I sy
B¢ 7. S HF

S e k F
b
Rl el 4

n

BONJOUR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
4.3 Foreign currency translation (continued)

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional currency at
the exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the retranslation
of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the exchange rates prevailing the dates
of the transactions. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional currency at
the exchange rates when the fair value was determined.
When a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary asset
or liability is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income, whereas a
fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary asset or liability
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is also recognised in profit or loss.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, are translated into the Group’s
presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing
rates at the end of the reporting period;

- Income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates over the reporting period, unless it is
not a reasonable approximation to use the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions; and

- Foreign exchange differences recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
“foreign currency translation reserve” except to the
extent that the translation difference is allocated to
the non-controlling interest.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operations and translated into
the Group’s presentation currency at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.3

4.4

Foreign currency translation (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or loss
of significant influence over an associate that includes
a foreign operation), all of the accumulated exchange
differences in respect of that operations attributable to
the Group are reclassified to profit or loss. Any exchange
differences that have previously been attributed to
non-controlling interests are derecognised, but they are
not reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal (i.e. no loss of control)
of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
is re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(i.e. partial disposal of associates or joint venture not
involving a change of accounting basis), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including land and
buildings, is initially recognised at acquisition cost
(including any cost directly attributable to bringing the
assets to the location and condition necessary for them
to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management), less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance, are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.
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BONJOUR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.4

4.5

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment less their residual values, if any,
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives and lease terms recognised in profit or loss. The
principal annual depreciation rates are as follows:

2% or over the lease
term, whichever is
shorter

Over the period of
lease or their
expected useful
lives, whichever is

Land and buildings

Leasehold improvements

shorter
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% — 20%
Motor vehicles 30%

The estimated residual values, useful lives and lease
terms are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Accounting policy of land and buildings recognised as
right-of-use assets is further described in note 4.5.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. This is the case
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits
from that use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.5 Leases (continued)

()

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value items.
The lease payments associated with those leases
which management decided not to capitalise, on a
lease-by-lease basis, are recognised in profit or loss
on a systematic basis over the lease term.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, plus any initial direct
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
less any lease incentives received. The right-of-
use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Refundable rental deposits are accounted for
separately from the right-of-use assets under
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and are measured
at amortised cost. Any excess of the nominal value
over the initial fair value of the deposits is accounted
for as additional lease payments made and is
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
ET=ZHF+-H=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.5 Leases (continued)

()

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownerships of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
terms are depreciated on a straight-line basis from
the lease commencement dates to the end of their
useful lives. Otherwise, they are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of their useful
lives and the lease terms. The Group also assesses
the right-of-use assets for impairment when such
indicator exists.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is recognised using the effective
interest method.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or rate are not included in the measurement
of the lease liability, if applicable, are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if
the Group changes its assessment of whether it
will exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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4. FEGHEEK (&) 4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
4.5 THE (&) 4.5 Leases (continued)
(i) ZEEFEBZBEABA (i)  The Group as a lessee (continued)
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The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in
the lease contract (the “lease modification”) that
is not accounted for as a separate lease. In this
case, the lease liability is remeasured based on
the revised lease payments and lease term using
a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the lease modification. The only exceptions are
any rent concessions which arose as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and
satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph 46B
of HKFRS 16 “Leases”. In such cases, the Group
has taken advantage of the practical expedient
not to assess whether the rent concessions are
lease modifications and recognised the change in
consideration as negative variable lease payments
in profit or loss in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the rent concessions
occurred.

When the lease is remeasured, the corresponding
adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset,
or profit or loss if the right-of-use asset is already
reduced to zero.

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities is

HBoEEAERRS determined as the present value of contractual
e+ _EEARN&H payments that are due to be settled within twelve
HNELANHRIRE- months after the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BE_EFE_ZHF_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.5 Leases (continued)

(i)

(iii)

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
the lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified
as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. Otherwise, the lease
is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. The rental income
from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
in accordance with note 4.16.

When the Group acts as an intermediate lessor, the
sub-leases are classified as a finance lease or as an
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease
is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the
exemption described in note 4.5()), then the Group
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

The Group sub-leases some of its properties and
the sub-lease contracts are classified as operating
leases.

Sales and leaseback transactions

The Group as a seller-lessee

For a transfer that satisfies the requirements as a
sale in accordance with HKFRS 15, the Group as a
seller-lessee measures the right-of-use asset arising
from the leaseback at the proportion of the previous
carrying amount of the asset and recognises any
gain or loss that relates to the rights transferred
to the buyer-lessor only. Right of use asset and
lease liability with fixed payments are subsequently
measured in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.6

4.7

4.8

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Software that is acquired by the Group and has finite
useful life is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less its
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
its estimated useful life. Amortisation commences when
the intangible assets is available for use.

The estimated useful life of the software is approximately
10 years.

The estimated residual value and useful life are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Intangible assets is tested for impairment as further
described in note 4.22.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost basis and comprised of costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised

when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4. FEGHEEK (&) 4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.8 TRITHZHIBR&ILHE 4.8 Recognition and derecognition of financial
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instruments (continued)

Financial assets (except for trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component measured at
the transaction price in accordance with HKFRS 15) and
financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets, other than those designated as
hedging instruments, are classified into amortised cost
and FVTOCI in the consolidated financial statements.
Financial liabilities, other than those designated as fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), are classified into
amortised cost only. The relevant accounting policy is
further described in notes 4.9 and 4.12 respectively.

The Group derecognises financial assets only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets
expire, or when it transfers the financial assets and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownerships of
the assets to another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownerships and continues to control the transferred
assets, the Group recognises their retained interests in
the assets and associated liabilities for amounts they may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownerships of transferred financial assets,
the Group continues to recognise the financial assets
and also recognises collateralised borrowings for the
proceeds received.

119



MmN

BONJOUR

MBRRWE (B)
BE -+ _"_HA=+—HIFE

4.

120

FTEEHHE (B)

4.8

4.9

TRl TR ZHE R IE®

& (#)

i
o FH
B D (o R e (T

Mt o (T

P
i
i
et

s
I

FH

— 0| 3

i ==

ﬁ\

7
, \
/
\

i

[5)

G 73S W

s}

ggl_

&l

=
X R

=10
(=2

il
s
f
o
=
1R

v
A

s
5

3
==y
[Cay
Fi
H_D%—\
4

>
T
RYAIZTHFR

i 38 O

Sgy b
o
i

=+

/7

[aen
0

\
.
iy
pill

BOIRE HT
UL E kG

=0l
=
i

IO} 12
i 3
=

W ot
ok 5

\r
mai
I jrt

cy

e
K
N [
ﬁ/m
\r
i

W Qik

3H7R I 3

—
sy

M 45 3 0 (¥
b i

F
1 17 T >~ 88 I B0 2% ot DD 38 o R S o e
S

i o
il >
SN

\
A

_\uni})]ﬂif i
W o O 2 et O e PO

e
®
W3
o 2 gy
5 3+

alll
—+
il

L

|
S8 g 5 (1

H
=
=
f
1
g
/
o
)

18

=l
j==3

\r

! -
¢ HeE
XA
=

=
3

\
/I

=
il

o
2

Hp

Y

% i e 0 30 38 B8 i e 0 bt

3

S ME

\H'D%
i S >

,,%H.D%:I
et ==l YH

jmn
T
I o o 2iEorie = fpn B

/
S

\
A

5 e Ok
S g Kt

\1%2’
s
ON’H‘D

2 |-|$tl
il

e
"o B
>3

o A

3
ZH
\|
/

— I

(o 5
Gl

halll
)

£ B R T~ DS S D B S B TR
m;

B | 2w

o
o
=
R,
/
=
aln;
'_H

Sy,

o i
+H
Biip
o
o
&

>

SN
‘7H> N

R
m&u

\
I

d
3
il
it
m

X
m/ o
g
it P
Ry

SA%HEHI»
N

55 fm Bk 2k B

4
Wi
]
e
\
/

m e 1S E Ry
e
[
E‘[
>
pius
=
Hp
i HD DSy S5 BB 2y A

o\
&9 /

N
I

N
|

kBl
g
3
B
%

)

alll

s+

o

e

2

D

e
T —_
oW mA S

I ¢ > H Bt

u]

3

SEE

-
I EE pr 35 50 o B e s 0 A S S 5

Tl

EEN
il
ol
N2
[
v
-

5
>
+H
Tt
E'II_

\

o> b der:
jasig
I s /1

Hp i

B - F@e

=
At
N
[
e
m}\]l
i
i

\Fr o8 B 24 | m [1] 3

g
Bt yg &
il
_|_

@ []
]

| 28 Bl m > s 4

o > 3 )
D s
Bk
ggl_
%
>
¥ 5 S B

EH)
° HAD >

0 3 34 it 2y $55 b HiY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.8

4.9

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amounts of the financial liabilities derecognised
and the considerations paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are measured
subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost
or fair value, depending on the classification of the
financial assets. The classification is determined by both
the entity’s business model for managing the financial
assets (i.e. to hold the financial assets and collect their
contractual cash flows), and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets (i.e. the contractual
terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interests). After
initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Interest income is
included in “other income” in profit or loss. The underlying
accounting policy is further described in note 4.16.
Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is
immaterial.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL,
unless the investment is not held for trading purposes and
on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes
an irrevocable election to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where
such election is made for a particular investment, at the
time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the “financial
assets at FVTOCI reserve” (non-recycling) is transferred
to accumulated losses and not recycled to profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI,
are recognised in profit or loss as “other income”. The
underlying accounting policy is further described in
note 4.16.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4. FEGHEEK (&) 4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.10B 3 R EMMEUER X 4.10 Trade and other receivables
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4.12

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration and only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are initially measured at their
transaction price, whereas those contain a significant
financing component and other receivables are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction cost. All
receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less allowance for
ECL. Further policy is described in note 4.23.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand.

Cash and cash equivalents is assessed for ECL by
management regularly. Further policy is described in
note 4.23.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under the
applicable HKFRSs.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets after deducting all of its
liabilities and is recognised at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs as if the instrument is issued by the
Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.13

4.14

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less transaction costs, and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
interest-bearing borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the
reporting period to classify as non-current liabilities.

Interest expense is recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with note 4.19.

Convertible loans

Convertible loans are a compound financial instrument
(i.e. comprises of a liability and an equity component)
issued by the Company to grant an option of the holder
to convert into a fixed number of ordinary shares of the
Company, at a fixed conversion price, which does not
vary with changes in fair value.

The liability component of compound financial instrument
is initially recognised at fair value of a similar liability
that does not have an equity conversion option. The
equity component is initially recognised at the difference
between the fair value of the compound financial
instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability
component. Any directly attributable transaction costs
are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component
is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is recognised in
profit or loss. The equity component is not remeasured
and is recognised in the “convertible loans reserve” until
the convertible loans are converted.

When the loans are converted, the equity component and
the liability component are transferred to share capital
and share premium account as consideration for the
shares issued.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4. FEGHEEK (&) 4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

41585 REMBEMIER B 4.15 Trade and other payables (other than refund
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4.16

liabilities)

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. After initial recognition, they are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at invoiced amounts.

Revenue and other income

Revenue mainly arises from the retail sales and
wholesales of merchandise.

The Group is the principal for its revenue transactions
and recognises revenue on a gross basis. In determining
whether the Group acts as a principal or as an agent,
it considers whether it obtains control of the products
before they are transferred to customers. Control refers
to the Group’s ability to direct the use of and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits from the
products.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties such as value added tax or other
sales taxes, and further deducted by any trade discounts
or rights of return offered to customers.

For sales contracts of retail sales and wholesales of
merchandise that had an original expected duration of
one year or less, the Group has chosen not to disclose
the information related to the aggregation amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations in accordance with paragraph 121(a) of
HKFRS 15.
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4. FEGHBEK (&) 4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

416 m R HMBA (&

4.16 Revenue and other income (continued)
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Retail sales of merchandise

Revenue from retail sales of merchandise is recognised
when control of the goods has been transferred,
being at a point in time when customers purchase
the merchandise at retail stores and online platforms.
Payment terms and conditions vary by different retail
sales channels but the Group generally provides credit
terms of 30 days upon the issuance of sales invoice
to eCommerce customers and due immediately for
customers purchasing the merchandise in retail stores.

According to the Group’s sales policy, customers have
rights of return for a period of 30 days upon their
purchase which give rise to variable consideration. At
the point of sales, a refund liability, included in “other
payables” with a corresponding adjustment to revenue,
is recognised for the merchandise expected to be
returned, whereas the Group has a right to recover the
merchandise from customers included in “inventories”
with a corresponding adjustment to cost of goods sold.
This right to recover returned goods is measured at
the former carrying amount of the inventories less any
expected costs to recover the merchandise (including
potential decrease in value).

Management therefore applies the expected value
method to estimate the amount of returned merchandise,
on a portfolio level basis, by taking the Group’s current
and future performance expectations into account. This
estimated amount is included in the transaction price
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is resolved.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.16 Revenue and other income (continued)

Wholesales of merchandise

Revenue from wholesales of merchandise is recognised
when control of the goods has been transferred, being
at a point in time when the merchandise are delivered
to wholesalers. Payment terms and conditions vary by
wholesalers based on the billing schedules but the Group
generally receives full payments from the customers
related to the sales of technology products and provides
credit terms ranged from 30 to 120 days upon the
issuance of sales invoice for the rest of customers. The
Group applies the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of
HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for any
effects of a significant financing component as the period
of financing is 12 months or less.

A contract liability is recognised when the customers for
the sales of technology products business pay advanced
deposits in full before the related revenue is recognised.
When the sales contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (as stated in
“interest income” below).

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date
when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis
as it accrues using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to
the gross carrying amount of the asset. For those that
are credit impaired subsequent to initial recognition, the
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less ECL) of the asset. If
it is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation will be
reverted to the gross basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.16 Revenue and other income (continued)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral
part of the total rental income over the lease term.
Variable lease payments, if any, that do not depend on
an index or a rate is recognised as income when they are
earned.

4.17 Employee benefits

()

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as
the related service is provided by employees. The
related liability is recognised for the amounts that
are expected to be paid to the employees if the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
to pay these amounts as a result of the past
services provided by the employees which can be
estimated reliably.

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. Provisions are made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.17 Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

Defined contribution plans

The Group contributes to both defined contribution
retirement plans which are available for all eligible
employees located in Hong Kong, Macau and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance (Chapter 485 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “MPF Ordinance”) for
all eligible employees located in Hong Kong. The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
plan administered by various independent trustees.
It requires that mandatory contributions are made
by both employers and employees separately to
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000, which are expensed as the related
services are provided by the employees.

All eligible employees located in Macau are
members of the Social Security System operated
by the Macau SAR government. It requires that
mandatory contributions are made by both
employers and employees to the Social Security
Fund, at the relative amounts of fixed contributions
varies among the types of employment contracts
signed with the employees, which are expensed as
the related services are provided by the employees.

Subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are required to
join the defined contribution retirement plans for all
eligible employees located in the PRC arranged by
the local government labour and security authorities.
Contributions are made at the applicable rates
based on the amounts stipulated by the authorities,
which are expensed as the related services are
provided by the employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.17 Employee benefits (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Long service payment liabilities

The Group’s net liability in respect of long
service payments payable upon the cessation of
employment in certain circumstances under the
Employment Ordinance is calculated by estimating
the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return of their services rendered
in the current and prior years. The long service
payment liabilities are the present value of long
service payments less the negative service costs
arising from the accrued benefits derived from
the contributions made under the MPF Scheme
that have been vested with the employees which
are deemed to be contributions from the relevant
employees.

The calculation is performed by an independent
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method. The present value is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows
using the interest rates of high-quality corporate
bonds that are denominated in the foreign currency
in which the benefits will be paid, and have terms
to maturity approximating the terms of the related
pension obligation. If there is no deep market of
such bonds, the market interest rates of government
bonds will be used.

Remeasurements of the net long service payment
liabilities which include actuarial gains and losses
are recognised immediately in other comprehensive
income and will not be reclassified to profit or loss.
The related service costs and interest expenses are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Interest expenses are determined by multiplying the
net long service payment liabilities by the discount
rate used to measure at the beginning of the
reporting period, taking into account of any changes
in the net long service payment liabilities during the
period.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of

those benefits and when it recognises costs for any
related restructuring.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4. FEGHEEK (&) 4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4. 180 PR T 4.18 Share warrants
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4.19

4.20

Share warrants issued to eligible employees to convert
into a fixed number of shares at a fixed exercise price
are classified as equity instruments. At the date of issue,
the fair value is measured using the Black-Scholes model
and the difference between the proceeds and fair value is
recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase
in “share warrants reserve” included in the equity. At the
time when the share warrants are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in “share warrants reserve” will be
transferred to “share capital”.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Government subsidies

Government subsidies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that the subsidies will be received
and the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to it.

Government subsidies that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same period in which
the related expenses are incurred.

Government subsidies related to income are presented in
gross under “other income” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.21 Taxation

Income tax expense comprises of current tax and
deferred tax which is recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that it relates to a business combination
or items recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises of the estimated tax payable or
receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustments to the tax payable or receivable in
respect of the previous financial years. The amount of
current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate
of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that
reflects any uncertainty related to income taxes. It is
measured by using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also includes
any tax arising from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if the
Group (i) has the legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and (i) intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused
tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits (including the existing taxable temporary
differences) will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax
credits can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4. FEGHEEK (&) 4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
4.211818 (& 4.21 Taxation (continued)
BEERE (B Deferred tax (continued)
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assets and liabilities.

The Group recognises deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities separately in relation to its lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets. For leasing transactions in
which the tax deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”
to the lease liabilities and the related assets separately.
The Group recognises a deferred tax asset related to
the lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be utilised and a
deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and are reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will
be realised and such reductions are reversed when the
probability of future taxable profits improves.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.22 Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment
and if any of the indication exists, the carrying amount of
the relevant asset will be written down in profit or loss to
its estimated recoverable amount.

The following assets are subject to impairment testing:

- intangible assets with definite useful life (note 19);

- property, plant and equipment (note 17);

- right-of-use assets (note 18); and

- investments in subsidiaries, associates and a joint
venture (notes 21, 22 and 46).

The recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset or CGU (the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently), unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent from
other assets or CGUs. Corporate assets are allocated
to individual CGUs in a reasonable and consistent basis.
Goodwill arising from business combination is allocated
to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. The recoverable
amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in
use and its fair value less costs of disposal. Value in use
is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4. FEGHEEK (&) 4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.22FTRMEERME (F)

4.22 Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
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4.23

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount and is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU,
and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other
assets in the CGU on a pro-rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.
For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only
to the extent that the resulting carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets measured at amortised cost (including
trade receivables, rental and utility deposits, deposits,
other receivables and bank and cash balances).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Generally, credit losses are measured as the present value
of all expected cash shortfalls between the contractual
and expected amounts. The expected cash shortfalls
of fixed-rate financial assets are discounted using the
effective interest rate determined at the initial recognition
if the effect is material. The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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4. FEGHEEK (&) 4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.23TMEERME (F)

4.23 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
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Measurement of ECLs (continued)

ECLs are measured on either 12-month ECLs or lifetime
ECLs. For 12-month ECLs, these are the portion of ECLs
that result from default events that are possible within
the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter
period if the expected life of the instrument is less than
12 months). For lifetime ECLs, these are the ECLs that
result from all possible default events over the expected
lives of the instruments.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs, except for those financial instruments
that are determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date, and other financial instruments for which
credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life) has not increased significantly since initial
recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables is always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group established a provision
matrix to group its trade debtors with similar credit risk
characteristics and past due days based on its historical
credit loss experience, external indicators, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

Loss allowances for other financial assets are measured
at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs, unless when
there is a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4. FEGHBEK (&) 4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.23EMEERME (&

4.23 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
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Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when measuring ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both gquantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment that includes forward-looking
information.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in regulatory,
business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations; and

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.23 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers a financial instrument to be in
default when:

there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group considers that default has occurred when
contractual payments are more than 120 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group considers a financial instrument to have low
credit risk if it has a low risk of default, the borrower
has strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term
may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

ECLs are measured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amounts is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amounts through a loss allowance account.
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4. FEGHBEK (&) 4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.23EMEERME (&

4.23 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

EREEERENZHE
E

REREHAR XEEBEMH
HFHEMEERSLEIRGE
ERE-EHNTMEERN
*hkBEEREEBFHNE
EN-—EAZEEHEL
R oZoMEERAABEE
EERENTMEE - ¢/
EELREERENSEER
BREUTITEREH

- BEBAZEERYH
PR 2 S

— E#HNLWmELS XA
BiE120% ;

- FXEERAEBRTH
HELITFEEEN
BEREHERL B,

a

- BEBARTERENR
ETHMP B EME %

a

- REBETANMBER
BERBHFNETETS
H K e

M B F

EBBEBR LA KE X
E’%Amﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁmm
FREE - ZBEREEHR®E
ﬁFAERﬁ%\WE&F
3 A BB iR M@Eﬁoﬁﬁ
%@E/\\HYT?LEE/fé
ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ@%&
EBIRIER  ZEBERFE—D
i 88 o

H 1% W [B] 5t B i 85 69 1F
TMEENWERERED
oh e 52 7% R (B B (] o

“ECCFFR

Credit-impaired financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reassesses whether a financial asset is credit-impaired.
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or being
more than 120 days past due;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

- it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the debtor is
either under liquidation, bankruptcy proceedings or more
than 24 months past due. The amount will be further
written off when the Group takes enforcement actions to
recover after obtained appropriate legal advice.

Any subsequent recoveries of a financial asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal of
impairment in profit or loss when the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.24 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

When some or all of the expenditure required to settle
a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, a separate asset is recognised for any unexpected
reimbursement that would be virtually certain. The
amount recognised for the reimbursement is limited to the
carrying amount of the provision.

4.25 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the chief operating
decision maker, being the executive directors of the
Company (the “Executive Directors”), for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s business
components and for their review of the performance of
those components. The business components in the
internal financial information reported to the Executive
Directors are determined following the Group’s major
products and geographical locations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4. FEGHEEK (&) 4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4257w E (& 4.25 Segment reporting (continued)
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4.26

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

° Wholesaling and retailing of beauty, healthcare and
lifestyle products; and

° Wholesaling of technology products

Each of these operating segments is managed separately
as each of the products requires different resources as
well as marketing approaches. All inter-segment transfers
are carried out at arm’s length prices. On the other hand,
corporate assets and liabilities which are not directly
attributable to any operating segments will be aggregated
separately as “unallocated corporate assets and liabilities”
which mainly belong to the headquarters and joint
venture.

The measurement policies which the Group used for
reporting segment information under HKFRS 8 “Operating
Segments” are the same as those used in its financial
statements prepared under HKFRSs.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.

Related parties
For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a party is considered to be related to the
Group if:
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i)

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.26 Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i

(i)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

4.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.26 Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

5.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

(i) Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements

have been

prepared on a going concern basis, the relevant

assessment is set out in note 2.

(ii) Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term at the commencement
date for leases that include renewal options
exercisable by the Group, management evaluates
the likelihood of exercising the renewal options
taking into account all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive

for the Group to exercise the option,

including

favourable terms, leasehold improvements

undertaken and the importance of that
asset to the Group’s operation.

underlying

Generally, extension options are not included in
lease liabilities because of the Group could replace
the leased properties without any significant amount

of costs or business disruption impact

ed against

its business operations. Further details of the lease

term assessment are set out in note 18.

The lease term is reassessed when there is
a significant event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Group’s control. Any
increase or decrease in the lease term would affect
the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and

lease liabilities recognised in future years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

5. MABHEIRGEAFTFEERAEZNETE 5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF

KR (4 ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
5.1 FEFA B E 2 BB A 5.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(#) (continued)

(iii) #5#i ZE dn 35 & 5F 15

(iii) Assessment on sales of technology products
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(iv)

Significant judgement is required by management in
determining whether the Group acts as a principal
or an agent in particularly the sales of technology
products.

Considering the Group controls technology products
before they are transferred to customers mainly
because (i) the Group has a primary responsibility
for fulfilling all promises to provide technology
products to customers, including the acceptability;
(i) the Group is exposed to inventory risk; and
(iii) the Group has a discretion to establish all prices
of technology products. Hence, management
concludes the Group acts as a principal, which
recognises revenue in a gross amount of
consideration expected to be entitled in exchange
for those goods to be transferred.

Accounting for share warrants

Share warrants are classified as equity instruments.
At the date of issue, the fair value is measured
using the Black-Scholes model and the difference
between the proceeds and fair value is recognised
as an expense with a corresponding increase in
“share warrants reserve” included in the equity. In
making this judgement, management considers
the commercial rationale behind the issuance of
share warrants, which was upon the redemption of
convertible loans, the Company issued the share
warrants to the subscribers of convertible loans,
conferring the rights to subscribe the ordinary
shares of the Company and serving as a necessary
and suitable incentive for the subscribers to consent
the disposal transaction disclosed in note 40(i) in
terms of waiving all rights and claims under the
deed of undertaking upon the early redemption of
convertible loans.
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5. MABHEIRGEAFTFEERAEZNEE 5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF

KR (& ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
5.1 FEFA B 2 BB A B 5.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(#) (continued)

(v) Accounting for joint ventures

(v) EEFEENEEE
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Business Innovation
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LP. (HEHFEMNER
REREEBEESR) (TE
F1)WEEARBSR
EEREZRE-HEA
EH2ERREEH
EHEEBEZHMHES
BEEH o T HZZHR
HEESSAELAH
ZEHNENSE G —
BWEBRBIERK B
EXAERRFEEEN
TE% R KRBEEEZMAR
EEREZEELA
MEFTHEAMLGHNE
HMEFN HEEEIRE
EARENERAE
BFEEEREZES
2RBE - EE
b BEE®wO2EASE
hrEE—FFBHIN
MisE22 0

“ECFFR

The Group’s investment in CR Business Innovation
Investment Fund L.P., an exempted limited
partnership fund in the Cayman Islands (the “Fund”),
is accounted for as an investment in a joint venture.
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
Although the Group holds 75% interest in the Fund
and a contractual right to appoint two out of five
members of the Fund’s investment committee,
important decisions that have significant impact on
the Fund’s return require unanimous approval of all
members of the Fund’s investment committee. As
a result, the Fund is classified as a joint venture.
Further details are set out in note 22.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

5.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

()

Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. In determining
whether there is any indication of impairment,
management exercises judgements and estimations,
particularly: (i) whether any events or indicators
appeared which may impact assets’ value;
(i) whether the carrying amounts of assets can be
supported by their respective recoverable amounts,
in the case of value in use, the net present values of
the estimated future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the assets; and
(i) the appropriateness of key inputs to be applied
in the cash flow projections, i.e. discount rates,
growth rates, market comparable and weighting
factors. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset (including
right-of-use assets), management estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU in which the asset
belongs to. Changes in any assumptions and
estimates applied in the cash flow projections could
materially impact the net present value used in the
impairment assessment.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets were HK$820,000 (2022: HK$1,440,000)
and HK$37,562,000 (2022: HK$53,323,000)
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

5. MABHEIRGEAFTFEERAEZNEE 5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF

KR (& ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
5.2 AT EEREZNETER 5.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
B (4
(ii) EWEZKRZ EME (i) Impairment loss on trade receivables, other
g AR 7k X K 7 & B 7k receivables and rental and utility deposits
B EEE

EEERBEEREN
REkEREEER
EHBRMETEEE
5 8RR~ H A8 U BR AR
MNEk#HEkXKERE
mﬁﬁﬁﬁomﬁﬁﬁ
FHZERK RRE
LEETEE“% 5
MESEZFRHAEE
FEERNTEH A
R A B Tt
BEBEARKEBERERN
BERMBEMERZRFH
HE o

BFHEEEEERY
Lt 2B - EBR
AERBEERERFEH
TR AR EESR
fis 5t & TERMA
THe

W& _=#+_A8
E+—E|7ﬁ’§uﬁl,%i%,ﬁ§
~ Hfih FE WL IR B A R
%ﬂ%)ﬁ'uk s % & R
HE DA A1,160, ooo
BT (ZE
777,000 7T) (?DB%
TEHE E WK EEG
843,0008 T (&
—”-%:6,125,000
B T) %69,440,000
B (ZE & .
56,816,000% 7T)
(OB BEHEERS
IBEE#H18,058,000
B (ZZT & .
17,695,000 7)) ©

“ECFFR

Management estimates the impairment loss on trade
receivables, other receivables and rental and utility
deposits based on the assumptions about risk of
default and expected credit loss rates. Management
uses judgements in making these assumptions and
selecting key inputs to the ECL models based on
historical credit loss experience, external indicators,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
estimates. When the actual future cash flows are
different from the expected, such difference will
impact the provision amounts when the estimates
are changed.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts
of trade receivables, other receivables and
rental and utility deposits were HK$1,160,000
(2022: HK$777,000) (net of allowance for ECLs
of HK$843,000 (2022: HK$6,125,000), and
HK$69,440,000 (2022: HK$56,816,000) (net of
allowance for ECLs of HK$18,058,000 (2022:
HK$17,695,000), respectively.
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5. MABHEIRGEAFTFEERAEZNETE 5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF

KR (4 ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

5.2 G FAHEEREZNETER 5.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
B (4
(iii) FF1Z#% (iii) Income taxes
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(iv)

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
tax jurisdictions, including Hong Kong, Macau and
the PRC. Significant estimates are required by
management in determining the provision of income
taxes when the ultimate tax is uncertain. When
the final tax outcome is different from the initial
provision, such difference will impact the current tax
and deferred tax provisions when the estimates are
changed.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
provision of income tax of HK$640,000 (2022:
HK$2,732,000) was charged (2022: credited) to
profit or loss.

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is determined
with reference to inventory turnover days, sales
performance, expiry period and marketability of
inventories, which are extracted from the ageing
analysis and net realisable value assessments.
Those assessments involve significant estimations
by management to take into account of the recent
market condition. When the actual allowance is
different from the initial allowance, such difference
will impact the carrying amount of inventories and
allowance for slow-moving inventories in the period
when the estimates are changed.

W_=E2_=Z5£+_ As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount
BA=+—H &#&8%® of inventories was HK$9,657,000 (2022:
EKEEEA9,657, OOO HK$7,127,000) and the accumulated allowance for
B (ZEZZ slow-moving inventories was HK$14,068,000 (2022:
7,127, o 008 ) & HK$26,628,000) respectively.

A B R B B E

£14,068,000%

Tt (Z T Z = & .

26,628,000 7T) ©

Annual Report 2023



BB R ()

BEZ

5.

R E REFARERRNEE
Xlﬁ (/vﬁ

5.2 i FRERENEER
(4
(v) RHREEEMNE
2

EHRBcERES®
DBDIREEERERS
HARm A& EIREHK
%5 Fir Bk X BY BJ BE K 2K
I RUBY & £ 5 51 ° B 53
I RECR IS RSB 1+
(IR RN N
[ BR R 2R AT 7R o BB
E 1 18 0 3 Rk 2D iR &2
EXRRFERNEm -

RZEZ=%+Z2A8
—t+t—H EHRH®
TEEZZEREBES
1,239,000 7T (=&
— 4 :1,039,000%
JT) ©

MR ER

FEEBNEBZTHAZEZRY
HBER SENEER BRE
R EERR -ABETARK
MERER AEEMBRREE
HROBEEERAENREZMT S
AR FRAMN IS KEEH D
HEAEBRVBRENEESHNE
BE-AEETEREEMNERIT
EIEUHF? J&\ & > IF =
DERMUFLEOE -8 —FEF

ML BB R SE R R B R AR
EEBERWEES -

“ECFFR

n

BONJOUR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
ET=ZHF+-H=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

5.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(v) Estimation of long service payment liabilities

The provision of long service payment liabilities is
based on the best estimation of the probable future
payments that have been earned by the employees
from their services to the Group at the end of each
reporting period. The payments due are dependent
on future events and recent payment experience
may not be indicative of future payments. Any
increase or decrease in the provision would affect
profit or loss in future years.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of
long service payment liabilities was HK$1,239,000
(2022: HK$1,039,000).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s business activities expose itself to a variety of
financial risks, including foreign currency risk, price risk, credit
risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The overall objectives
of the Group’s financial risk management policies focus on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimise
potential adverse impact on the Group’s financial performance.
The Group did not invest into any financial derivatives to hedge
against those risk exposures instead of close monitoring to
respond. There is no changes to the types of risk exposures
and the financial risk management policies against the prior
year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.1

Foreign currency risk

The Group has limited exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, monetary assets
and monetary liabilities are principally denominated in
the functional currencies of the group entities, except
for bank balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”),
Macao Pataca (“MOP”) and United States Dollar (“USD”)
mainly give rise to foreign currency risk. Foreign currency
denominated financial instruments translated into HK$
at closing foreign exchange rates at the reporting date
are disclosed in the respective notes to the consolidated
financial statements. The Group does not have any formal
hedging policy to mitigate the foreign currency risk,
instead management monitors closely and formulates
hedging policy if the risk exposure expands since
management considers the underlying movements of
foreign exchange rates to be insignificant to the Group’s
financial performance.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2023, if the HK$ had weakened or
strengthened 5% (2022: 5%) against RMB, MOP and
USD, with all other variables held constant, consolidated
profit after tax for the year and the equity would have
been HK$334,000 (2022: HK$133,000) higher or lower,
arising from the bank balances denominated in RMB,
MOP and USD which the Group is mainly exposed to
foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period.
The amount of exposure is translated into HK$ at the
exchange rates ruling on the same date for presentation
purpose. The analysis was performed on the same basis
for 2022.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.2

6.3

Price risk

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
was exposed to equity price risk mainly from its
investment of equity securities which are listed on the
Stock Exchange as disclosed in note 20. Those listed
investments were not held for trading purposes instead
of exploring their long term growth potential and were
monitored regularly for performance against expectations.
Management keeps the diversity of the investment
portfolio in order to manage the risk exposure effectively.

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 December 2022, it is estimated that if the
equity prices of the listed investments had increased or
decreased by 10% with all other variables held constant,
consolidated other comprehensive expense for the
year would have been HK$2,402,000 lower or higher
assuming that the changes of equity prices had occurred
at the end of the reporting period. As at 31 December
20283, the Group did not hold any listed equity securities
exposed to such price risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will not
meet its contractual obligations resulting a financial
loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
is attributable to its operating and investing activities,
including trade receivables, deposits, other receivables,
rental and utility deposit and bank balances.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, the maximum
exposure to credit risk for all financial instruments stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position is the
carrying amount as disclosed in note 6.6.
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BE_E_ZFf_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

6. HMBRKRER (&) 6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.3 EERAM (&) 6.3 Credit risk (continued)
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Trade receivables

Management established a credit risk management
policy which individual credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account of information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 120 days (2022: 120 days)
from the invoice dates. Debtors with balances that are
more than 12 months (2022: 12 months) past due are
requested to settle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted. In general, the Group generally
receives full payments as advanced deposits from
the wholesales customers for the sales of technology
products business and provides credit terms ranged
from 30 to 120 days (2022: 30 to 120 days) from the
invoice dates for the rest of wholesales customers, 30
days (2022: 30 days) from the invoice dates for the
eCommerce customers for the retail sales business
and due immediately for the retail sales customers who
purchase the merchandise in retail stores. The Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk attributable to individual customers nor individual
geographical locations for both current and prior years.

As explained in note 4.23, the Group measures loss
allowances for trade receivables at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. The Group further writes off the debtors
with balances that are more than 24 months (2022:
24 months) past due to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.3 Credit risk (continued)

W E ZR% (8)

TEREHEAEEEERN

BHESEREERRK

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Trade receivables (continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

EHEEBEEBRNER receivables:

—E-=

2023
TEHAES IR X IRm4REE 581 E
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
% FET FET
% HK$’000 HK$’000
BNHA (3k#HA) Current (not past due) 0.37% 543 2
HFHEA1ZE30H 1 - 30 days past due 0.48% 209 1
#HEA31E60H 31 - 60 days past due 1.15% 347 4
#HEA61E90H 61 — 90 days past due 1.96% 51 1
#EAEB®O0H More than 90 days past due 97.89% 853 835
2,003 843

B2

2022
SELE) SEEES IR 4R %8 [agicke i
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
% FET FET
% HK$'000 HK$ 000
BDHEA (k#HE) Current (not past due) 0.00% - -
#AEA1ES0H 1 - 30 days past due 4.75% 379 18
#HAB1EB0H 31 - 60 days past due 30.21% 96 29
#HA61ZE90H 61 - 90 days past due 30.95% 84 26
A EAEBBO0H  More than 90 days past due 95.41% 6,343 6,052
6,902 6,125
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BE_E_ZFf_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.3 Credit risk (continued)
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Trade receivables (continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 24 months (2022: 24 months). These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historical data
has been collected, current conditions and the Group’s
view of economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of

BIREHREFHNT trade receivables during the year is as follows:
—®-= —s-=
2023 2022
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
*—H—H At 1 January 6,125 2,500
FERFETREMEETE  Impairment losses recognised
for the year 709 3,625
—Fﬁ MBI Deconsolidation of a subsidiary
FEAKR (5,991) -
BW+-B=+—H At 31 December 843 6,125

H 1t B W R 7k U K 78 =
KEEE

mREERBRERME &
BEREEEB ”“B’J%EBE%‘E’
TIREBEEEBBER
9I\%B¢a¢;‘E¥T_JH&@|“$Lﬁ
EHEB G EREHA
BENRBEERERKREH
RIBFHAR - AEEEF
EHMEIERF > LUFE R &%

EMNERETH RO
FEMES-

Other receivables and rental and utility deposits

In order to minimise the credit risk, management
determines appropriate credit limits with regular individual
assessment on the recoverability based on historical
credit loss experience, external indicators, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment. Other monitoring procedures are
in place to ensure that appropriate follow-up actions are
taken to recover those overdue debts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BE_EFE_ZHF_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.3 Credit risk (continued)

Other receivables and rental and utility deposits
(continued)

Management is of opinion that there is no significant
increase in credit risk on other receivables and rental
and utility deposits since initial recognition as the risk
of default is low after considering the factors set out in
note 4.23. Therefore, the loss allowances recognised
during the year were limited to 12-month ECL
assessments, except for the credit-impaired balance
of HK$18,058,000 (2022: HK$17,695,000) that was
expected not to be recovered and subject to lifetime ECL
assessments.

Included in the carrying amounts of other receivables, it
comprise of the carrying amounts of loan receivable and
amounts due from associates and related companies.
With reference to the key terms of the loan receivable as
disclosed in note 25, management considers the credit
risk to be substantially mitigated by the property held as
collateral, with the estimated fair value of HK$5,687,000
(2022: HK$6,900,000) that gives rise a deficit of
HK$371,000 (2022: headroom of HK$842,000) over their
carrying amounts as at 31 December 2023. Therefore,
the loss allowance under stage 3 after discounting of
HK$363,000 was recognised during the year (2022: HK$
Nil). For the amounts due from associates and related
companies, management considers the credit risk to be
limited since Mr. Chen Jianwen has indemnified for any
losses that may result from the non-recovery of their
balances.
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BE_E_ZFf_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

6. HMBRKRER (&) 6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
6.3 EERME (& 6.3 Credit risk (continued)
HEmMEWKRZIURHEER Other receivables and rental and utility deposits
KE#ZZE (8) (continued)
£ A AR EME KRR Movements in the loss allowance account in respect of
K& kKERZENERE other receivables and rental and utility deposits during the
BEREZESHUWT . year are as follows:
2023 2022
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
n—RA—H At 1 January 17,695 10,074
FERFESTREMEETE  Impairment losses recognised
for the year 363 7,621
W+-B=+—H At 31 December 18,058 17,695
RIT4 B Bank balances
KE WITEGRMAS The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from the
NEERBEBER ERAH bank balances is limited because the counterparties are
FHAEBRRKRE ST R % banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international
BT EEETHRNIET credit-rating agencies, which management considers to
EEEBRXRAHEERME®K represent a low credit risk.
& o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be
able to meet its obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and readily realisable marketable equity securities
and adequate committed lines of funding from the
controlling shareholder and external parties to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

As disclosed in note 2, the facts that the Group incurred
net cash outflows from operating activities and its current
liabilities exceeded its current assets for both current and
prior years indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
Directors therefore take various measures to ensure the
Group possesses sufficient financial resources to meet its
liquidity requirements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

TRV NNEFRIETE R~ The following table shows the remaining contractual
TESsmEeaERREHE maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
NEGSAINEHER > HIEE Group’s non-derivative and derivative financial liabilities,
EHNKRERVERE AKX which are based on the contractual undiscounted cash
ER BN ERESE HH St flows and the earliest date the Group is required to pay:
=
DR—FF
BEX —EEME MEERF BRAFE
Less than
1 year or Between Between
ondemand 1and2years 2and5 years Over 5 years
FET FET FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
RZEZ=H+ZH=+—H At 31 December 2023
BEREMER EET)\ Trade and other payables 61,765 - - -
RITER (755) Bank borrowings (note) 3,792
HiER Other borrowings 13,970 21,253 10,930 5,382
e IR B R FIE Amount due to the controlling
shareholder 32,142 - - -
HEaf Lease liabilities 32,335 29,002 14,752 -
144,004 50,255 25,682 5,382
RZEZZH+ZHB=+—H At31 December 2022
BEREMER EET)\ Trade and other payables 142,841 - - -
RITER (735) Bank borrowings (note) 4,296 - - -
H AR Other borrowings 18,964 11,206 10,713 -
e IR A R FIE Amount due to the controlling
shareholder 30,118 - - -
eI AIRA M 5 B Amounts due to former related
parties 35,490 - - -
HE&E Lease liabilities 37,788 28,461 43,754 -
269,497 39,667 54,467 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

FEBEETRME (& 6.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
B EF - Note:
A rd\ﬁ’:\—fﬁiﬁiﬁ? EE‘ZJ B 8 Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
%B AMEZEREERRDN included in “Less than 1 year or on demand” time band, with
RITEM KRMBREEE RAE an aggregate undiscounted principal and interest amounts of
BEE A 4,107,000 /% 7'5_(: = HK$4,107,000 (2022: HK$4,738,000) are presented below when
— % :4,738,00087T) ¥ management evaluates that the banks will not exercise their
TXEY - BEREEEFMGER discretionary rights to demand immediate principal nor interest
178 0 TOEENBEES K Eﬂ payments instead of following the scheduled repayment dates
BEERSRNE  MIFERE as set out in the relevant borrowing agreements.
18 B8 18 "R 15 & P S B0 5t B B K
BHEfo
=l #5934 — & 5O R 7 st B MY A Maturity analysis — Bank borrowings with a repayment on
BREREBERANVIRITER demand clause based on scheduled repayment dates
bi—F  —FERF BERE  RURLE REE
Total
Less than Between undiscounted Carrying
1year 1andb5years Overb5 years amount amount
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
31 December 2023 MR _ZT_=
+ZA=+—H 676 2,707 724 4,107 3,792
31 December 2022 MIZZTZ
+-B=+—H 630 2,707 1,401 4,738 4,296
FI = & & 6.5 Interest rate risk

MERBRESBHRIANA
FEIRKEETRERRE
B AR E MK E
SEB e AEBNHRER
TERERITEF BRE
M RITREMERUAKRE
TERRERIE - 2 FHF
RFABHNRTHER KR
EMEAEBRRERE M
EN XA mZEEH R
SFEHNEKRER Y Hith
Mo ERRREMRERE
EEREAEE DA E R
DFAEMRERR -

“ECFFR

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s
interest rate risk mainly arises from bank balances, loan
receivable, bank and other borrowings and amount due
to the controlling shareholder. The bank balances and
bank borrowings bear at variable interest rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk, while the
loan receivable, other borrowings, amount due to the
controlling shareholder and lease liabilities bear at fixed
interest rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk respectively.
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B smRmE (B) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BE_E_ZFf_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

6. HMBRKRER (&) 6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
6.5 FIERAM (&) 6.5 Interest rate risk (continued)
EEETEFHER T Management regularly monitors the Group’s interest rate
REBBNERNZKR T UH profile per annum as set out below in order to minimise
ERETENXEBETE the interest rate risk exposure subject to changes in
EWHXE S o PR market interest rates. The Group does not have any
FEEERNAKAKERLKSE formal hedging policy to mitigate such risk given that the
EERBEEENTERIE related financial impact is limited to the Group’s financial
=~ =1 3 S T s W = performance for both current and prior years.
BERLUBREE MR R -
RIEZ=% ATETF
+=-B=+—H +-B=+—H
As at 31/12/2023 As at 31/12/2022
BERH=E FET BREM= FET
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate HK$’000 rate HK$'000
FEFIZE  Variable interest rate
—iR174E 8% - Bank balances Daily deposit 16,109 Daily deposit 17,929
rates rates
SHERAE SHEMRA X
—iR1TfEF - Bank borrowings Prime rate* (3,792)  Prime rate (4,296)
-2.5% -2.5%
RIEBEF xR REBRN=
-2.5% -2.5%
12,317 13,633
EEFZ  Fixed interest rate
—FEWER - Loan receivable 4.675% 5,695 4.675% 6,058
—HME - Other borrowings 4%-16.8% (43,721) 4%-9% (37,467)
— FE 17 £ B&- Amount due to the controlling
fRERFRIE  shareholder 2.75%-18% (32,142) 2.75% (30,118)
—fAE&E - Lease liabilities 8.00% (68,995) 8.08% (96,528)
(139,163) (158,055)
ERFEE  Net exposure (126,846) (144,422)
* EEEMXRIEEFEELRE * The Prime rate represents Hong Kong Prime rate as
HEBR AT AT specified by The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation
NEBREBEFZE Limited from time-to-time.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.5

6.6

Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2023, if the interest rates had increased
or decreased 100 basis points (2022: 100 basis points),
with all other variables held constant, consolidated
profit after tax for the year and the equity would have
been HK$103,000 (2022: HK$114,000) higher or lower,
arising from the financial instruments which the Group is
exposed to interest rate risk. For the fair value interest
rate risk, the sensitivity analysis assumes the change of
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to remeasure those financial
instruments. For the cash flow interest rate risk, the
sensitivity analysis assumes the variable interest-bearing
financial instruments were held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period and the associated risk exposure
is measured at an annualised impact of the changes in
interest rates. The analysis was performed on the same
basis for 2022.

Categories of financial instruments

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position relate to the following
categories of financial instruments:

2023 2022
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$°000
ERMEE: Financial assets:
BT EN Financial assets at amortised cost
THMEE 58,734 54,139
BAFETAEM Financial assets at FVTOCI
EHKREZEMEE 409 24,370
ERAaE Financial liabilities:
BEIER AT EN Financial liabilities at amortised cost
THEE 141,420 250,215
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
levels fair value hierarchy (as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair value
measurement”). The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified with reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation techniques is as follows:

Level 1: unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

Level 2: observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1
and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market

data are not available.

Level 3: significant unobservable inputs

Management is responsible for fair value measurements of
financial instruments. Discussion of valuation process and
results among management is held twice a year to coincide
with both interim and annual reporting dates. In particularly,
for those financial instruments categorised as level 3 in the
fair value hierarchy, management engages an independent
professional valuer to perform the fair value measurements on
behalf of the Group at those reporting dates.

The relevant levels in the fair value hierarchy where the financial
instruments were categorised as at 31 December 2022 and
2023 were entirely based on the lowest level of inputs that
were significant to their respective fair value measurements.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur. There were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 for both current and
prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

7.1 Disclosure of levels in the fair value hierarchy:

The Group’s financial instruments measured at fair value
in the consolidated statement of financial position on a
recurring basis were grouped into the fair value hierarchy
as at 31 December 2022 and 2023 as follows:

—®=
2023
AFEAEDED

Fair value measurements
categorised into

R E F34k ATEFE
Level 1 Level 3 Fair value
FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EREE Financial assets
A TFEST AEMEE Financial assets at FVTOCI
Wi 2 ERE E
—JE LR AES — Unlisted equity securities - 409 409
2022
NE{EEF 87
Fair value measurements
categorised into
ERFS FH3R NEE
Level 1 Level 3 Fair value
FET FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
ERMEE Financial assets
AT E s AEMAEE Financial assets at FVTOCI
w2 &REE
— TR AE S - Listed equity securities 24,021 - 24,021
—JEEHRRAES - Unlisted equity securities - 349 349
24,021 349 24,370
161
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

AT EE (B 7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)
7.2 PHRAFEIRATEESRD 7.2 Reconciliation of financial instruments categorised
ERMTAEHE: as Level 3 fair value hierarchy:
—EZ= —E”_C
2023 2022
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000
JFEEMRARES ! Unlisted equity securities:
n—B—H At 1 January 349 111
REMEEK R 2 Net unrealised gain recognised in
REIBU RS (D) other comprehensive income (note) 60 238
R+ZB=+—H At 31 December 409 349
M 5T Note:
EHHEFLTRAEEESE Any gains or losses from the remeasurement of the unlisted
MERK XN ERBREMEE equity securities are recognised in the “financial assets at
WEN T ATETESAHMS FVTOCI reserve” in other comprehensive income. Upon
EWZ R ESEM#E DR disposal of the equity securities, the amount accumulated in
o HERAELEEL REM other comprehensive income will be transferred directly to
PEHNERHNEERE RS acoumulated losses.
BERSEBE-
7.3 BIF{ AT ERBBRFAAGE 7.3 Valuation techniques and key inputs used in Level 3

FEREEHARE

FETRAZFHNAFE
BERAELEREXNE
BERBELEREE IR
Z ™ 5 Om @ M T AR (F AR
B-AFVEFEHREBEA
HELXREMEB MERZ
mHEABRMENZEAZE&E
Me-MZ_ZT_=Z=H+="A8
=+—B EstEMEHEAM

BEEMELERME M,
B RBRZmEREBNEN
TR L EM10% K&
10% (ZE-Z_F 10% K&
10%) BRERHMEZE W =
DR, R 47,0008
TTR12,0008 T (ZE - =
& 17,0008 75 56,0008
JT) °

fair value hierarchy:

The fair value of unlisted equity securities is determined
using the value-to-sales ratio of comparable enterprises
adjusted for lack of marketability discount. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the value-to-sales
ratio and is negatively correlated to the discount for lack
of marketability. As at 31 December 2023, it is estimated
that with all other variables held constant, an increase/
decrease in value-to-sales ratio and decrease/increase in
discount for lack of marketability by 10% and 10% (2022:
10% and 10%) would have increased/decreased the other
comprehensive income by HK$47,000 and HK$12,000
(2022: HK$17,000 and HK$6,000) respectively.

Annual Report 2023



n

BONJOUR

BRI (&) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BE_EFE_ZHF_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

7. RFEHE (& 7.

7.3 BIMAFEERFIAMGE
FAERITEHBARE : (&

EMECRATENENE
#

fEER %

Valuation technique

FLmREES mHLEZE
Unlisted equity ~ Market comparable
securities approach

AFEFEMANGER
EREIEBEBABBREE
R e

7.4 UHATEHBHSMT
AMATHE

A BRI ERIEI=
F+ZRB=+—H &&H
BREBHEAAIRNER T
ENEREERARATEL
BEAER

8. EXH 8.

AEERFTFERCHEIIEE
mBl Y ZEXBORUAT

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

7.3 Valuation techniques and key inputs used in Level 3
fair value hierarchy: (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements:

FaHRZHARE &[]

Unobservable inputs Range

TEEEEFELE 0.09-2.60 (ZZEZZ4F : 0.17-
Enterprises’ value-to-sales ratio 2.24)

0.09-2.60 (2022: 0.17-2.24)

HZHBREE IR 20.5% (ZZ = 4 : 20.5%)
Discount for lack of marketability 20.5% (2022: 20.5%)

The valuation techniques and key inputs used for the
fair value measurement of the financial instruments
categorised into Level 3 are the same as the prior year.

7.4 Fair value of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments

carried at amortised cost were not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2022 and 2023.

TURNOVER

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by major products
recognised during the year is as follows:

2023 2022
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$ 000

BB TER 5 # A 515%5 %8 Revenue from contracts

AHER SO : with customers within

the scope of HKFRS 15:
HEER -BEKREERE Sales of beauty, healthcare and
E oh lifestyle products 64,824 75,481
HE T ZE M Sales of technology products 885,447 110,181
950,271 185,662
“E=FFR 163



MmN

BONJOUR
E#?%%E%MT*I (%)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_E_ZFf_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023
8. EXxm (& 8. TURNOVER (continued)
B mEREE R ETSE D Further disaggregation of turnover by the timing of revenue
NEXBENE TR KH recognition and geographical markets is disclosed in notes
5£10(b) 5210 (c)iF 8t - 10(b) and 10(c) respectively.
AEBNEFEEERZ TE R K The Group’s customer base is well-diversified and the
FERBEAFEEMAERE customers who contributed more than 10% of the Group’s total
EEHEBBRBI10%HNELR |3ﬁ turnover for both current and prior years are disclosed in note
O E-FREEALAEERK 10(d). Details of credit risk management on the customers are
% EWNEBRM 6.3 EE disclosed in note 6.3.
AEBCEERBSEMHRSEL The Group has applied the practical expedient in
F155EF 121 () RN EREE 2 paragraph 121(a) of HKFRS 15 that permits the Group not to
%Jr CEBRIFMMZ A FEMBEE include information about the turnover when it satisfies the
ERIF - BRERBTEIRFE remaining performance obligations under the sales contracts
E# F'ﬁ B—ERBEENFGREOE which had an original expected duration of one year or less for
B O ATLAEEFSEERE both current and prior years.
EHEHNER o
9. HWA 9. OTHER INCOME
—E-= T
2023 2022
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
HEWE BEKRRZHZ  Gain on disposal of property,

W &= plant and equipment - 4,602
ey (Tsh) Government subsidies (note) 4,734 555
RITERBF BUA Interest income on bank deposits 28 10
SRS ERN BUW A Imputed interest income on rental

deposits 743 1,004
RITREMERZHEERE Imputed interest on bank and
other borrowings 3,330 -
HEWA Rental income 291 339
b 7 Ut 2 Exchange gain 155 -
HEIEULA Sundry income 347 835
9,628 7,345
B &E - Note:
KEBRAEERS ;g BFEEN The Group recognised the government subsidies of HK$4,412,000
MR  SHBELANFARTRES (2022: HK$248,000) during the year in respect of the COVID-19
+8 B8 4 B FE 2D BZV@EJM 412,000 related subsidies arising from the Employment Support Scheme
T (:;ﬁ::ﬂz : 248,000%7_3) o provided by the Hong Kong Government.
ESETREIRBMHEHIBIZIE UL The purpose of the funding is to provide financial support to employers
R rErERT SN EKMG to retain their employees or hire more employees as the business
WEKEERGE Y ERSNEASE revives, provided the Group complies with the required conditions at
ZESR o the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

10.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its business by business lines and
geographical locations in a manner consistent with the
information reported internally to management for resources
allocation and review of performance. The chief operating
decision maker (the “CODM”), being the Executive Directors,
has identified the business lines into two reportable segments
as disclosed in note 4.25.

For the purpose of assessing the resources allocation and
review of performance between the reportable segments, the
CODM monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to
each reportable segment on the following bases:

Reportable segment assets include all of the Group’s assets
with the exception of investment in a joint venture, and right-of-
use assets and rental and utility deposits related to the leased
industrial building categorised as corporate assets which
are not directly attributable to the business activities of the
reportable segments.

Reportable segment liabilities include all of the Group’s
liabilities with the exception of lease liabilities related to the
leased industrial building categorised as corporate liabilities
which is not directly attributable to the business activities of the
reportable segments.

Reportable segment gross profit includes all of the Group’s
turnover and cost of goods sold allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to the sales generated and the cost
of goods sold incurred by those segments. Inter-segment
transactions, if applicable, are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar transactions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(@) Reportable segment information

HERTEES KRBt
BEREETRHESR MERMER BERER @t
Wholesaling
and retailing
of beauty,
healthcare Wholesaling Unallocated
and lifestyle of technology corporate assets
products products and liabilities Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
HEZZZ=H+ZHA=+—H For the year ended
LEE 31 December 2023
RSN HEER Reportable segment turnover 64,824 885,447 - 950,271
IHRENHEEERMA Reportable segment cost of
goods sold (18,002) (869,127) - (887,219)
AREDBER Reportable segment gross
profit 46,732 16,320 - 63,052
RZE-_=F+ZB=+—-H As at 31 December 2023
OHRENHEE Reportable segment assets 75,043 26,269 402,796 504,108
BE =l Reportable segment liabilities (156,969) - (64,903) (221,872)
HEZZTZ"E+T"H=+—H  Forthe year ended
HFE 31 December 2022
RGN IE X Reportable segment turnover 75,481 110,181 - 185,662
OHRENHEEERME Reportable segment cost of
goods sold (46,697) (105,211) - (151,908)
AREDBEF Reportable segment gross
profit 28,784 4,970 33,754
RIZ2ZZF+ZF=1+—H As at 31 December 2022
RS HEE Reportable segment assets 96,249 17,774 391,384 505,407
ARENHEE Reportable segment liabilities (263,909) - (86,110) (350,019)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers

Disaggregation of turnover by the timing of revenue
recognition within the scope of HKFRS 15 attributable to

the reportable segments is set out below:

AFEBIMT :
it 8% &
ZEXE
REREE
FEEm MERWESR et
Wholesaling
and retailing
of beauty,
healthcare = Wholesaling
and lifestyle of technology
products products Total
FET FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HE—_ZT_”-= For the year ended
+-B=+—H 31 December 2023
WHFE
— R —E R RE R — At a point in time 64,824 885,447 950,271
BHE_Z_— For the year ended
+-RA=+—H 31 December 2022
FFE
— R —{E 5 2 - At a point in time 75,481 110,181 185,662
“EBC=FFR 167



MmN

BONJOUR

MBRRWE (B)
BE -+ _"_HA=+—HIFE

10. ZEEH (E)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(c)

& & (c)

rEBKRBIIEERZE
FEDDRERBEXIMERZH
HMEtemEoE MAE
BZIFRBEENRBEEE
(FrEEERmIEAE-R—HF
GELREZRERINEKEE
NBAZREA) ZERUED

Geographical information

The Group’s turnover from external customers is
categorised by the geographical markets based on the
locations where the goods delivered and the Group’s
non-current assets are categorised by the physical
locations of the assets (other than financial instruments,
investment in a joint venture and investments in
associates) as detailed below:

BOoFEBUWT
SR ERBEE

Turnover Non-current assets

—E-= = —E-= —ET
2023 2022 2023 2022
FAET FET FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
58 Hong Kong 934,619 177,660 38,187 54,310
BPY Macau 15,652 8,002 195 453
950,271 185,662 38,382 54,763

(d) kBEBFTEXTEFEMWE (d) Revenue from major customers

168

REFERBEFE B
AEEBEXERBBI0%
WEEBEERITERBH
oh—fE 7 ¥R & o 86 0 Bt 3
B Edm HHWT -

The Group’s customers who contributed more than 10%
of the Group’s total turnover for both current and prior
years are mainly attributable to one of the reportable
segments, i.e. wholesaling of technology products, are
set out below:

2023 2022
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000

HEE T E m Wholesaling of technology

products:

EEA Customer A 393,878 -
=EB Customer B 198,065 -
=ZRC Customer C - 65,758
E=]p Customer D - 23,028
=ZRE Customer E - 21,395
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

TECZHFA+ZH=+—HIEFEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023
it & BE 4 11. FINANCE COSTS
—EZ= —F-—
2023 2022
FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
HEsGEZMERE Interest expense on lease
liabilities 6,796 6,116
RITREMERZFERAE Interest expense on bank and
other borrowings 4,899 21,868
ERERZFEHX (5E34) Interest expense on convertible
loans (note 34) - 6,522
FEMIERRIRERRIB A BB Interest expense on amount due
to the controlling shareholder 1,648 118
RIBRBcBEZMERSZ Interest expense on long service
payment liabilities 38 -
13,381 34,624
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

12.

INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT

E W RiEm P HERINWMER (5 Income tax (expense)/credit recognised in profit or loss during
) EEeWT the year is as follows:
—E-= =
2023 2022
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BIERIRIE— B B FER Current tax — Hong Kong
Profits Tax:
KEEEHE Provision for the year (640) -
BPERRMR I — &b ! Current tax — Overseas:
BEFEBREEE Over-provision in prior years - 2,732
(640) 2,732
5 ‘% MEMRDEFRNMGEHE D% Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) of

MEFMNI6.5% (ZE -
16.5%) sTiR 15 - 'IEZIS"TEA
EHAMBA LN —BHRBATA

“HRMEBREIETHNEGEREE
B oh
REZGE ZWBEATDEH2R

BBTHERNEH %8.25%09
MG o AR T B 8RR i ) A
B16.5%HMEFER - ZWEB R

ANERNERBEENR _T =
FHREREESE-
PEECEMESRDBRERMGSE

BREA 2% (ZEZ_F
25% ) stiR B o & F'ﬂ%?;uﬁﬁéz
BEARILDEEFNGTERR G
FMW12% (ZEZ"F 112%) 51
IR o

BINMEABNREDRERNSE
[ A% = P /£ AH B B X BY IR 1T O0F
B-RREREAZBERR KR
Bt

the estimated assessable profits for the year, except for one
of the Company’s subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong is a
qualifying corporation under the two-tiered profits tax regime.

Under this regime, the first HK$2 million of assessable profits
of such subsidiary is taxed at 8.25% and the remaining
assessable profits is taxed at 16.5%. The provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax for this subsidiary was calculated on the same
basis in 2022.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax is provided at 25% (2022: 25%)
of the estimated assessable profits for the year. Macau SAR
Complementary Tax is provided at 12% (2022: 12%) of the
estimated assessable profits for the year.

Taxation for the overseas subsidiaries is provided at the
appropriate rates prevailing in the relevant countries where the
Group operates based on the existing legislation, interpretation
and practices.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BE_EFE_ZHF_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

12. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT (continued)

The reconciliation between income tax (expense)/credit and
accounting profit at the applicable tax rate is as follows:

B
= —F-—
2023 2022
FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRAR A A Profit before tax 54,611 164,489
BEBNEMME16.5%TEM  Tax calculated at Hong Kong
118 Profits Tax rate of 16.5% (9,011) (27,141)
DME—REeErETEEY Tax effect of share of result of a
MBEEE joint venture (4,088) 1,285
BARRMBANREEE Tax effect of non-taxable
income 20,550 58,555
AHMNREASZNRBEEE Tax effect of non-deductible
expenses (4,389) (4,026)
FERREBBEZRBEE Tax effect of tax losses not
recognised (3,702) (28,673)
BEFEBIERE Over-provision in prior years - 2,732
Frisf (B e Income tax (expense)/credit (640) 2,732

“ECFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year is arrived at after charging/(crediting) the

ZIEBENR . following items:
—E-= T
2023 2022
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Z B M & Auditor’s remuneration 2,380 2,180
BEEmEAE () Cost of goods sold (note) 887,219 151,908
M- -BERREITE Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment 247 884
FTREEETE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 23,396 26,731
FEEERS Short-term leases expense 1,938 7,419
BIMA B8EEEMNE Staff costs, including Directors’
(fizE14) : emoluments (note 14):
—TEKRNIBIEAL — Salaries and discretionary
bonus 56,814 67,312
REHFURIRET &I — Contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans 2,028 2,421
—REBEEKRRIEEEME - Reversal of provision for
unutilised annual leave - (2,006)
—REABRFE S B % (5E36) - Provision for long service
payments (note 36) 260 373

B 5F EEGRABEFRERT Note: Cost of goods sold includes the reversal of allowance for slow-
EB##E12,560,000% 7T moving inventories of HK$12,560,000 (2022: HK$8,000,000)
(ZZ2 - =% :8,000, OOO recognised in profit or loss during the year due to the increase
Bt o EE’\\ZISEEE}E in estimated net realisable value of inventories as a result of
R oTHERTHEEX ‘é; changes in market demand.
B BENEFEMNMG I EIR
EEE Mo
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

14.1 Directors’ emoluments

n

BONJOUR

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

RIESBELBEHFE383 Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to

MERAE (KBEEFH o
B B E28

B B2 B9

section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information

EEMEsWT about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
EENE i BB BAEIER Feh
Retirement
Directors’ Discretionary plans
fees Salaries bonus contributions Total
FET FE7T FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE-Z-ZE For the year ended 31 December 2023:
+ZA=1+—-HLEE:
HTES Executive Directors
BRI E Mr. Chen Jianwen - 1,200 - 32 1,232
FlERLE Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel - 1,200 - 15 1,215
HERLT Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna - 1,200 - 23 1,23
- 3,600 - 70 3,670
BInTES Independent Non-Executive Directors
FRHLE Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan 198 - - - 198
= Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning 198 - - - 198
BEMLE M. Kwok Chi Shing 208 - - - 208
604 - - - 604
Mt Total 604 3,600 - 70 4,274
TET=FFR 173
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

14.1 Directors’ emoluments (continued)

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND

EEEn ¢ BMIETA BARTEER st
Retirement
Directors’ Discretionary plans
fees Salaries bonus  contributions Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
HE_Z__F For the year ended 31 December 2022
+ZB=t-HILEE:
HTES Executive Directors
BT E Mr. Chen Jianwen - 1,200 - 18 1,218
RlEREE Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel - 1,200 - 18 1,218
HERLL Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna - 1,200 - 18 1,218
- 3,600 - 54 3,654
BIEnTES Independent Non-Executive Directors
THELE Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan 198 - - - 198
BNl Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning 198 - - - 198
BEALE Mr. Kok Chi Shing 208 - - - 208
604 - - - 604
st Total 604 3,600 - 54 4,258

HRAFEFERBEFED
BEBMSBRIT AT R
EREFOALRIREN
BARRMERB EEEMG
WEMESMEFHDH-

REFERBEFE &~&E
EHEDEMNES AR
BAEAME  FR/MAR
EEIMALAERROE
BB mE-

REFERBEFE > BE
EENEARSHRELEM
Pl <= B9 22 F o

No apportionment was made for the above Directors’
emoluments which were directly attributable to the
services rendered by the Directors to the Company and
its subsidiaries since it is impracticable to apportion such
amount for both current and prior years.

No emolument was paid or payable by the Group to any
of the Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as a compensation for loss of office for both
current and prior years.

There was no arrangement under which the Directors
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments for both
current and prior years.
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14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

142ERZRB -LHHEOE

m

PRt 5227 K 37 P 4% B8 AV PR
MEERZ I X RFEM
ERAB -WEBLABRRER
MEBRARMES LAKXADF
EFHARTDEETHNHAE
ERNETEEINBZE
BEEABmZBERERNE
REMBFBEFENONE XX
P RFHEGH -

14.3E MR

A& @ E MR KE
BMEEHT HUREER
PENAMBEGERERZ
Bl o

&

RIE P EEREERER
& E A DMK AP
EEEREBEZMNBHS
BT % 8 K (R F 28 FI =
BY IE 28 7R IR 5t 8 o R
DIREEBBEIHMARENE
BEBERAIEREL WRE
SRHEEMRBRZH-

&#

AEERERE S E K
HAEMEEEEERESR
EEaESsE cmE st
ABZLBILTTEAE
EWNEEM-REBRTE
HEfTREREIREBHY BER
BEEHEWABNS%ME st E
EHRGI SR S B 18
B U A B EFR A 30,0008
7t P B B 12 1 48 Bf AR 75 B
=i

“ECFFR

14.2

14.3

Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements or
contracts

Except for the share allotment transaction as disclosed in
notes 27 and 37, there was no transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance to which any of the Company’s
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party and in which a director of the Company or a
connected entity of the director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Defined contribution plans

The Group contributes to both defined contribution
retirement plans which are available for all eligible
employees located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The PRC

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the Group is required to join the defined contribution
retirement plans for all eligible employees located in
the PRC arranged by the local government labour and
security authorities. Contributions are made at the
applicable rates based on the amounts stipulated by the
authorities which is expensed as the related service is
provided by the employees.

Hong Kong

The Group operates the MPF Scheme under the MPF
Ordinance for all eligible employees located in Hong
Kong. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by various independent
trustees. It requires that mandatory contributions are
made by both employers and employees separately to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000, which
are expensed as the related services are provided by the
employees.
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AEBEWERWRA Lt
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FEHZAINTEEKRK
AR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

14.3

14.4

Defined contribution plans (continued)
Macau

All eligible employees located in Macau are members of
the Social Security System operated by the Macau SAR
government. It requires that mandatory contributions
are made by both employers and employees to the
Social Security Fund, at the relative amounts of fixed
contributions varies among the types of employment
contracts signed with the employees, which are expensed
as the related services are provided by the employees.

The Group had no forfeited contributions to all aforesaid
defined contribution retirement plans available to reduce
its present and future contributions to the plan for both
current and prior years.

Introduction of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism

In June 2022, the Hong Kong Government gazetted the
Amended Ordinance which will take effect from 1 May
2025 (the “Transition Date”) and the use of the accrued
benefits derived from employer’s MPF contributions
to offset the long service payments in respect of the
employee’s service. In addition, the last month’s salary
immediately preceding the Transition Date is used to
calculate the portion of the long service payments in
respect of the employment period before the Transition
Date.

Details of long service payment liabilities are disclosed in
note 36.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

14.5 Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals during the year included
three (2022: three) directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in note 14.1. The aggregate emoluments in
respect of the remaining two (2022: two) individuals are

W) AT BN & 4B EE W as follows:
o

2023 2022
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
e Salaries 3,306 3,789
1B TEAL Discretionary bonus 200 -
BRORETEIHR Retirement plans contributions 20 16
3,526 3,805

MBE(CTEZ__F ma) R
SmATHEENFLUT
g E :

The emoluments of the two (2022: two) individuals with the highest
emoluments are within the following bands:

A
Number of individuals
—EZ= —F_—

2023 2022

0787t — 1,000,000 75 HK$NIl — HK$1,000,000 1 -
1,000,001 75— HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000

1,500,000 7T - 1
1,500,001 75— HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000

2,000,000 75 - -
2,000,001 %875 — HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000

2,500,000 75 - -
2,500,001 8575 — HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000

3,000,000 7T 1 1

2 2

“ECFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

14.6 Senior management

The senior management paid during the year included
three (2022: three) individuals whose aggregate
emoluments are as follows:

o
2023 2022
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
e Salaries 3,486 4,002
1B TEAL Discretionary bonus 200 -
BRORETEIHRR Retirement plans contributions 25 20
3,711 4,022

SREEENWNE N F U

The emoluments of the senior management are within the

THE : following bands:
A
Number of individuals
—ZE”= —F-—

2023 2022

0787t — 1,000,000 75 HK$Nil - HK$1,000,000 2 2
1,000,001 75— HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000

1,500,00078 7T - -
1,500,001 75— HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000

2,000,000 7t - -
2,000,001 75— HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000

2,500,000 75 - -
2,500,001 75— HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000

3,000,000 7T 1 1

3 3

15. &S
EEZTERNFTFERBREEE

KN ARBEE ANEBGEB AR
RERE
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15. DIVIDENDS
The Directors do not recommend the payment of interim and

final dividends attributable to owners of the Company for both
current and prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the

% . following data:
—EZ= —F-—
2023 2022
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BF Earnings
ENBEB AEEERREN  Profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company 53,971 167,221

R &E
R—B—HZEEFTEER

Number of shares
Issued ordinary shares at

1 January
BREEREARL TEEITIRID Effect of shares issued under
2B capitalisation of shareholder’s
loan

3,512,565,999

190,515,068

3,5612,565,999

B+-A=+—BzEEBRM
BT Y

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares at 31 December

3,703,081,067

3,512,5665,999

BREEBRZEZENETFER
BEFEMSEA#HEUNE-
e ZERMEFHEHB T BF
SAEAFERBEFESRESR

REERM 2D prior years.

“ECFFR

The effect of potential ordinary shares was anti-dilutive for both
current and prior years. Hence, the weighted average number
of ordinary shares was used as a denominator for calculating
the basic and diluted earnings per share for both current and
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BE_E_ZFf_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023
17. ME -BERZHE 17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
R %8
T RIET HEMERE e RE @it
Furniture,
Land and Leasehold fixtures and Motor
buildings  improvements equipment vehicles Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A - Cost:
RZB--%-F—H At 1 January 2022 2,299 90,298 61,442 6,968 161,007
RE Additions - 2,036 2,661 269 4,966
HE Disposal (2,299) - - (682) (2,981)
HEMBAE (FHizE40() Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40(ii) - (2,036) (1,829) - (3,865)
b6 Written off - (79,257) (55,362) - (134,619)
RIZEZZHE+ZA=1+—-HK At 31 December 2022 and
- ZF-A-H 1 January 2023 - 11,041 6,912 6,555 24,508
RE Additions - - 17 - 17
—HEMBABRILGREANR Deconsolidation of a subsidiary
(GEZAD) (note 41) - (1,462) - (6,287) (7,749)
RZEBZ=F+-A=+—-H At 31 December 2023 - 9,579 6,929 268 16,776
RHrERRAE . Accumulated depreciation and
impairment:
RZB--%-F—H At 1 January 2022 806 89,716 61,263 6,968 158,753
TEERE Charge for the year 5 477 398 4 884
R E R Written back on disposal (811) - - (682) (1,493)
HEMBAZ (HzE40() Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40(ii) - (291) (166) - (457)
BI85 B S8 Eliminated on written off - (79,257) (55,362) - (134,619)
RIFZZHE+ZA=1+—HK At 31 December 2022 and
“E-=#-F-H 1 January 2023 - 10,645 6,133 6,290 23,068
TEERE Charge for the year - 2 191 54 247
—HEMBABRILGREANR Deconsolidation of a subsidiary
(GEZE)) (note 41) - (1,072) - (6,287) (7,359)
RZEBZ=F+-A=+—-H At 31 December 2023 - 9,575 6,324 57 15,956
fREfE Carrying amount:
RZEZ=f+ZA=+—-8 At 31 December 2023 - 4 605 211 820
RIZZZF+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2022 - 396 779 265 1,440
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BE_EFE_ZHF_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

18. EHEEE 18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
FTREEENRKRAFES MU The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets is as
e follows:
BHEEWE
Leased
properties
FET
HK$’000
A _E__F—HF—H At 1 January 2022 13,673
NE Additions 74,898
HEMB AR (FIsE40(i) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40(ii)) (6,668)
e Depreciation (26,731)
BERIEEE Provision of impairment loss (1,849)
R_ZE__F+_-_B=+—HkK At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023
—E_=F—HF—H 53,323
wE Additions 8,283
—RBIR B AT K IEGE AR (MIsE41) Deconsolidation of a subsidiary (note 41) (486)
e Depreciation (23,396)
RIERERE Provision of impairment loss (162)
BRZE-_=F+"B=+—H At 31 December 2023 37,562
HEBEaANBERNEEEBRNE The analysis of the expense items in relation to leases
TEESWAOT recognised in profit or loss is as follows:
2023 2022
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FREEERNE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 23,396 26,731
HEaBEZF B (MzE11) Interest expense on lease
liabilities (note 11) 6,796 6,116
FRHEAFE &R (M95E13) Short-term leases expense
(note 13) 1,938 7,419
“E=FFR 181
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HERsrREaHER HEaA
HSES M REABBENASE

EHARKBERSENEBD R
B MIsE42.2 33K 440

AEBCEBHERENEUT
EEEENERE 8083
REBFRFENTEET ; &)l
REBRBEMANEEE T X2
FHNEBEAB4F(ZEZF . 4
F) - BEHELAURMTIE
e -ZEEHNBESHEA1E2E
(ZB2ZZ8F 1Z848F) v EF
HEREUERLERENKILEAE
EofTENAB - HEKRER
RERRGCEERER EEB
REEREHBIEREE Y & E
MESBFAREAEGEFERE
AR THEEE#R UEEHE
HEESUMERFINITUERE
HEFHR-

FERAEEEARNEMES,283,000
BT (ZE -4 174,898,000
BT)IEERBRBEHRHEZREE (Z
E - F I TERBFREER)
NHEERRENNELRCHEE
EE

rEEHEZBTESE B8
REEEMELHENTEES
TRMERKREERBEFEHREN
MIER e ZENRERNEER
EEMAENEBTEEBRESR
K2EZEEHFRNEAEERB
TEEMNHEXRT FAEELE
EEEATEHEEMR Kitz
S REBRAFERBEFE
HENEHEEMMERNEE-

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

18.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Details of total cash outflow for leases, maturity analysis of
lease liabilities and future cash outflows arising from leases that
are not yet commenced are set out in notes 42.2, 33 and 44
respectively.

The Group has obtained right-to-use of the following underlying
assets through tenancy agreements, including (i) industrial
building where headquarters and warehouse located; and (i)
retail stores located in Hong Kong and Macau. The industrial
building carries a lease term of 4 years (2022: 4 years) with
an upward adjustment of lease payments every year to reflect
market rentals. The retail stores carry lease terms of 1 to 2
years (2022: 1 to 4 years) which certain tenancy agreements
have options to extend or terminate the lease terms exercisable
by the Group. The lease terms were separately negotiated with
different terms and conditions. Management assesses on the
lease commencement date whether it is reasonably certain
to exercise the options by including into the measurement of
lease liabilities or otherwise and consider whether the tenancy
agreements are legally enforceable to determine the length of
lease terms.

The total additions to right-of-use assets of HK$8,283,000
(2022: HK$74,898,000) represented the capitalised lease
payments payable under the new tenancy agreements for
leasing retail stores (2022: industrial building and retail stores)
during the year.

The Group leased a number of retail stores which contain
variable lease payment terms that are based on sales
generated from the retail stores and minimum annual lease
payment terms that are fixed. These payment terms are
common in retail stores in Hong Kong where the Group
operates. The Group did not incur any variable lease payments
with reference to the sales performance of the retail stores for
both current and prior years. Apart from this, the Group has
no lease with variable lease payment term for both current and
prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

18. FRAEEE (& 18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

F‘%Hﬁﬂ)\%ﬁﬁ’]*ﬁ%ﬁﬁéﬁ’]#
REDNCFAEHEERZDEM
f] 2 R& 256 15 B FEERIE
R e

18 57 1

Eé_v__EwL B=+—8">

NEETMHERZEEZR -FRE
)S’ziﬁéﬂ#rﬁémﬁﬁﬂ (Z=ZZ=
F HBRTEZET " FEK
EEREESR AT ERTE
g2 ) E’J@EFH%%EEEE“TE
3,942,000 T (Z &=
5,564,000 75) cELﬁﬁMEﬁ
HoFAREENTKREEEES
HERBEERAEATERHLE X
ABEFHNRSE - FHAREE
MEBEENLNFERMBERERE
EEt O BEEENAKIERES
/)\LEJ*‘ZKE".JJ:IIJ’E_[”&@@gE%
3,330,000 T (Z& =
16,445,000 75) ’ﬁffﬁﬁéaﬁz
BEEEHE162,0008 T (ZE
— 4 :1,849,000E ) BN E
NIRE T El S BEREREmAARE Y
EREDR o RBZ WA AR F &
BERE—SREBEE K278
SR o

MBERERELZRBENIESR
ABBETEABRI BREEX.
FABEEREMNK -MBRERS
RBREMHHEEEEEBEBER
Z 0 B0 TE R KR B9 5T 1 B9 AR AT A
RoPRESEFFK SR M
EHRTFACEREREX -RAHBEE
BREMERDERELEE I
BREBEEFHNRRBHRFLAR -
HERERERANREEERE
HENROPRVHBES -

EHEHREMMEEEIRKD
BTA418.91%%18.13% (==
T I 2514%R%20.71%)

“ECFFR

All tenancy agreements do not have any restricted covenants
other than the security interests of the underlying assets
held by the lessor which should not be used as a security for
borrowing purpose.

Impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2023, the gross carrying amount of
right-of-use assets of HK$3,942,000 (2022: HK$5,564,000)
allocated to the “wholesaling and retailing of beauty, healthcare
and lifestyle products” segment (2022: “wholesaling and
retailing of beauty, healthcare and lifestyle products” and
“wholesaling of technology products” segments) was subject
to impairment assessment. The recoverable amount of the
right-of-use assets is the greater of its value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal. Value in use of the right-of-
use assets is determined by using the discounted cash flows
method to estimate the future cash flows to be generated
from such segment. As a result, the recoverable amounts
were HK$3,330,000 (2022: HK$16,445,000) and the
related provision of impairment loss of HK$162,000 (2022:
HK$1,849,000) was recognised during the year based on the
deficit of the recoverable amount against the gross carrying
amount. Any adverse change in the assumptions would result
in further impairment loss or vice versa.

The key inputs applied to the discounted cash flows method
are mainly discount rates, growth rates, forecasted sales
and gross profit margins. The discount rates are the pre-
tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to such segment. The
growth rates are long-term average economic growth rates
where the business operate. The forecasted sales and gross
profit margins are based on historical data adjusted by future
expectation of the business. The underlying cash flow forecasts
are derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by
management.

The discount rates are determined as 18.91% and 18.13%
(2022: 25.14% and 20.71%) for Hong Kong and Macau regions
respectively.
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BE_E_ZFf_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023
19. MZEE 19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
e LGS st
Goodwill Software Total
FAET FAET FAET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(Pt i) (Bt &ii)

(note i) (note ii)

s Cost:
RIEZ__FK At 1 January 2022 and 2023,

_E-_=%—HF—H~ 31 December 2022 and 2023

ZEITHER

+=ZB=+—H 2,041 1,375 3,416
R BHE R RE Accumulated amortisation

and impairment:

=== ) At 1 January 2022 and 2023,

—E-=%—HF—H- 31 December 2022 and 2023

“EITHR

=B =

+ZB=+—H 2,041 1,375 3,416
BRMEE - Carrying amount:
RIEZ=%F At 31 December 2023

+=ZB=+—H - - -
= —— At 31 December 2022

+ZB=+—H - - _

M EE Notes:

() HEFBERSHWET DA (i) The goodwill was acquired in a business combination and
EHAATHERTEER B allocated to the CGU identified as “wholesaling and retailing of
BREREEIEHENERI DBME beauty, healthcare and lifestyle products” segment.
SELEBE-

(il PEHMEFRSERBTEE (i) All other intangible assets were purchased from external parties
BEEINIEE T o in the prior years.

20. MAFEHABEMEEIKZE %S 20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI
B E
—EZ= —F-—

2023 2022

FAET FAET

HK$’000 HK$'000

R ARE S Listed equity securities - 24,021

JE LR AE S Unlisted equity securities 409 349

409 24,370
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI (continued)

The carrying amounts of the listed and unlisted equity
securities as at 31 December 2022 and 2023 were
denominated in the following currencies:

—E-= B2

2023 2022

FET FAET

HK$’000 HK$'000

BIT HK$ - 24,021
ET usD 409 349
409 24,370

AEERREH EHMIFLHRAE
BENREREESUQATESA
Hthzmim CGFER) RS HE
ERBEREBNMITA - EAF
ERBEFEHREIRE IR
BERESE (WERI) -

N_E__F#+”-B=+—8"
EHRAZEFNA T BB
FRRENTIHZEEABSE (B
RATEERNSIHR MK
T __FEFRZBEZ=F+ZA
=+—H 'FLTREAZHFHA
FTESRBUEXRGEEMEEE
THERRZTHEEABRFETH
HE(BEARAFTERBMRNES
R STE-HERBHBALLE
RAKRZBHENNAREN
AILEhXBEEFELER.

FETREAZBSZHREDTZ

AREESREED RIS
o 3558 o

“ECFFR

The Group designated its investments in listed and unlisted
equity securities as FVTOCI (non-recycling) given that they
are held for strategic investment purpose. No dividend was
received nor transfer within the equity other than disposals for
both current and prior years.

As at 31 December 2022, the fair value of the listed equity
securities was measured at the market bid price quoted
in the Stock Exchange (categorised as Level 1 of the fair
value hierarchy), whereas the fair value of the unlisted equity
securities as at 31 December 2022 and 2023 was measured
with reference to the valuation carried out by the independent
professional valuer due to the absence of market bid price
in an active market (categorised as Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy). The valuation applied market comparable approach
using the enterprises’ value-to-sales ratio of comparable
enterprises adjusted for lack of marketability discount.

Details of the fair value measurement with sensitivity analysis of
the unlisted equity securities are described in note 7.3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REBEATZRE 21. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
= —F-—

2023 2022
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
JELEMmRAKE Unlisted equity investments 551 -

RER DL E AT Z%#4  Unrecognised share of results of
associates (226) -

KT REEBDEHE QT Accumulated unrecognised share
ZER of results of associates (226) -

RIZEZZHE+_"B ARBE
TEFTHWB RSB (M TXAF) [
B R S ot B HE B A B9 B B A &
TEBR BRHOEZER ZEW
BAENEZBEBREAHIO0% R LD
E30% (MFs£40(ii)) o ALk » H ¥
BREEARINEBHE QT -

In December 2022, certain subsidiaries of the Company as
listed below, allotted their ordinary shares to related entities
commonly controlled by Mr. Chen Jianwen. Upon the share
allotments, the respective equity interests of these subsidiaries
were reduced from 100% to 30% as disclosed in note 40(i). As
a result, they are accounted for as associates using the equity
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BE_EFE_ZHF_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

21. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Details of the Group’s principal associates as at 31 December

2022 and 2023 are as follows:

MM RES BEITR EEERED
HEARLE FR1E it 26 BRRAHE BAL TEEH
Place of Particulars of Percentage
incorporation and issued and paid up of ownership
Name of associate business share capital interest Principal activity
SRERERBRAT BH 150R BRI AETHEET 30% KEEXAREGHDL
BB 350K B K30E T (ZZZZF:30%) REZERTE
MERTEBR
Bonjour Global Beauty Limited * Hong Kong 150 issued ordinary shares of 30% Operating beauty and
HK$1 each and 350 issued (2022: 30%) slimming centre
ordinary shares of HK$30 each and retailing of
beauty products
SRBERRAG B 150RBR1IBTNEET 30% MEEERESHL
BB K350 B R40E T (ZEZ"F:30%) RERERTE
WEZTERER
Bonjour Health Limited * Hong Kong 150 issued ordinary shares of 30% Operating beauty and
HK$1 each and 350 issued (2022: 30%) slimming centre
ordinary shares of HK$40 and retailing of
each beauty products
SRBEERERAD) /% S0 ERIETNEET 30% RiREE
EERRT0RER100ET (ZBZZF 130%)
NERITEBR
Bonjour Technology Development Limited* Hong Kong 30 issued ordinary shares of 30% Technology
HK$1 each and 70 issued (2022: 30%) development
ordinary shares of HK$100
each
BEHBRAT" % ORERIBTNEET 30% EFE
ERRR70KEK200% T (ZZZZF:30%)
MERTEBR
HK Mall Limited * Hong Kong 30 issued ordinary shares of 30% ECommerce business
HK$1 each and 70 issued (2022: 30%)

“ECFFR

ordinary shares of HK$200
each
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

“ZF+-H=+—HIFEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023
REERIZKE (&) 21. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
RIEZZHFRZZEZ=F+= Details of the Group’s principal associates as at 31 December
B=+—HB AEENTEHRE 2022 and 2023 are as follows: (continued)
REFHFBFUWT (&)
BN E 3] BETR mEREREE
YNGR FRE3t 2 HRRAFEE Btk TEEH
Place of Particulars of Percentage
incorporation and issued and paid up of ownership
Name of associate business share capital interest Principal activity
EmHARAR" &5 1,000 8 &1 #TH 30% EFEH
BEITEER (CBZ-£: 5
Market May Limited * Hong Kong 1,000 issued ordinary shares 30% (2022: Nil) ECommerce business

of HK$1 each

* HE_Z_=4+ZA=+-— * Companies not audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
EI EFEEERARKHRB (F8) 8 for the year end 31 December 2023.
SENEBAMBERAAEZAA
E_‘ o
NZE__HFR_E_= E += As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, the carrying amount of the
B=+—H BHE_ZE__&F&K investments in associates and share of results of associates for
TE =+ "RB=1+—HILF the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2023 were considered
f ZRBEAAKREZREER as individually immaterial to the consolidated financial
DEBEADEEWRAMER Y statements.
GEVBEHRERMSLAEEKR
R_E__FERIZEZ= E —f— - No contingent liabilities and other commitments relating to these
B=+—H UTEELXHZEH associates were incurred as at 31 December 2022 and 2023.

%@Eﬁ%z&ﬁjﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ
fh 7R 3 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

22. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

—E-= “E-

2023 2022
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000

FELETRAKE . Unlisted equity investment:
—HA—H At 1 January 343,625 -
&ZQEEK Capital contribution - 351,412
DE—EEEREZEL  Share of result of a joint venture 24,775 (7,787)
W+-_B=+—H At 31 December 368,400 343,625

AZECCER-F-=£4-
B=+—B A%EaEL%
EBMT

Details of the Group’s joint venture as at 31 December 2022
and 2023 are as follows:

SRR IR BETR kD
RELEZATE BERELR BT BRE BAE TEEBEY
Place of Particulars of Percentage
incorporation  issued and paid of ownership Principal
Name of joint venture Form of business structure and business  up share capital interest activity
CR Business Innovation ERGRERAD BEEE 550,000,000 7T 75% MELE
Investment Fund L.P. (T&4)) (MizE) (CBZITE75%)
CR Business Innovation Exempted limited partnership The Cayman  HK$550,000,000 75% Property
Investment Fund L.P. Islands (note) (2022: 75%) investment

(the “Fund”)

et . RAFE4#%E550,000,000
BTAZAEMNFTEHE S S
HZHRBR R ZFRZ
Z_=F+_-_B=+—H XK
EEHEENRBITELRK
& %61,088,0008 7T

]]

RZE-__—_F#=B_-_+N\H =&
NEIEEMNBLAEMRKESE
BERAR (T2REE]) ~CR
Capital Investment (Cayman)
Limited (TCRCIJ) (ER=®
MEE HZBTITEREE AL)
BICR Business Innovation
Investment GP Company
Limited (F CBEB AL I E
ReEtmE ((BEREaBHE) &
REGZ BLEITORFRE"
EREBABREERGRHE
mEEMHIH550,000,000E T °
RZEZZFXXBEZ+AB XK
EEmREESTHERApex Centric
Investment Limited X #MAE
RAB (MAAXEEZ2EWEB R
BloMmBATHEER)) 2802
B> E— W ERHIEE40() ©

RETHRECHBZ A K-

“ECFFR

Note: The total amount of capital contribution of HK$550,000,000 is
not subject to any specific due date of the contribution. As at
31 December 2022 and 2023, the Group has an outstanding
capital commitment of HK$61,088,000 to the Fund.

On 28 March 2022, Bonjour Investment Management
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“Bonjour
Investment”), CR Capital Investment (Cayman) Limited (“CRCI”)
(together with Bonjour Investment, the “Limited Partner(s)”) and
CR Business Innovation Investment GP Company Limited (the
“General Partner”), entered into a limited partnership agreement
(the “Limited Partnership Agreement”) and a subscription
agreement, pursuant to which all parties agreed that the
Limited Partners shall contribute HK$550,000,000 to the Fund
in accordance with the Limited Partnership Agreement. On
29 June 2022, the Group disposed the entire equity interest
in Apex Centric Investment Limited and Apex Frame Limited,
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company (together the
“Disposal Group”) to the Fund as further disclosed in note 40(i).

The equity interests in the Fund were accounted for using the
equity method.
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22. W—HEEREZERE (& 22. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)
EENHMBEENBEE (MMt Summarised financial information of the Fund, adjusted for
RZ2AMNEEFHARRE) k& any difference in accounting policies, and a reconciliation to
GEVMBRKRPEDEZHEKE the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements is
Eor disclosed below:

= -2
2023 2022
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
MNEE Current assets 7,341 8,621
ERBEE Non-current assets 985,359 844,804
mEIBE Current liabilities (42,458) (13,282)
FERBEIE Non-current liabilities (527,066) (450,000)
BEEFE Net assets 423,176 390,143
FAMNLEEREGE: Included in the above assets
and liabilities:
RITRIBE &R Bank and cash balances 7,341 8,621
ERBmEREERE (FEE Non-current financial liabilities
B2 REMELIRNR (excluding trade and other
DR 8 ) payables and provisions) 527,066 450,000
=t
NBZ+ANH
EIECHF
+ZA=+—H
—E-= HARS
Period from
29 June
2022 to
31 December
2023 2022
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Y Revenue 27,412 13,718
w18 REm Profit/(loss) and total
WA (FxR) 42%8 comprehensive income/
(expense) 33,033 (10,383)
AN EER (K518 - Included in the above profit/(loss):
FEWA Interest income 40 6
MERMZ Interest expense (21,334) (11,181)
Frigtn (%) E% Income tax (expense)/credit (10,861) 175
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

22. W—HEELEZERE (&) 22. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)
= —F-—
2023 2022
FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
AEPEIEEFEES Total net assets of the joint
venture 423,176 390,143
REBEMMFERRGLE Proportion of ownership interest
held by the Group 75% 75%
[Ek Goodwill 51,018 51,018
GEMBRERBPP—RBSEE Total carrying amount of the
rEZREZREE investment in a joint venture
in the consolidated financial
statements 368,400 343,625
RIZEBE-__H#K_-_Z_=%+2 No contingent liabilities and other commitments relating to this joint
B=+—H UTEAESLBHEE® venture were incurred as at 31 December 2022 and 2023.
*HEBzAABBEREMEKIE-
23. &8 23. INVENTORIES
2= =
2023 2022
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
HEE S Merchandise stock 9,657 7,127

SAFREDNERSRAXHNEF

EDMBRMEI3

24, BB SR

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The analysis of the inventories recognised as expenses included in
profit or loss during the year is set out in note 13.

2023 2022

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FEUN & 5 ER TR AR 2E Trade receivables, gross amount 2,003 6,902

B TEHEEERE BB EE  Less: Loss allowance for ECLs (843) (6,125)

FE U B 5 IR TP 5R Trade receivables, net amount 1,160 777
“E=FFR 191
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

B 5% Notes:

(a) XEB—RUEWTERHE X (@) The Group generally receives full payments as advanced
FoitEEsp KBRS EEN deposits from the wholesales customers for the sales of
oM EFRHRETRIRMEN technology products business and provides credit terms ranged
EEHRABEEHBHES from 30 to 120 days (2022: 30 to 120 days) from the invoice
30FE1200 (Z&E_-__£& : 30 dates for the rest of wholesales customers, 30 days (2022: 30
F120H) ; S EHEEXEBEM days) from the invoice dates for the eCommerce customers
S MEBFEFRFRERHEEEER for the retail sales business and due immediately for the retail
HAREET30H (ZEZZF : 30 sales customers who purchase the merchandise in retail stores.
H ZEEfRR MEZTEME The Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from the trade
EERNMNSEHERTRE AN receivables are disclosed in note 6.3.

AR - AEEBNEFEEHRER
REKEZEREEZEFEER
bR 7o 4 BB 5E6.3 0
RN_IE__FR T = As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, the ageing analysis of trade
+-ZB=+—H> Rt AEH receivables by invoice dates, before loss allowance for ECLs, is
EEBEBZEBE®N BWK as follows:
BESRANEE DT (BEE
HE) @w™:
2023 2022
FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
fERR Wholesales customers:
0-30H 0 - 30 days - -
31-60H 31 - 60 days - -
61-90H 61 — 90 days - -
91-120H 91 - 120 days - -
1208 U £ More than 120 days - 3,517
- 3,517
TEHERR ! Retail sales customers:
0-308 0 - 30 days 543 374
31-608 31 - 60 days 209 71
61-90H 61 - 90 days 347 98
91-1208 91 - 120 days 51 164
1208 E More than 120 days 853 2,678
2,003 3,385
s Total 2,003 6,902
RZIEZZERZIZEZ=F All of the trade receivables are expected to be recovered within
+ZB=+—H FERKE one year which their fair values were not materially different from
SERXEBHPR—FERUE > H their carrying amounts as at 31 December 2022 and 2023.
ANTFEHEEAEBETEESE KZE

\
U

192

Annual Report 2023



MBRRWE (B)

BE_E_-—F+"HA=+—HIFE

24. BREZKRWM (&)

isE - (42)

M

AY

BONJOUR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) MERN EREZRENEGEE (b)  The movements in the loss allowance in respect of trade

EZ2EBHUMT receivables during the year are as follows:

2023 2022

FHET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

w—A—H At 1 January 6,125 2,500

ENRRBZRAERBE Impairment losses recognised

for the year 709 3,625

—BM B AT L4 & ABR Deconsolidation of a subsidiary (5,991) -

n+ZA=+—H At 31 December 843 6,125

(c) RZE__FRKR_E_=% (c) The gross carrying amounts of the trade receivables as at
+-RA=+—HB EWREZK 31 December 2022 and 2023 were denominated in the following
AW BEmEU TS E S currencies:
& :
—EI=H TECF
2023 2022
FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT HK$ 1,945 6,895
EPITT MOP 58 7
2,003 6,902
“ET-FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

—ZHFE+"H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

FEMNHRE-GTEREMBEUERT  25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

—E-= - =
2023 2022
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000

B551% Trade deposits 23,522 18,980

HhzTl® Other deposits 704 2,708

HMfET = R EUWERER Other prepaid expenses and

receivables 4,725 4,694

FEURE R (MIEE()) Loan receivable (note i) 5,695 6,058

FEUS B & A B FRIE (MEEX(i))  Amounts due from associates

(note i) 24,971 12,737

FE U B EG ~ Bl = aa (B 5Eii) Amounts due from
related companies (note ii) 1,006 -
60,623 45177

A Less:

SFAJERBEEMNEUWER  Loan receivable included in non-

(FF X)) current assets (note i) - (4,900)
60,623 40,277

Mt EE - Notes:

() MIZEZZFZA XEEMA (i) In February 2022, the Group disposed a property to an external
— R BALTHE —BYE party, at a consideration of HK$6,000,000, in exchange for
LEA6,000,0008 7T Ui a right to receive an equivalent amount from the party. This
WNmEZ%A A + W [F &% & %8 arrangement is identified as a non-cash transaction. The loan
MR o Z 2 HE uﬁt B A IR receivable is interest-bearing at 4.675% per annum, secured by
ERZ - EBBMERBERXE the property and repayable within 10 years.
4.675%st B Lﬂr@¥ {EIE 48 10
R+EREER-

(if)

EEERR EERBAYE
f”Ef%ifEﬁuuﬁﬁj(mmKHEE ACEL

il

:EE 6 900 000% 7T) »
Ty BB I W (8 6D
BEYRER _EBE =+
=+ —HMEREE L IR
371,000 T (ZE - _F : &
§§842 000#&7t) c At » F W
ERBEREE =R THE
%;ﬁé‘ﬁ%s 0008 T (ZEZZ
F 0B TT)

Jﬂ:‘ﬁﬁ%b\)

FEWE S AR REK AR RIE (ii)

AEIEF RENERERE unsecured,
o EREUI2EBEERE

EEBITEAR BRMEREX

o4 B L IR B BR BB T A AE
EEXENEABEREHBE

R AEFERBTFFEFERIHN

BRI AE K-

Management considers the credit risk to be substantially
mitigated by the property as collateral, with the estimated
fair value of HK$5,687,000 (2022: HK$6,900,000) which the
valuation is carried out by an independent professional valuer
that gives rise a deficit of HK$371,000 (2022: headroom of
HK$842,000) over their carrying amount as at 31 December
2023. Therefore, the loss allowance under stage 3 after
discounting of HK$363,000 was recognised during the year
(2022: HK$ Nil).

The amounts due from associates and related companies are
interest-free and repayable on demand. The loss
allowances were limited to 12-month ECLs assessments and
were immaterial to be recognised for both current and prior
years since Mr. Chen Jianwen has indemnified for any losses
that may result from the non-recovery of their balances.
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P& 13 71 BR Bk 75 7Rk R

BURBABRIREBIFEZ M
B -EHR REREABEXRE
BoMMAORARBNMEESER
FEEFEEAZRBRIREME
Z+r (RZEZ—FABZ+nAh
AWERRITES) HEZEHA
ER -NEBGAARGERSA
RAB (WM sE41Fr 4% 88 > Al T8
SREHRBLEFROBERRQAF)
BOAEERAFERHEGS
ARFFEENAAB D REELS
B o

FE (T EERR RR R =R 1B

RIE - _ER_EFE_=ZF+_
B=+—HB EBEZERRERE
AEEZHE EEXF BEF
RN F2.75%F18% (Z & - —
F12.75%) st EREBER—FRN

N

A

o

i3
R -

RZEZ_=ZHN\B=Z+—H =K
$.§B$1LY§EEEDT_LDL,$TM

Z (INEWHZEL) - REBERED
:*’Bﬁﬁész%ieﬁﬂ HE R
BEmMAEEEEKHR Z K&
R E1TE&$1,241,750,00002 5%
BEBRMD DEEBALASRIZBERH
0.0628 7w UIKBEENEREX
HENRBERAREERSER
FEstF] B 4976,988,000% 7t (&
E_E_=ZFNBA=Z+—HER
) e

REREZERETRERGDZ
BREERRBERAETHEE

MEAASEGHRBELFE (RFE
SERL B BA) A B BR R S S A E
RoBREBERETRERMERZ
T _=—F+—BNBZEmK-

FEERREMIENRE A XA
MBI ZBWNEMREBRIA

ERBRENREFTE (EERM
$£39.2(iii)) °

“ECFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

26.

27.

AMOUNTS DUE TO FORMER RELATED PARTIES

The amounts due to former related parties are non-
trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The related parties are the former director of the
Company and the entities commonly controlled by the former
directors, Dr. Ip Chun Heng, Wilson and Ms. Chung Pui Wan
(removed as Executive Directors on 29 June 2021). Upon the
deconsolidation of Hop Fung Lung Limited (formerly known as
Bonjour Cosmetic Wholesale Center Limited as disclosed in
note 41), the Group has deconsolidated all of the outstanding
balances due to the former related parties during the year.

AMOUNT DUE TO THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, the amount due to the
controlling shareholder are non-trade in nature, unsecured,
interest-bearing ranged from 2.75% to 18% (2022: 2.75%) per
annum and repayable within 1 year.

On 31 August 2023, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement with Mr. Chen Jianwen (the “Subscription
Agreement”). According to the Subscription Agreement,
Mr. Chen Jianwen has conditionally agreed to subscribe and
the Group has conditionally agreed to allot and issue a total
of 1,241,750,000 of subscription shares, at a subscription
price of HK$0.062 per subscription share, by the way of
offsetting the outstanding principal and accrued interest
of the shareholder’s loan of approximately HK$76,988,000
(accumulated up to 31 August 2023) payable to Mr. Chen
Jianwen.

Upon the completion of the allotment and issue of the
subscription shares, the shareholder’s loan shall be deemed
as fully repaid and any remaining balance of the principal and
interests (accumulated up to the completion date) shall be
waived by Mr. Chen Jianwen. The allotment and issue of the
subscription shares was completed on 6 November 2023.

Any difference between the implicit and market interest rates of
the amount due to the controlling shareholder was recognised
as a deemed capital contribution from the controlling
shareholder as defined in note 39.2(iii).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

28. BANK AND CASH BALANCES

—E-= =2
2023 2022
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000
RITKRFHEIREE Cash at bank and on hand 16,109 17,929

B HERIBFI=ZF+C
B=+—HB BT KBEEEHGH

The carrying amount of the bank and cash balances as
at 31 December 2022 and 2023 were denominated in the

REEUTIEESTE: following currencies:
—E-= BT
2023 2022
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
—B7T - HK$ 9,438 15,271
—BPF3 5T - MOP 336 416
— AR - RMB 1,587 1,776
—3X7T - UsD 4,505 176
—HhEg — Other currencies 243 290
16,109 17,929

EHRRARSHEENIRTRE
BARSHBTERMNEMERDN
FEAMNEAFE S AERFRIE
EHREANERK A BTN
6.5 —FIFE -

RWZE-_=F+"8=+—H">
AR ERERR T ES
MENRETRRERSEGREBRS
1,499,0008 T (ZEZZF .
55,0008 7) c BiIL(PEARHE
MEIEEEBEL ) REE
ERLTMINEBTEMEH) > BR
ANEBITIETEHRIBNE
NREBEEOEBEREETIE
EBENWBTBARKRIKR AN

e o

Cash at bank deposited in different financial institutions bears
at variable interest rates quoted at different daily bank deposit
rates, which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
The relevant assessment is further disclosed in note 6.5.

As at 31 December 2023, the total amount of bank and cash
balance denominated in RMB and deposited in the financial
institutions located in the PRC was HK$1,499,000 (2022:
HK$55,000). Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is only
permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
banks that are authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business since RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

29. TRADE PAYABLES

RIE__FRR_F_-= (@) As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, the ageing analysis
FE+-_BA=+—H ENE of trade payables by dates of receipt of goods, is as
% R Z BREL o A (32 UK EX follows:
EWMBE) WO
—E-= —_=F_
2023 2022
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$°000
0-30H 0 - 30 days 89 512
31-60H 31 - 60 days - 951
61-90H 61 — 90 days 42 360
91-120H 91 - 120 days - 43
1208 A E More than 120 days 4,680 15,499
4,811 17,365

W

—|mE > M EE IR
W EERABKRERS
BN FEI30E1208 (Z S
—_H# :30FE120H) rmiE
9M,\Eﬁ§2?z!:$@ I
B & BT X T 2 %%EB
30%&E50% (_7__ :
30%150%”@%&%7&
RERBEZEZAR R 2B
& T R %ﬁ,?’ﬁ‘?uﬁé,ﬁm,ﬂ
BRI R AR T 7E

I 2

B

><

2

A oE AR

fE-f—_ﬁ:—l——El’ﬁ%ﬁ%
WA

In general, credit terms offered by local suppliers are
ranged from 30 to 120 days (2022: 30 to 120 days) from
the dates of receipt of goods whereas overseas suppliers
request the Group to pay from 30% to 50% (2022:
30% to 50%) of the invoice amounts as deposits before
delivery of products and to settle the remaining balance
before or after the arrival of products depending on the
terms and conditions of purchase contracts.

All of the trade payables are expected to be settled within
one year or repayable on demand which their fair values
were not materially different from their carrying amounts
as at 31 December 2022 and 2023.

The carrying amounts of the trade payables as at
31 December 2022 and 2023 were denominated in the
following currencies:

—E-=F —E-—
2023 2022
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT HK$ 3,412 16,105
AR RMB 620 409
Bt (TR Tl) Euro (“EUR’) 417 607
Hih G Other currencies 362 244
4,811 17,365

“ECFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BE_E_ZFf_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

30. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND ACCRUED

EH CHARGES
—E-= —_=E_
2023 2022
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
fEstE T A4S Accrued staff costs 9,766 10,772
FEstIAEWEEEZE (55 Accrued leasehold improvements
charges (note) - 27,935
HAESt S H (M 5H) Other accrued charges (note) 49,051 85,727
HAEIEETIR™ Other sundry creditors - 3,282
58,817 127,716
Misk : FEstTH E Y i e HE Note: The carrying amounts of both accrued leasehold improvements
EStZE®N HEE charges and other accrued charges included the provision
MfsE43PT IR & K B =& recognised for litigation and claims as disclosed in note 43 and
iAol = ) I NS deconsolidated from the Group as detailed in note 41.
B4 & AR (5% MY

31. 5W&ER

31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

—E-= =
2023 2022
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
HERMER ! Sales of technology products:
(SIS EENEN Advanced deposits received 8,355 -

AEB—RMHEFWERER The Group generally receives full payments as advanced
MERKRINE2EBEBNREAEN deposits from customers for the sales of technology products
NeBIEREEIASHLNEE business. Advanced deposits are recognised as a contract
EEERRNTFER liabilities until the merchandise are delivered to the customers.

GNEaRE:

Movements in contract liabilities:

2023 2022

FAET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

m—A—H At 1 January - -
R EIFET R ME R Increase in contract liabilities

HHBEIEMN as a result of receiving
advanced deposits 8,355 -
W+ZBA=+—H At 31 December 8,355 -

RZB_=H5+"/[=+—H8>
FFEEHNBEANER —FRR
BREX|M(CT_F 08T
BRUETTEE) -

198

As at 31 December 2023, all of the contract liabilities are expected
to be recognised as turnover within one year (2022: HK$ Nil and

denominated in USD).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

32. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

—E-= =g

2023 2022
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$°000

T Unsecured
RITER Bank borrowings 3,792 4,296
HEm Other borrowings 43,721 37,467
47,513 41,763

RITRAMBERBE
s

ASAOEEs)

The analysis of the repayment schedule of bank and other
borrowings is as follows:

—E-= T
2023 2022
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
—FRN Within one year 11,542 18,364
—FEM EBRBEMF More than one year, but not
exceeding two years 17,184 9,666
MEM EBREEAEF More than two years, but not
more than five years 9,996 10,000
EEME More than five years 4,999 -
BEAR—FEREEEEE®R  Amount of bank borrowings that
EREBRBERVIRITER is not repayable within one year,
£ FOREHEMBIE TSIR)  but contains a repayment on
demand clause (shown under
current liabilities) 3,792 3,733
47,513 41,763
B AR —FREENIRITR  Less: Amounts of bank and
HthER &5 (R other borrowings that
BEE TN are repayable within
one year (shown under
current liabilities)
—IRITIERR - Bank borrowings (8,792) (4,296)
—HnE= — Other borrowings (11,542) (17,801)
BAR—FRNEENIEITR  Amounts of bank and other
HhfEm %8 borrowings that are not
repayable within one year 32,179 19,666

RIEZZHEFRZIEZ=F+=

As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, all of the bank and other

B=+—B FBERTRHEME
R DR A E RS (FIE R
T EH R R X ST A R AVER 1T B

3,792,0008 T (Z& - & :
4,296,000 7T) BRAb o

“ECFFR

borrowings were not secured by any legal charges except for
the bank borrowings of HK$3,792,000 (2022: HK$4,296,000)
were guaranteed by Mr. Chen Jianwen.

199



MmN

BONJOUR
MBRRWE (B)

BHE_F

32.

200

TZF+ZRA=+—HILEFE

RITREMER (&)

WN_E - _HFR_ZE_=Z=F+_
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

32.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

All of the bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2022
and 2023 were denominated in HK$.

The interest rates of the bank and other borrowings as at
31 December 2022 and 2023 were as follows:

—E-=E
2023

_E-CF
2022

RITIER

HAER

Bank borrowings

Other borrowings

REEFE-25%
Prime rate - 2.5%

REEME-25%
Prime rate - 2.5%

4%%E16.8%
4% to 16.8%

4%ZE9%
4% to 9%

RIEZZEFEFRIE=F+=
B=Z+—HB ZREETMNEHFED
HMfE$%43,721,000% 57T (=
T 4 37,467,000 ) &
AEBEHBATFENEAR
mZEFHAMEFEMNRITER
3,792,000 L (ZE & :
42%0w%m)@¢$lﬁ%
HeREfXAR E—FDH
RHMIEE6.530 8 o

FREIRTREMBRIDERETHZ
she M AEEERMEMRZE [

AR ERMEE- JWW£&4
FiRE EEECHEREHZ

FRHENETIE R UEEAER

mMBEERBE R_ZE-__FK

_E_=HF+”ZRA=+—H'#
EREME-

FrBRITREMERBEERIRE
HXEHNEFRRBREHE  EQ
FTEEER_ZE_—_F#Kk_F
S+ “B=+—HWERE
TH|EBRER-

As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, other borrowings of
HK$43,721,000 (2022: HK$37,467,000) bear at fixed interests
rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk, while
bank borrowings of HK$3,792,000 (2022: HK$4,296,000)
bears at a variable interest rate exposes the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. Further analysis is disclosed in note 6.5.

All of the bank and other borrowings are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants. If the Group breaches any of
the covenants, they will become repayable on demand.
Management regularly monitors its compliance over these
covenants to mitigate the underlying liquidity risk as disclosed
in note 6.4. As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, none of the
covenants had been breached.

All of the bank and other borrowings are expected to be settled
in accordance with their respective repayment schedules which
their fair values were not materially different from their carrying
amounts as at 31 December 2022 and 2023.
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BE_EFE_ZHF_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

33. HHE&R 33. LEASE LIABILITIES
HEEENEERB R MU The analysis of the repayment schedule of lease liabilities is as
T follows:
RIEREME REBEREZRE
Minimum Present value of minimum
lease payments lease payments
—E-=F _ECF —E--F _E_CF
2023 2022 2023 2022
FET FET FE7T FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
—FKRN Within one year 32,335 37,788 27,910 31,323
—FRBERAEERN After one year but within five years 43,754 72,215 41,085 65,205
76,089 110,003 68,995 96,528
B AEEBZERK Less: Future finance charges
MEER on lease liabilities (7,094) (13,475)  N/ATEHR N/AT A
HEaBEZIRE Present value on lease liabilities 68,995 96,528 68,995 96,528

B BER—FERNEEM  Less: Amount of lease liabilities

GEN ==Kt that is repayable within
RREaaE™ one year (shown under
E2) current liabilities) (27,910) (31,323)

AR —FRNEEDN Amount of lease liabilities that is

HEaEETHE not repayable within one year 41,085 65,205
R_E - _FR_E_=ZF+_" All of the lease liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and 2023
B=+—H FrEagaidsald were denominated in HKS$.

BTt E

FRO-BERAREESGENME The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to
FHESERERE.00% (ZF lease liabilities was 8.00% (2022: 8.08%) during the year. The
— " HF:8.08%) HHEBENIR total cash outflows for leases is disclosed in note 42.2.

ML ABELIRERME42.2¢

_EC-FFR 201
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AEBREMN

EBAEHRER _E_—FMA
NAWBEBFREBRAD (MK
) »HARBRMDIFLIELR
H-ERARENBHERHA
(= XEWNWBAB) BME
FRARBEEBRARATRD-
Bz AEEEA129,500,000
BT IRER019B TR
BERAARAABDRGD WHR_IE
“ARENMBENABRETAERE
B A IR (D B AERBE R B3R EE )
BEEmEER MAEBEANSEE
BIHENEIO%TE  BFFX
Hf—X BEE_ZE_XEFNAA
E|o

R_E_—F+tAANB T
¥87419,000,000BTHNERE
BRERSRI19BTERA
100,000,000 Z @R - &2 &
LAZAFEDBDERTHAX
15 1%t &> MAAWERZ 8 &
BAFTEZHeSE (RS
D) ESATTEBERFEE]
BEXrEREEBRAL R T
T TE EBERMNAEBEASE
110,500,000/ T B2 Al 85 3 »
M mBTEESRIBKRES
0.19B THRIEZFITHED &L
S HEBM581,578,94717 5B RE ##
Fo EBEH N M E40() °

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

34.

CONVERTIBLE LOANS

The convertible loans was issued to Karfond Limited
(“Karfond”) on 9 April 2021 and secured by charges over
the Company’s shares. The loans were convertible into the
Company’s shares at any time between the date of issue and
maturity (i.e. 9 April 2026). The principal amount of the loans
was HK$129,500,000 to be convertible into the Company’s
shares, at a conversion price of HK$0.19 per share. If there are
any of the loans not converted into the shares by 9 April 2026,
the relevant non-converted proportion will be redeemed at face
value and interest rate of 8.0% per annum will be charged on
the outstanding principal amount payable semi-annually until 9
April 2026.

On 6 July 2021, the principal amount of HK$19,000,000 of
the loans was converted into 100,000,000 ordinary shares
at HK$0.19 per share by Karfond. The fair value of the
liability component was calculated using a market interest
rate of 15.1% and the residual amount of the fair value of
the proceeds received, representing the equity component,
was included in the “convertible loans reserve” until the loans
are converted. In 2022, the outstanding principal amount of
HK$110,500,000 of the loans was early converted in exchange
for issuing 581,578,947 share warrants at the exercise price of
HK$0.19 per share warrant to Karfond related to the disposal
transaction detailed in note 40(i).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

34. CONVERTIBLE LOANS (continued)

The carrying amounts of the loans between the liability and
equity components as at 31 December 2022 and 2023 were as

BHEREKEEWNT : follows:
FAET
HK$’000
BRTUERER HE Nominal value of convertible loans issued 129,500
N2 _F—HF—H#mEID  Equity component at 1 January 2022 23,428
RN Early redemption (23,438)
A_E__F+"HB=+—H- Equity component at 31 December 2022,
—E=F—F—HK 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023
—E=F+ZH=+—H -
RIZE-__F—HF—HMEaES4D Liability component at 1 January 2022 90,186
AR EHRNF EEE (TsE11) Interest expense on convertible loans (note 11) 6,522
BN ERERAE Interest paid on convertible loans (6,522)
RE (D Early redemption (90,186)

W2 _F#+"F=+—H~
2 -F—A—HK
—E=+"F=+—H

Liability component at 31 December 2022,
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023

BIEMIET4. 21 H N ® 5K
KON BE_ZF+HB=+—
B K%liu%mﬁ%g%
150,618,000 Tt (Z & - —
m81m(mo%m)m$@%ﬁi
BHEEERECLRBEE RRA
%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂi%@&%%?k
BEA KRR FER I E A 7 B LU
%%Eow#ﬁﬁﬁf & A
RGBT EBHHESE o

“ECFFR

35. DEFERRED TAX

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 4.21,
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of the unused tax losses with tax effect of HK$150,618,000
(2022: HK$128,181,000) as at 31 December 2023 since it is
not probable that future taxable profits against which the losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdictions
and entities. The unused tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely under current tax legislation.
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RERBEEE

RE(ERBEN)  ~EEBEATE
ETERTEESEELAEN
EAREZNESERFE S %%
BEREERERNERELAETA
HHEEUIINREERE Z
B ER655 3 £ F e E
N EBENEECHEEREmE
rTYEE EHERFcaELE
BH2ERENRKRHFS (ERA
22,5008 m) MIRBEFHETE
THBRAERmRESTE (F
ERWH417T)HREENEM
EatEfesB (ERAEREE
390,00087w) - AEEH I & T
MBIESZHUENEENRR
HKeafde

RIE - _FXA FBHN®E
BWRTBET G REKER
BEMNZEHEF > BiBIRIERA
Bestapmeas R Rl HE
HEERENEBRRESEEB-
EARABFHEREMETEA BN
BEBHBEM B4 FEEBM
TRFEHAR ERR B R AT 8 1Y
BENEE -

Hep» —BEUHEE B £
BEXJEBERHEASBREA
HatMtaBestd MR (FH
REBEBRZA-EBAHZRIF
B MR B E £ R E R RSt A)
m B EERBHNERBARS
oA HEENBIE B A
M E AEITERER L
MmEStEA  LUR LV BEZBA
HEERBHNERARBE It
ShoRBEBHABERARBNE
HRBERRBERZIZBELHA
EBENRBHKREEZBHRSE
FHHE-

EHRFSBE FTHOEFA TR LR
TAE%EES390,0008 T M
BERBMTARZEHEE390,000
Ao oRllBLHSBEEEREDS
RESTFE S E D 3 Bk o

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

36.

LONG SERVICE PAYMENT LIABILITIES

Under the Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged to
make long service payments for employees located in Hong
Kong who have been employed continuously for at least five
years under certain circumstances. These circumstances
include where an employee is dismissed for reasons other
than serious misconduct or redundancy, that employee resigns
at the age of 65 or above, or the employment contract is of
fixed term and expires without renewal. The amount of long
service payment liabilities is determined with reference to the
employee’s final salary (capped at HK$22,500) and the years of
service, and is reduced by the amount of any accrued benefits
derived from the Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme (as
defined in note 4.17) (capped at HK$390,000 per employee).
The Group does not have any separate funding arrangement in
place to meet its long service payment liabilities.

In June 2022, the Hong Kong Government gazetted the
Amendment Ordinance, which will eventually abolish the
statutory right of an employer to reduce its long service
payment liabilities to a Hong Kong employee by drawing on its
mandatory contributions to the MPF Scheme. The Hong Kong
Government subsequently announced that the Amendment
Ordinance will come into effect from the Transition Date.
Separately, the Hong Kong Government is also expected to
introduce a subsidy scheme to assist employers after the
abolition.

Among other things, once the abolition of the offsetting
mechanism takes effect, an employer can no longer use
any of the accrued benefits derived from its mandatory MPF
contributions (irrespective of the contributions made before,
on or after the Transition Date) to reduce the long service
payments in respect of an employee’s service from the
Transition Date. However, where an employee’s employment
commenced before the Transition Date, the employer can
continue to use the above accrued benefits to reduce the long
service payments in respect of the employee’s service up to
that date. In addition, the long service payments in respect of
the service before the Transition Date will be calculated based
on the employee’s monthly salary immediately before the
Transition Date and the years of service up to that date.

The benefit payment under long service payments remains
capped at HK$390,000 per employee. If an employee’s total
benefit payment exceeds HK$390,000, the excess amount will
be deducted from the portion accrued from the Transition Date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

36. LONG SERVICE PAYMENT LIABILITIES (continued)

liabilities.

The Group has already adopted the above mechanism to
account for its long service payment liabilities on the earliest
retrospective date, i.e. 1 January 2022, thus, the introduction
of the abolition of the offsetting mechanism has no material
impact on the carrying amount of the long service payment

The present value and movements of long service payment

FUWT : liabilities during the year were as follows:
= —F-—
2023 2022
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RBRBcEBERE Present value of long service
payment liabilities
n—A—H At 1 January 1,039 1,296
14 E fth 2 UK 2 7 5 Remeasurements recognised
MEME . in other comprehensive
income:
B BBREESEE S Actuarial gains arising
58 I = from changes in financial
assumptions (98) (164)
REEPERNRAX - Expenses recognised in
profit or loss:
E R A A Current service cost 402 353
B E RS A A Past service cost (142) -
FEZH Interest expense 38 20
B ERARIZ RS Long service payments to
BEWRERARBEE retired or redundant staff - (466)
W+-_B=+—H At 31 December 1,239 1,039

LHFARIXHAREAFERBE
FENGSR@RPHITHRAX

KB BB -

“ECFFR

statement of profit or loss for both current and prior years.

All of the above expenses were recognised in administrative
expenses and finance costs included in the consolidated
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

36. LONG SERVICE PAYMENT LIABILITIES (continued)

The weighted average duration of the long service payment
liabilities is 14 years (2022: 32 years). The maturity analysis
of the undiscounted long service payments based on the
weighted average duration is as follows:

—£E MEE
1EUA 7 E R LEHRE S5 E @zt
Less than Between 1 Between 2 Over
1year and2years and 5 years 5 years Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZBZ=5+"H=+—H  At31 December 2023
EHER%S Long service payments 213 48 62 1,019 1,342
RIZZZHE+ZHB=+—H At 31 December 2022
RERBE S Long service payments 75 86 270 829 1,260

RIBEZ_FRITZ=ZF+=
B=+—B EHRBE:EEN
FERBUIGERBEEMER
Bt BB AET - IRETY
2EZRLSNESFEEXXTEIN
BERAESFNAMNXEE > B
HHEMERRERARES SENHARAE
= o

RIE_—_HEk_ZE_=ZF+=
B=+—HB WBEFEFAEAN
BEABERBSE (UMEFTHELEX
FIR) W

The actuarial calculations of the long service payment liabilities
as at 31 December 2022 and 2023 were performed by an
independent qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method. The discount rate is determined with reference to
the interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the foreign currency in which the benefits will
be paid, and have terms to maturity approximating the terms of
the related pension obligation.

Significant actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted-
average rates) applied in the actuarial calculation as at 31
December 2022 and 2023 were as follows:

—E-= T
2023 2022
ARIR = Discount rate 3.754% 3.675%
TEEEXR Salary growth rate 2.0% 2.0%

RERBTEEEENTEER
B

The long service payment liabilities is exposed to the following
actuarial risks:

0 sREA

Risk Description

REEFWAEEEEER REMEFEREIEMR RV EE

Change in corporate bond yields  An increase in corporate bond yields will decrease the liabilities.
BRRR AEBHEBERBEREN BRIWE aEREIEM.

Inflation risk Majority of the liabilities is linked with inflation which higher the inflation

rate will increase the liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

36. LONG SERVICE PAYMENT LIABILITIES (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The below analysis shows how the carrying amount of long
service payment liabilities would have increased/(decreased)
as a result of the changes in these significant actuarial
assumptions as at 31 December 2022 and 2023:

tgmsk
(HL) Bt HRERBEEERNTE
Increase or Impact on long service
(decrease) in % payment liabilities
—ZC-= TETE
2023 2022
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BHIR = Discount rate 0.5% (81)/99 (80)/89
TEEBRX Salary growth rate 1.0% 36/(27) 43/(142)
FTHBREIMBRZERBEER The above sensitivity analysis assumes changes in significant

RN Es) K HtLEE
BEABERIKZZENMEBEME-
T RESM R 22

ERZEZ=ZF+Z"BA=+—8RK
EEMBERRERINEHRRE
cEESEERBERNEE
o

MREABMREDTAB L ER
BREXFHALTESH-

“ECFFR

actuarial assumptions are not correlated and therefore it does
not consider the correlations between the significant actuarial
assumptions. The same actuarial calculation has been applied
to the above sensitivity analysis and the amount of long service
payment liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022 and 2023.

There were no changes in the methods and assumptions used
in preparing the above sensitivity analysis against the prior

years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

=+ -H=+—HIEFEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023
fi& 7s 37. SHARE CAPITAL
& E FAET
Number of
shares HK$’000
AT Authorised:
SREE0.01ETTzE®EKR  Ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each
WZE-__F#—HF—H- At 1 January 2022,
TE-F+°AH 31 December 2022,
=+—H- :g:: 1 January 2023 and
—BA—BE_E_=& 31 December 2023
+=ZHA=+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
BT REE Issued and fully paid:
EREE.O1 AT EERR Ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each
RZE-__F#—HF—H- At 1 January 2022,
—E &+ )ﬂ 31 December 2022 and
—t+t—HAERZZEZ= 1 January 2023
—H—H 3,512,566,000 35,126
REREREARLTEET Shares issued under
f&fn (i sE27) capitalisation of
shareholder’s loan (note 27) 1,241,750,000 12,417
RIEZ=F At 31 December 2023
+=ZB=+—H 4,754,316,000 47,543

EERFEANERERTRKEIR
WRE TABEFARTEE L
mERKE— i‘fO?TZIK@TiJ B
EMS FMAEEER=ZARFM
i °

N_E_=F+—A/,H° A5
RRMEEUIKEREERY
76,988,000t AR B E &7
RE A N12,417,00058 0 G
HEA0.018B 7T (WMME27E—
FTIRE) o

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
as declared from time-to-time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Company'’s residual assets.

On 6 November 2023, the issued share capital of the Company
was increased by HK$12,417,000, at nominal value of
HK$0.01 per share, in pursuant to the completion of the share
allotment to offset the shareholder’s loan of approximately
HK$76,988,000 as further disclosed in note 27.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

37. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise returns for shareholders and benefits for
stakeholders by pricing products commensurately with the level
of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, the
adjusted net debt is defined as total debt (which includes
amount due to the controlling shareholder, bank and other
borrowings and lease liabilities) plus unaccrued proposed
dividends, less bank and cash balances. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity less non-controlling
interests and unaccrued proposed dividends.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amounts of dividends paid to shareholders,
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new
debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt. The principal
capital management policy remained unchanged against the
prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

37. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio as at
31 December 2022 and 2023 were as follows:

BEHEHERLERTT :
—E-= —E-—
2023 2022
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
B Total debt 148,650 168,409
B IRTT RIS Less: Bank and cash balances
(F5E28) (note 28) (16,109) (17,929)
KA RRETEIFRE Adjusted net debt 132,541 150,480
TR ABEE Total equity 282,236 155,388
—E-=F — -
2023 2022
RBRFEFHEARLX Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio 47% 97%

5’|\:‘BEMJDE’J§$ REER (i)

R AMTEEHITRME
%( L25%RBARANLERE (£
R B FRA BY 4 E B RN
R (11) B 17 A8 RR IR 17 K H fth & =%
WM BIPR A Zes (BlE AR
BRRERRIEFEBEFTR

=

2) o

The externally imposed capital requirements are mainly:
(i) to maintain at least 25% of the total number of issued
shares must at all times be held by the public (except for
the specific circumstances as described in the Listing
Rules); and (ii) to meet all covenants attached to the relevant
bank and other borrowings agreements (i.e. to maintain a
minimum shareholding by the Company’s ultimate controlling
shareholder).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

38.1 Statement of financial position of the Company

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES
OF THE COMPANY

—E-= —_=EFE "
i 2023 2022
k=3 FAET FAET
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
FREBEE Non-current assets
N AB 2% E  Investments in subsidiaries 46 14,015 14,015
EREEE Right-of-use assets 34,114 47,760
FEUMEB/ATIZIE  Amount due from a subsidiary - 342,007
MERKEES Rental and utility deposits 283 -
48,412 403,782
MEBEE Current assets
FBRIBERES Prepayments and deposits 6,641 4,106
FEURMIE ABIFIE  Amounts due from subsidiaries 353,148 672
IRITHERR Bank balances 2,055 36
361,844 4,814
mENaE Current liabilities
FESMIBABRIE  Amounts due to subsidiaries 287,429 218,347
FETIZRRAREEANIE  Amount due to the controlling 27
shareholder 28,226 30,118
HAE T BRI Other payables and accrued
fEE & charges 4,018 4,091
HMEmR Other borrowings 11,542 17,801
HE&R Lease liabilities 6,811 21,207
355,033 291,564
RHEE, (A1)  Net current assets/(liabilities)
FE 6,811 (286,750)
MEERGRHAME  Total assets less current
liabilities 55,223 117,032
JEREBAR Non-current liabilities
HER Other borrowings 32,179 19,666
HEaE Lease liabilities 41,085 64,903
RIRFEEE Long service payment liabilities 73 -
73,337 84,569
(Bf8) /EEFME Net (liabilities)/assets (18,114) 32,463
ﬁﬁﬂi’dﬁ%fﬁ Capital and reserves
@ Share capital 37 47,543 35,126
1.:%1% Reserves 38.2 (29,429) (2,663)
48 (BAE4L) #3%E Total (capital deficiency)/equity (18,114) 32,463

>m7t
l—ﬂ-)?mﬁll

REE

R f2 X

E_OME=ZHF_+N
%%@EE&EMT

Chen Jianwen

EF

Director

“ECFFR

Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna

R

EBEFE
Director

Approved and authorised for issue by the Directors on
28 March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:
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38. ZABIHMBERARREEED 38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES

(& OF THE COMPANY (continued)
38.2A4 N EIfEE 38.2 Reserves of the Company
BEXER B
R E B i AERE it REEHE 4Bzt
Share Capital Capital Share
premium  redemption contribution warrants Accumulated
account reserve reserve reserve losses Total
FAET FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZE-_#—-F—H At 1 January 2022 260,729 1,181 - - (721,424) (459,514)
BT RREE (MEE400) Issuance of share warrants
(note 40() - - - 22,037 - 22,037
FRHENREERGEE Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - 434,814 434,814

RIZZZFE+ZH=+—H At 31 December 2022 and

h_E_=F—HA—H 1 January 2023 260,729 1,181 - 22,037 (286,610) (2,663)
BREFERCTEET Shares issued under
B& 3 (HF5E37) capitalisation of shareholder's
loan (note 37) 64,571 - - - - 64,571

BRI EE (fi5E27)  Deemed capital contribution
from the controlling

shareholder (note 27) - - 527 - - 527
EREEREERSEE Loss and total comprehensive

expense for the year - - - - (91,864) (91,864)
RZEZ=F+ZH=+—H At 31 December 2023 325,300 1,181 527 22,037 (378,474) (29,429)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

39. RESERVES
39.1 Reserves of the Group

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

39.2 Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium account

Under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands
(the “Companies Act”), the accumulated funds in
the share premium account of the Company is only
distributable to the shareholders of the Company,
either: (i) immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed; or (ii) the
Company shall be able to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business. The
application of the share premium account should
be with reference to the latest memorandum and
articles of association of the Company.

(ii) Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve of the Company
arose from the cancellation of the Company’s
shares repurchased in the Stock Exchange by
the Company. Under the Companies Act, the
amount of the Company’s issued share capital
shall be diminished by the nominal value of those
repurchased shares and the difference shall be
transferred to the capital redemption reserve
instead of reducing the amount of the Company’s
authorised share capital upon the repurchased
shares were cancelled.
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39. f#E (@) 39. RESERVES (continued)

9.2 B2 MERAR (&)

39.2 Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

214

(iii) ZEF#E

ARBZz TEREBE
TERBRMERRER

(iii)

Capital contribution reserve

The capital contribution reserve of the Company
arose from the difference between the implicit and

BzEEERMBHE market interest rates of the amount due to the
2B ERE- controlling shareholder.

(iv) SHEE (iv) Merger reserve
KpBlza e The merger reserve of the Company arose from the

N ZEE=F & group reorganisation in 2003 which represented
BEAMES  WARE the difference between the nominal value of the
BEA R WE K aggregated share capital of the subsidiaries
BRrElZzEKAEE acquired under the reorganisation scheme over the
EARRNBIMKBEZE nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
M ER BT ZRM exchange.

HEZERE-

(v) SNEERFE (v) Foreign currency translation reserve
ShEEEREE RN The foreign currency translation reserve comprises
ERMEBINEBY all foreign exchange differences arising from the
BRREEZERE translation of the financial statements of foreign
B o B TH R B M5 operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
4 . 3FTE Bt K E with the accounting policy set out in note 4.3.

o

(vi) BAFEFAEME (vi) Financial assets at FVTOCI reserve
BR#mZZHEEMF
#

UAFESFAHEME
HEYmzEmEER
BERERBESHRR
BIsE4.9M 2 &5t
REANREBYH
BEERBIFIIEE U
AFEFAHMER
W@z EHmRIFLED
RAZBHFHAFER

The financial assets at FVTOCI reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of the
listed and unlisted equity securities designated at
FVTOCI under HKFRS 9 that are held at the end
of the reporting period in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 4.9.

Annual Report 2023



n

BONJOUR

BRI (&) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BE_EFE_ZHF_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

39. f#E (i&8) 39. RESERVES (continued)

9.2 B2 MERAR (&)

39.2 Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(vii) T EBRE N #

(vii) Convertible loans reserve

AELEMBEEEAN
NEFTEE AT H R i
ARABEZBERNA
EMERNERIT D
(NEBEASHT
ENATEREAGES
DB ERE) > RBIE
MfsE4.14FF 8 & 5t B
RHESD o W MT5E40(i)
Fretui > 80 &R E
I BB A DL M BN B
THHEXZBEBEW
DB HEHEEX
HHPE - TEBRERW
18 =0 Bz A% 14 & 70 MY 5
340

(viii) 37 IR FE B 1#

5 At BY

=
/
==
=T
iy
R
~
(@]

HEXS %R &
& A F B R IE BT
581,578,9471) 58
BRES B FRE
BHETEESH
DR EF0.198 T
FEBAQNF B T B

TH581,578,947
CEERKRCMAEES
110,500,000 75 > UL
HBEE R G
ERoRREEHE
IEREM T4, 18FF &
gt B K fFEABlack-
ScholesERFE R
RESFHFEHRERR
TEZENEBE -EH
RAFEEXANEE
A BB EE40(0)

wEE -

REEERBEEE
R U 5 4% 17 8 1F 1 3B

PRERE o

“ECFFR

The convertible loans reserve represents the equity
component of the convertible loans (i.e. difference
between the fair value of the compound financial
instrument as a whole and the liability component)
issued by the Company not yet converted into the
Company’s ordinary shares recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 4.14. The
reserve was fully eliminated when the convertible
loans were early converted in exchange for issuing
share warrants related to the disposal transaction as
detailed in note 40(). The terms and conditions of the
convertible loans are described in note 34.

(viiij) Share warrants reserve

Upon the completion of the disposal transaction
detailed in note 40(i), the Company issued
581,578,947 share warrants to Karfond conferring
the rights for Karfond to subscribe 581,578,947
ordinary shares to be issued by the Company at
the exercise price of HK$0.19 per share warrant,
with an aggregate face value of HK$110,500,000 in
exchange for the convertible loans redeemed. The
share warrants reserve represents the difference
between the proceeds and fair value of the share
warrants measured using the Black-Scholes model
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 4.18. The key inputs applied to the fair value
model are disclosed in note 40(i).

No share warrants have been exercised by Karfond
for both current and prior years.
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BT HERSERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(i) Disposal of subsidiaries with loss of control

On 28 March 2022, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement pursuant to which the Company
agreed to sell and the Fund agreed to purchase the entire
equity interest of the Disposal Group (as defined in note
22) at an aggregate consideration of HK$900,000,000.
The disposal transaction was completed on 29 June
2022.

BWRHE: Consideration received:
FET
HK$'000
RERIREEEYHUE Consideration received in cash and
HARE cash equivalents 431,554
R—EEECEZRE (Mfs22) Investment in a joint venture (note 22) 351,412
feme BFsEi)) Rental deposits (note (ii)) 4,500
B[Ol T B &5 (BT5Ex) Redemption of convertible loans (note (i)) 112,534
BB RE Total consideration received 900,000
KERFHENLHELEFE Analysis of assets and liabilities of the Disposal
ERBERN: Group over which control was lost:
FET
HK$'000
M- BB NZE Property, plant and equipment 496,298
FIERREE Deferred tax liabilities (1,413)
BEHEEEFE Net assets disposed of 494,885
HEME LR TR - Gain on disposal of subsidiaries:
TET
HK$ 000
BB E Total consideration received 900,000
BEHEEESFE Net assets disposed of (494,885)
TR R (k) Issuance of share warrants (note i) (22,037)
HENTZ (i) Effect of new lease (note i) (41,149)
HEWB AR E Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 341,929

EE W B A SR W E R AR
aE=E
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The gain on disposal of subsidiaries is disclosed
separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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40. HEMWB AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

() Disposal of subsidiaries with loss of control
(continued)

Notes:

(i) On 29 June 2022, the Fund paid Karfond, on behalf
of the Disposal Group, to redeem all the outstanding
convertible loans previously issued to Karfond, at the
principal amount of HK$110,500,000 with the accrued
interest of HK$2,034,000, in exchange for the Company
issued 581,578,947 share warrants to Karfond conferring
the rights for Karfond to subscribe 581,578,947 ordinary
shares to be issued by the Company at the exercise
price of HK$0.19 per share warrant, with an aggregate
face value of HK$110,500,000. The fair value of the
share warrants of HK$22,037,000 was measured by an
independent professional valuer using the Black-Scholes
model.

The key inputs applied to the fair value model were as
follows:

0.1978 7T

HK$0.19
TEI=FERABZ+ABEZZZAFMAAH
From 29 June 2023 to 9 April 2026

=

Nil

57.192%

57.192%

2.718%

2.718%

(i) On 29 June 2022, the Company entered into a tenancy
agreement for leasing industrial building that carries a
lease term of 4 years as disclosed in note 18. The annual
rent payables are HK$27,000,000, HK$27,810,000,
HK$28,644,000 and HK$29,504,000 for the first, second,
third and fourth year of lease respectively. The initial
carrying amounts of right-of-use assets, lease liabilities
and rental deposits were HK$53,354,000, HK$96,753,000
and HK$2,250,000 respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

() Disposal of subsidiaries with loss of control
(continued)

Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries:

TET
HK$'000

BB\ RIBEEFEBYTREB
RE GtAGERERER
IREREET)

BERTER GTAGRERE
MBRNKERRME
EEIAT)

Consideration received in cash and cash

equivalents (included under investing activities

in consolidated statement of cash flows) 431,554
Repayments of bank borrowings (included

under operating and financing activities in

consolidated statement of cash flows) (871,000)

HEWB AT RMIES 7 AEZE Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries 60,554

(i) RIFELEWBATLKRE
12 T

TR F+TZRAE
NBEETHEB R (405
21FT e 88) MR XX e &
[B) 22 i B9 BE Bt B S Ao &8 K
ZER-RNRMERER &
EWMBAREZBENKRER
100% B> E30% » It 15 1F
HEFE -FHIL RIFHE
ERBERSERBE= AF
mBMELB AR

EMkAE:

(i) Deemed disposal of subsidiaries with loss of control

In December 2022, certain subsidiaries of the Company
(as disclosed in note 21) allotted their ordinary shares
to the related entities commonly controlled by Mr. Chen
Jianwen. Upon the shares allotments, the respective
equity interests of these subsidiaries were reduced from
100% to 30% and were deemed disposed. Accordingly,
they are accounted for as associates using the equity
method after the deemed disposal.

Consideration received:

BRRMEEWENAE

Consideration received from shares allotments -

218
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BRI (&) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BE_EFE_ZHF_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

40. HEMB AR (&) 40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(i) HELEMBARLLSE (i) Deemed disposal of subsidiaries with loss of control
Vel iE (2 (continued)
HIELE L BEHI R Z Z K Analysis of assets and liabilities of those
BARAAWEEREENS subsidiaries over which control deemed was lost:
e
FET
HK$ 000
Y BB R sk (EE17) Property, plant and equipment (note 17) 3,408
FREEE (M18) Right-of-use assets (note 18) 6,668
FEUN & 5 iR =X Trade receivables 225
FEMRIBE s T 2 R EMEUERER Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 1,824
RI1TRIRE AR Bank and cash balances 477
FET B 5 R Trade payables (24)
HMEMRR e WiZE K Other payables, deposits received and accrued
FET & charges (13,664)
HEaE (fisE42.1) Lease liabilities (note 42.1) (7,016)
BHEABFE Net liabilities disposed of (8,102)
HEMWEB L8 Kar Gain on disposal of subsidiaries:
FET
HK$ 000
B EEEWEINARE Consideration received from shares allotments -
BHEAEFEE Net liabilities disposed of 8,102
HEME A BN Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 8,102
HEWB AT W (R MK The gain on disposal of subsidiaries (together with
F40() Rz HERKRPE note 40()) is disclosed separately in the consolidated
BE- statement of profit or loss.
HEWBLAGELENEZ Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiaries:
T BEE
FET
HK$’000
B ERITTRIBEMAER Bank and cash balances disposed of (477)
TET=FFR 219
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ZAEBBR oA ARAFBEX
AHEERERAD TR -
THEHABAKRADNKEA
=

REEHHENEGESRAREERE
ERBEDR:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

41. DECONSOLIDATION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 9 January 2023, a winding-up order was made by the High
Court against Hop Fung Lung Limited at the hearing pursuant
to the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions)
Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong). An official
receiver was appointed as a provisional liquidator of Hop Fung
Lung Limited to liquidate the company. As a result, the Group
has lost control over Hop Fung Lung Limited and ceased to be
a subsidiary of the Company on the same date.

Analysis of assets and liabilities of Hop Fung Lung

Limited over which control was lost:

TET
HK$ 000
Y BE R RE (HE5E17) Property, plant and equipment (note 17) 390
FREEE (15E18) Right-of-use assets (note 18) 486
B 5 K e W BR =k Trade and other receivables 6,378
RITRIRE AR Bank and cash balances 431
B 5 REMEMIRR Trade and other payables (110,681)
ANES = VNCIE/ O] Amounts due to group companies (379,908)
BERIEGEEARZEBEFE Net liabilities deconsolidated (482,904)
— BB AERIEEEAKRZIK Gain on deconsolidation of a subsidiary:
s
TFET
HK$ 000
BRIEGRE AR BEFEE Net liabilities deconsolidated 482,904
B EWEERERAR Less: Amounts due from Hop Fung Lung
Limited (379,908)
—HERBATKRIEGES ARZIWE  Gain on deconsolidation of a subsidiary (note)
(M3 5%) 102,996

s —EMNBABRILEES ALK
ZWER G EaRNER
WEE -

— BRI EARZHE
ZTHEEE

Note: The gain on deconsolidation of a subsidiary is disclosed
separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Net cash outflow on deconsolidation of a subsidiary:

THET
HK$'000

IRITRIRE AL R

Bank and cash balances

(431)
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BRI (&) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BE_EFE_ZHF_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2023

42, FZEHRERERME 42, NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS

42,

-t

MEZPHEEZEEHIK

42.1 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

TERFREAEBREDS
EEZzBEEH BERE
RIEFRcEH RETHE
EZEERHETEREE
KEARKRBEBEZRER N K
EEGESRERERDER

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as “cash flows from financing

TMEZHM2RERELZ activities”.
=R
RITREMER FEfERRRTE fE&fR
Amount due to
Bank and other controlling Lease
borrowings shareholder liabilities
FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(It3%32) (Hfz¥ar) (Hfz£33)
(note 32) (note 27) (note 33)
RZE_=F-F—-H At 1 January 2023 41,763 30,118 96,528
RERSTAELE . Changes from financing cash flows:
BEREBTEN Repayment of bank borrowings (505) - -
HtEFZERE Proceeds from other borrowings 30,050 - -
TM BHMER Repayment of other borrowings (22,050) - -
RITRAMETZELRE Interest paidl on bank and other borrowings (3,314) - -
REERREZFMEHE Proceeds from the controlling shareholder - 85,115 -
AERRRER Repayment to the controlling shareholder - (7,200) -
ﬂ’“ﬁxﬁx%%‘ Interest paid to the controlling shareholder - (24) -
AEMH ZZE%*E Principal element of lease payments - - (35,010)
AERRZA S Interest element of lease payments - - (6,796)
4,181 77,801 (41,806)
HitJERE S Other non-cash changes:
BOREMBRNESRE Imputed interest on bank and other
(ffiz%9) borrowings (note 9) (3,330) - -
RO BB BENERRRHE Capitalisation of the amount due to the
BAE (H527) controling shareholder upon share
allotment (note 27) - (76,988) -
RERRRETE (H:27) Deemed capital contribution from the
controlling shareholder (note 27) - (527) -
ERFHEELZHAEEEEN  Increase in lease liabilties arising from
new leases during the year - - 8,018
FIEBS (HzE11) Interest expense (note 11) 4,899 1,648 6,796
—BRBARRILEE A
(Fii7E41) Deconsolidation of a subsidiary (note 41) - - (541)
HindERE > e Total other non-cash changes 1,569 (75,867) 14,273
RZF-=f+-A=+-H At 31 December 2023 47,513 32,142 68,995
—EBE-FFR 221
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42. REHERERMEE (& 42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (continued)
2 1REETHEEZEGEHIE 42.1 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
(#&) activities (continued)
ROKREMED EAERRETE HEsE
Amount due to
Bank and other controlling Lease
borrowings shareholder liabilities
FhT FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
(Miz£32) (Hzxo7) (Miz¥33)
(note 32) (note 27) (note 33)
RIZZZ&-F—H At 1 January 2022 107,488 - 27,981
RERS MRS Changes from financing cash flows:
RIBRZAERE Proceeds from bank borrowings 4,296 - -
BERITEN Repayment of bank borrowings (357,599) - -
HEMERZFERE Proceeds from other borrowings 9,240 - -
TTCEWE A Repayment of other borrowings (9,000) - -
RTREMERZBAHRE Interest paid on bank and other borrowings (26,138) - -
% E?@EH&%%ZFH%?\UE Proceeds from the controlling shareholder - 30,000 -
TRz EEHD Principal element of lease payments - - (34,936)
ﬁ AL Interest element of lease payment - - (6,116)
(379,201) 30,000 (41,052)
HitEREZ M Other non-cash changes:
ERFHREEEZHESEEM  Increase in lease liabilities arising from
new leases during the year - - 110,499
HERREZBE Disposal of liabilities held for sale 195,086 - -
HEMBEAT (zE400)) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40i) - - (7,016)
FISBS (HzE11) Interest expense (note 11) 28,390 118 6,116
EMIERE T HER Total other non-cash changes 223,476 118 109,599
RZE__#+°A=1+-H At 31 December 2022 41,763 30,118 96,528
422 EZRETRHEEE 42.2 Total cash outflows for leases
FAGEREREXRNE Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash
FEESRHEEEUT flows for leases comprise the following:
—E”= =
2023 2022
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
KBRS MELE N Within operating cash flows 8,734 13,535
BERSMEEAN  Within financing cash flows 35,010 34,936
43,744 48,471
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS (continued)

42.3 Significant non-cash transactions

—E-= BT F
2023 2022
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
P Operating activity
BB EMES Offsetting trade deposits against
&Rk (fsEes) other accrued charges
(note 25) 6,409 -
REEE) Investing activity
HE—EMEEL Increase in loan receivable arising
FE U & ®R 3% N from disposal of a property
(Pt 5£25) (note 25) - 6,000
==l Financing activities
B9 Bo 3% 18 FE (T =R Capitalisation of the amount due
RERMIBE KL to the controlling shareholder
(MF5£27) upon share allotment (note 27) 76,988 -
BIEERKRETE Deemed capital contribution from
(Mtz£27) the controlling shareholder
(note 27) 527 -

* FRMNMBELBEBE AR * Details of the additions to right-of-use assets and
RZzZERAEEEREE lease liabilities recognised at the lease commencement
BEREFBEDL DR dates during the year are disclosed in notes 18 and 33

FEE18 K% 33K & o respectively.
HAERE 43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
W2 -__"&#+"_8A=+—H"> As at 31 December 2022, the Group was involved in series of
REBES —ZRINEBEETES ongoing litigations or claims related to accrued rent of retail
HEGFHE - BEIMA-EFZEM stores, staff costs, cost of inventories, leasehold improvements
A MHEYELEEERELEME charges and other business disputes. Management believes

FUMPFERDBRIRR-EE
BREERGSHMF KRS HERD
TEEB - RECEERNESRK
M(MsE29) - EEFHEEYMEE
EER (W5E30) - HthES &
(M$3E30) K F& {7 51 BA Bk 75 =0 1R
(M EE26) © 3L 40 MY 5E41 PR 2 —
THRB ZEFABKRBERRRS
R—REWNEB AR TREEGES
REAEE

“ECFFR

sufficient provision was recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. The provision included in trade payables (note
29), accrued leasehold improvements charges (note 30), other
accrued charges (note 30) and amounts due to former related
parties (note 26). Those litigations and claims were deemed
to be settled upon the completion of deconsolidation of a

subsidiary as further disclosed in note 41.
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HRERE (E)

bh  BEREERLATRWH
KEBRABNR _E-__FtAH
“Tt+ARABEBREERITEHESS
AR HEERBRATHN
BREF PAEEAERAERA
BETERE - FEEHAGER
BRABXREL(I3,973,799%
T(EZRME4) WEEEE
EEBBERN _ZSE_=F—ANH
BLZITAEGERBREADNEE
BBREA B REBERXEH
EERBRADMNZTH M 1P
FEAEAXRLATDHNNBAR -
Hj‘%“%mui 1B M 5418 —

TIRE - EEEBEHAN _Z -
FE+-B=Z+—HWESHBER
LB RTEEME -

HEKIE

FEBEAEREA

A E=F+"HB=+—H8">
BRAMUNREEBERBEMANEEEH
CHIFEEMMEEAIEA111,000
BT (ZE - & 11,306,000
7T) o ME W%ﬁlmwﬁmﬁ

= o
FEEMFEALAA

N _E_=ZF+"_RB=Z+—H">
FTHRELEREE THRMER
SEWHA5,487,0008 1 (=
—THE BB e

S — -
R=+—H A&EBELEKHES]
YHARABEREEEFABENR
NERMEE-

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

43.

44,

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

In addition, there was a winding up petition filed on 26 July
2022 with the High Court of the Hong Kong SAR by Daily View
Investment Limited and Stead On Investment Limited against
Hop Fung Lung Limited which applied for the winding up of
Hop Fung Lung Limited. The principal ground was Hop Fung
Lung Limited had failed to pay the sum of HK$3,973,799 (as
defined in note 41). The official receiver was subsequently
appointed on 9 January 2023 as the provisional liquidator of
Hop Fung Lung Limited. As a result, the Group has lost control
over Hop Fung Lung Limited and ceased to be a subsidiary
of the Company on the same date. Details of the disposal
transaction was further disclosed in note 41. Management
expects sufficient provision was recognised in the consolidated
financial statements as at 31 December 2022.

LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee

As at 31 December 2023, the lease commitments relating to
short-term leases of retail stores located in Hong Kong and
Macau was HK$111,000 (2022: HK$1,306,000). Details of
lease terms is disclosed in note 18.

The Group as lessor

As at 31 December 2023, the minimum lease receipts under
non-cancellable operating leases was HK$5,487,000 (2022:
HKSNIil).

As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, the Group was not
committed to enter into any new leases that is not yet
commenced with any lease payments incurred.

Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) In addition to those related party transactions and

?EZ e Bl AR5 R balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
Gh s ZK%@EWE&E@H@%E financial statements, the Group had the following
ETUTRS . transactions with related parties during the year as
follows:
g = —E-

2023 2022

FAET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERHERRIGERFNIE Y Interest expense on amount due to
FERRX the controlling shareholder 1,648 118

(b) FRA AXEBFEZEEA
ENHFN (BENF141K
14, eﬁﬁ%‘z%ﬁﬁé$mﬂ$)§z
SHEEBMS) T :

(b)  The remuneration for the Group’s key management
personnel, including the Directors’ emoluments and
senior management emoluments as disclosed in notes
14.1 and 14.6 during the year was as follows:

2023 2022

FAET FAET

HK$’000 HK$'000

EEEE Directors’ fees 604 604
i Salaries 7,086 7,602
P IBETEAL Discretionary bonus 200 -
BRIRETEHRR Retirement plans contributions 95 74
7,985 8,280

TRHFEAEBMEEEE A
ENHFMNESFTALTEEXR
BEEENE TRA (FRK
131 E)

(c) PFIEE27FriK 88 A B AR 17 BC
ELMHEENERRRMX
ENEBAORZBA LT
MAIB14AEFT R ER R E

“ECFFR

The remuneration paid to the Group’s key management
personnel was included in staff costs for both current and
prior years as disclosed in note 13.

(c) The related party transaction in respect of the share
allotment to offset the amount due to the controlling
shareholder as disclosed in note 27 constitutes a
connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

46. PMBABIZIRE 46. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
N_E__FR_E_=ZF+_ Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at
B=+t—HZARBFTEWB A 31 December 2022 and 2023 are as follows:

SREMT
EE/BEITR
TEMBARLE ERERERN  AMRIREEME BRBAFHE BEREZENL TEEH
Particulars of
Place of authorised/issued
Name of principal Type of legal incorporation and and paid up Percentage of
subsidiaries entity business share capital ownership interest Principal activity
FRAFRERRANER
Interest held directly by
the Company
BREERAR (F1EA BRAH HERUES 50,0008 SREBEIZET 100% REER
[EREBBRAF) ZEEEER /3,008 (Z2Z2F 1 100%)
HEIETZBET
BB
Man Tong Trade Limited Limited liability ~ The British Virgin Islands 50,000 authorised 100% Investment holding
(formerly known as Bonjour company ordinary shares of (2022: 100%)
Group Limited) US$1 each/3,000
issued ordinary shares of
US$1 each
VNG ER 2R
Interests held indirectly by
the Company
RERBRAT (GIEA BRAH s 300,000 ERER T TEBRERTE
SRR ERDY BERR1,00087T2  (CBZ2E1100%) E5BRRLE
BRRF)) (MB8k)" BB I 181 7
GEZD
Hop Fung Lung Limited Limited liability ~ Hong Kong Non-voting deferred Nil Wholesaling and
(formerly known as Bonjour company shares of HK$300,000 (2022: 100%) retailing of beauty,
Cosmetic Wholesale Center and ordinary shares of healthcare and
Limited) * (note 41) HK$1,000 lifestyle products in
Hong Kong
EFERERAR BRAE &% 100,0008 R EEIET B TEERERS
ZBETEER (ZZZZE 1100%) BEREENEHER
Sheen Honour International Limited liability ~ Hong Kong 100,000 issued ordinary  Nil Wholesaling of beauty,
Limited * company shares of HK$1 each  (2022: 100%) healthcare and
lifestyle products in
Hong Kong
2BEBERAT BRAH HEBRYLEHS 50,0008 SREBEIZET 100% TRMZERS
ZEREER/1RER(CEIIE0100%) BREREERHER
1ZETZBETEER
Full Gain Developments Limited Limited liability ~ The British Virgin Islands 50,000 authorised 100% Retailing of beauty,
company ordinary shares of (2022: 100%) healthcare and
US$1 each/1 issued lifestyle products in
ordinary share of US$1 Macau
EBERAT BRAF HBERUES 50,000 &R EE1ET 100% REZR
ZEEEER/1REE(CSIITE 1100%)
1ZTZBETERR
Active Earn Limited Limited liability ~ The British Virgin Islands 50,000 authorised 100% Investment holding
company ordinary shares of (2022: 100%)

226

USS$1 each/1 issued
ordinary share of US$1
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46. MMBRAZKE (& 46. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
EE/BEITR
TEMBATAHE EEEREN  ERAUREEMEH BRREHE BRREZADL TEED
Particulars of
Place of authorised/issued
Name of principal Type of legal incorporation and and paid up Percentage of
subsidiaries entity business share capital ownership interest Principal activity
ERBRERERAT BRAF &% 1008 B R 1ETH 100% BFBHEY
BETEER (CEZZE1100%)
Bonjour Global Development  Limited liability ~ Hong Kong 100 issued ordinary 100% E-commerce business
Limited company shares of HK$1 each  (2022: 100%)
SRFMEEERAD BRAH &% 100 &R 1ETH 100% EER%
BETEER (CEZZF1100%)
Bonjour Life Limited* Limited liability ~ Hong Kong 100 issued ordinary 100% Management services
company shares of HK$1 each  (2022: 100%)
SNBERERMEERAT  BRAA &% 100 B R 1ETH 100% TEBRERMER
BETERR (ZTZZE1100%)
Bonjour Global Supply Limited  Limited liability ~ Hong Kong 100 issued ordinary 100% Wholesaling of
company shares of HK$1 each  (2022: 100%) technology products
in Hong Kong
ERAMAERRAT BRAH &% 100 B R 1ETH 100% TEERERS
BETERR (ZZEZZFE 1100%) BEREEREER
Hong Kong Innovation and Limited liability ~ Hong Kong 100 issued ordinary 100% Wholesaling of beauty,
Entrepreneurship Limited company shares of HK$1 each  (2022: 100%) healthcare and
lifestyle products in
Hong Kong
EZERRF BRAT &5 RS BT 100% BENERE
BETEER (CEZZHF1100%)
Wealthy Train Limited Limited liability ~ Hong Kong 1 issued ordinary 100% Property investment in
company share of HK$1 each  (2022: 100%) Hong Kong
ERULKREBTLERRT BRAA &% 1008 & R 1ETH 100% BFBHEY
BETEER (CEZZE1100%)
HK Mall Global eCommerce  Limited liability ~ Hong Kong 100 issued ordinary 100% E-commerce business
Platform Limited company share of HK$1 each  (2022: 100%)
* TIERHE (FE) s pMER * Companies not audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited.

FERADERNAT -

“ECFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2023

46.

47.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above list of the Company’s subsidiaries which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, the Group does not have
any material non-controlling interests required to present the
financial information.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 12 January 2024, the Town Planning Board granted the
approval of the property held by the Fund on the proposed
comprehensive residential development with minor relaxation of
maximum plot ratio and building height restrictions where the
property is situated.
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